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PART I

Forward-Looking Statements

Certain matters discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, in our press releases
and in oral statements made with the approval of an executive officer may constitute“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements include, but are not limited to, statements related to our expectations regarding the performance of
our business, our financial results, our liquidity and capital resources and other non-historical statements, and may be prefaced with words such as
“outlook,” “guidance,” “believes,” “expects,” “potential,” “continues,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “approximately,” “predicts,” “projects,”
“intends,” “plans,” “estimates,” “pending investments,” “anticipates” or the negative version of these words or other comparable words. Such statements
are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including, among others, the factors discussed under the caption “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”

These factors (among others) could affect our financial performance and cause actual results to differ materially from historical earnings and those
presently anticipated and projected. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we will not undertake and we specifically
disclaim any obligation to release publicly the result of any revisions which may be made to any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances
after the date of such statements or to reflect the occurrence of events, whether or not anticipated. In that respect, we caution readers not to place undue
reliance on any such forward-looking statements.

Item 1. Business

We are a global asset management company with equity investments in leading boutique investment management firms, which we refer to as our
“Affiliates.” Our innovative partnership approach allows each Affiliate’s management team to own significant equity in their firm and maintain operational
autonomy. Our strategy is to generate shareholder value through the internal growth of existing Affiliates, as well as through investments in new Affiliates,
and additional investments in existing Affiliates. In addition, we provide centralized assistance to our Affiliates in strategic matters, marketing, distribution,
product development and operations. As of December 31, 2016, our aggregate assets under management were $688.7 billion (approximately $727 billion pro
forma for investments which have since closed or are accounted for on a lag basis) in over 550 investment products across a broad range of active return-
oriented strategies and distribution channels.

We hold meaningful equity interests in each of our Affiliates. In certain cases, we own a majority of the equity interests while in other cases we own a
minority of the equity interests. In all cases, Affiliate management retains a significant equity interest in their own firm. Affiliate management equity
ownership (along with our long-term ownership) aligns our interests, enhances Affiliate management equity incentives and preserves the opportunity for
Affiliate management to participate directly in the long-term future growth of their firms. Our innovative partnership approach provides Affiliate management
with a degree of liquidity and financial diversification and ensures that our Affiliates maintain investment and operational autonomy in managing their
businesses, as well as their unique entrepreneurial culture and independence.

Given our long-term partnership approach, when we own a majority of the equity interests in an Affiliate, we address the ongoing succession planning
issues facing the Affiliate’s principal owners as they transition incentives to future generations by facilitating the transfer of equity over time to the next
generation of Affiliate management. When we own a minority of the equity interests in an Affiliate, we typically do not have an obligation to repurchase
Affiliate equity interests, but may make additional investments to further facilitate Affiliate ownership transition.

Although we invest in boutique investment management firms that we anticipate will grow independently, given our partnership approach, we enhance
our Affiliates’ growth prospects by providing access to the resources and scale of a global asset management company.

We are focused on investing globally in investment management firms that manage active return-oriented strategies, including traditional, alternative and
wealth management firms. We identify high-quality boutique firms based on our thorough understanding of the asset management industry, and we have
developed long-term relationships with a significant number of these firms. Within our target universe, we seek strong and stable boutiques that offer active
return-oriented strategies, such as alternative strategies and global equity strategies. These boutiques are typically characterized by a strong multi-generational
management team, entrepreneurial culture and commitment to building longer-term success.

We anticipate that we will have significant additional investment opportunities across the global asset management industry, most often in independent
investment management firms, but also investments resulting from subsidiary divestitures, secondary sales and other special situations. We are well-
positioned to execute upon these investment opportunities through our established process of identifying and cultivating investment prospects, our broad
industry relationships and our substantial
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experience and expertise in structuring and negotiating transactions. We have a strong, global reputation as an outstanding partner to our existing Affiliates,
and are widely recognized in the marketplace as providing an innovative solution for the succession and strategic needs of boutique investment management
firms.

Investment Management Operations

Through our Affiliates, we provide a comprehensive and diverse range of active return-oriented strategies and products to assist institutional, retail and
high net worth clients worldwide in achieving their investment objectives. As of December 31, 2016, we managed $688.7 billion (approximately $727 billion
pro forma for investments which have since closed or are accounted for on a lag basis) in predominantly alternative strategies and global equity strategies.
Our Affiliates’ generally do not manage passive indexing strategies, exchange traded funds, fixed income or money market products, which typically carry
lower fee rates than active return-oriented strategies.

Our Affiliates’ investment services and products are distributed by sales and marketing professionals developing new business through direct sales efforts
and established relationships with consultants and intermediaries around the world. Our global distribution platform operates in key markets to extend the
reach of our Affiliates’ own business development efforts and provide the necessary resources and expertise to ensure that our Affiliates’ products and
services are responsive to the evolving demands of the global marketplace. We have offices in Sydney, serving investors in Australia and New Zealand;
London, serving investors in the UK and continental Europe; Zurich, serving investors in Switzerland; Dubai, serving investors in the Middle East; and Hong
Kong, serving investors in Asia. In addition, we have retail distribution platforms through our wholly-owned subsidiaries, AMG Funds, LLC in Greenwich,
Connecticut and AMG Funds PLC in Dublin, Ireland, which provide retail investors with access to our Affiliates’ investment services through registered
investment companies and a family of UCITS funds.

Our Affiliates currently manage active return-oriented strategies in over 550 investment products, including for non-U.S. clients in more than 50
countries.

Our Innovative Structure and Relationship with Affiliates

We establish and maintain long-term partnerships with the management equity owners of our Affiliates, believing that Affiliate management equity
ownership (along with our long-term ownership) aligns our interests, enhances Affiliate management equity incentives and preserves management’s incentive
to continue to grow their businesses. Our innovative partnership approach allows for Affiliate management to retain equity sufficient to address their
particular needs and ensures that our Affiliates maintain investment and operational autonomy in managing their businesses, as well as their unique
entrepreneurial culture and independence. Although the equity structure of each investment is tailored to meet the needs of the particular Affiliate, in all
cases, we maintain a meaningful equity interest in the firm, with a significant equity interest retained by Affiliate management.

Each of our Affiliates operates through distinct entities, typically organized as limited liability companies or limited partnerships (or equivalent non-U.S.
forms), which affords us the flexibility to design a separate operating agreement for each Affiliate that reflects our arrangements with respect to governance,
economic participation, equity incentives and the other terms of our relationship.  In each case, the operating agreement provides for a governance structure
that gives Affiliate management the authority to manage and operate the business on a day-to-day basis.  The operating agreement also reflects the specific
terms of our economic participation in the Affiliate, which in each case uses a “structured partnership interest” to ensure alignment of our economic interests
with those of Affiliate management. 

When we own a majority of the equity interests in an Affiliate, we primarily use structured partnership interests in which we share in the Affiliate’s
revenue without regard to expenses. For these Affiliate investments, a set percentage of revenue is allocated to fund operating expenses, including
compensation (the “Operating Allocation”), while the remaining revenue (the “Owners’ Allocation”) is allocated to us and Affiliate management in
proportion to our respective ownership interests. See Exhibit 1.  We and Affiliate management therefore participate in any increase or decrease in revenue
through the Owners’ Allocation, and Affiliate management also participates in any increase or decrease in margin through the Operating Allocation.
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Exhibit 1 (Typical Structured Partnership Interest)

When we own a minority of the equity interests in an Affiliate, our structured partnership interest is either calculated by reference to the Affiliate’s
revenue without regard to expenses or by reference to the Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses. When our structured partnership interest is
calculated by reference to an Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses, we participate in increases and decreases both in revenue and the agreed-
upon expenses included in the calculation. This structure allows us to benefit from any increase in revenue or any decrease in the expenses that are included in
the calculation, but also directly exposes us to any decrease in revenue or any increase in such expenses, which we may not anticipate and which could be
significant.

In structured partnership interests in which we share in an Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses, our contractual share of revenue generally has
priority over distributions to Affiliate management.

When we own a majority of the equity interests in an Affiliate, we consolidate the Affiliate’s financial results in our Revenue, Operating expenses and
Other non-operating (income) and expenses. When we own a minority interest, we generally use the equity method of accounting and our share of the
Affiliate’s financial results is reported (net of intangible amortization) in Income from equity method investments. Whether we consolidate an Affiliate’s
financial results or use the equity method of accounting, we maintain the same partnership approach and provide support and assistance in substantially the
same manner for all Affiliates.

From time to time, we may change the structure of our arrangements with an Affiliate in order to better support the Affiliate’s growth strategy.

Competition

Our Affiliates compete with a large number of other domestic and foreign investment management firms, as well as with subsidiaries of larger financial
organizations. These firms may have significantly greater financial, technological and marketing resources, captive distribution and assets under management
and many offer an even broader array of investment products and services. Certain Affiliates are active in the same distribution channels and, from time to
time, may compete with each other for clients. In addition, there are relatively few barriers to entry for new investment management firms, especially in the
Institutional distribution channel. We believe that the most important factors affecting our Affiliates’ ability to compete for clients in our three principal
distribution channels are the:

• investment performance track records, investment style, discipline and reputation of our Affiliates and their management teams;

• depth and continuity of client relationships;

• diversity of products and level of client service offered;
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• changes in investor preferences, such as the recent growth in passively managed products including index and exchange traded funds;

• maintenance of strong business relationships with major intermediaries;

• continued development, either organically or through new investments, of investment strategies to meet the changing needs and risk tolerances of
investors; and

• continued success of our global distribution platform.

The relative importance of each of these factors can vary depending on the distribution channel and the type of investment management service involved,
as well as general market conditions. An Affiliate’s ability to retain and increase assets under management would be adversely affected if client accounts
underperform in comparison to relevant benchmarks or peer groups, or if key personnel leave an Affiliate. The ability to compete with other investment
management firms also depends, in part, on the relative attractiveness of an Affiliate’s active return-oriented investment strategies, market trends, fees or a
combination of these factors.

We compete with a number of acquirers of and investors in investment management firms, including other investment management companies, private
equity firms, sovereign wealth funds and larger financial organizations. We believe that the most important factors affecting our ability to compete for future
investments are the:

• degree to which target firms view our investment model, equity incentive structures and access to economies of scale as preferable (financially,
operationally or otherwise) to acquisition or investment arrangements offered by others; and

• reputation and performance of our Affiliates, by which target firms may judge us and our future prospects.

Government Regulation

Our and our Affiliates’ businesses are subject to complex and extensive regulation by various regulatory authorities and exchanges in jurisdictions around
the world, including those summarized below. These regulations may change from time to time, including as a result of global financial regulatory reform
initiatives. Our or our Affiliates’ businesses may be subject to regulatory inquiries by regulatory authorities, and these regulatory authorities may also conduct
examinations or inspections of our operations or those of our Affiliates with or without notice. Any determination of a failure to comply with laws or
regulations could result in disciplinary or enforcement action, fines, suspensions, or revocation or limitation of business activities or registration. See “Risk
Factors.”

AMG Funds is an adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended
(Advisers Act), and sponsors approximately 70 U.S. mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (Investment Company
Act) that are managed by Affiliates and unrelated investment managers. A number of our Affiliates also serve as advisers to mutual funds sponsored by them
or by third parties. The Advisers Act imposes numerous obligations on registered investment advisers, including fiduciary duties, recordkeeping
requirements, operational requirements and compliance and disclosure obligations. The Investment Company Act imposes additional obligations on fund
advisers, including investment restrictions and other governance, compliance, reporting and fiduciary obligations relating to the management of mutual funds.
New rules adopted by the SEC in 2016 may create additional reporting requirements for advisers and funds, and additional requirements for mutual funds in
the areas of liquidity management.

Outside of the U.S., Affiliated Managers Group Limited (AMG Limited) is regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority in the UK, and is authorized as
a promoter in Ireland by the Central Bank of Ireland. AMG Limited serves as the promoter for our Irish UCITS platform, which sponsors UCITS funds
managed by Affiliates and marketed by AMG Limited in the UK and Europe. AMG Limited’s branch, AMG Limited (Dubai), is regulated as a representative
office by the Dubai Financial Services Authority. Affiliated Managers Group (Hong Kong) Limited is regulated by the Securities and Futures Commission in
Hong Kong, and Affiliated Managers Group Pty Ltd is regulated by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission in Australia. Our ability to
transact business in these countries, and to conduct cross border activities, is subject to the availability of regulatory authorization.

 
Our Affiliates’ investment management operations are also subject to regulation by U.S. and non-U.S. authorities and exchanges. The majority of our

Affiliates are registered as investment advisers under the Advisers Act, and many of our Affiliates are also subject to non-U.S. regulatory oversight. We have
Affiliates domiciled in a number of jurisdictions, and these Affiliates are subject to regulation under the laws and regulations of and supervision by
governmental authorities in each
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of these jurisdictions. Our Affiliates also offer their products and services in many countries around the world, and are subject to various requirements relating
to such activities. Many of our Affiliates sponsor registered and unregistered funds in the U.S. and in other jurisdictions, including Guernsey, Jersey, Ireland,
Luxembourg, the British Virgin Islands and the Cayman Islands, and are subject to regulatory requirements in those jurisdictions and in the jurisdictions
where those funds may be offered. Our Affiliates invest in publicly-traded securities of issuers across the globe and are subject to requirements in numerous
jurisdictions for reporting of beneficial ownership positions and other requirements. Virtually all aspects of the asset management business, including strategy
and product-related sales and distribution activities, are subject to regulation. These laws, rules and regulations are primarily intended to protect the clients of
asset managers, and generally grant supervisory agencies and regulatory bodies broad administrative powers, including the power to set minimum capital
requirements and to impose fines or limit or restrict an investment adviser from conducting its business in the event of a failure to comply with such laws and
regulations.

We and our Affiliates are also subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA), and related regulations, with
respect to their retirement plan clients. ERISA imposes duties on persons who are fiduciaries under ERISA, and prohibits certain transactions involving
related parties to a retirement plan. The Department of Labor administers ERISA and regulates investment advisers who service retirement plan clients, and
has been increasingly active in proposing and adopting additional regulations applicable to the asset management industry. Rulemaking by the Department of
Labor in 2016 extends the application of the fiduciary duty to brokers and other intermediaries in the context of retirement advice.

We and certain of our Affiliates are also members of the National Futures Association and regulated by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission
(CFTC) with respect to the management of mutual funds and other products that utilize futures, swaps or other derivative products.

In addition, we and certain of our Affiliates are registered broker-dealers and members of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA), for the
purpose of distributing funds or other asset management products. These broker-dealers are subject to net capital rules that mandate that they maintain certain
levels of capital. FINRA has adopted extensive regulatory requirements relating to sales practices, registration of personnel, compliance and supervision, and
compensation and disclosure. FINRA and the SEC conduct periodic examinations of member broker-dealers. The SEC, FINRA and state securities
commissions may also conduct administrative proceedings that can result in censure, fine, suspension or expulsion of a broker-dealer, its officers or registered
employees. We and our Affiliates may also be subject to regulatory capital requirements, including those of federal, state and non-U.S. regulatory agencies.

Due to the extensive laws and regulations to which we and our Affiliates are subject, we must devote substantial time, expense and effort to remaining
current on, and addressing, legal and regulatory compliance matters. We and our Affiliates have experienced legal teams and compliance professionals in
place to address the legal, regulatory and compliance requirements relating to our global operations, and have in place relationships with various legal and
regulatory advisors in each of the countries where we and our Affiliates have business interests. We have established compliance programs for each of our
operating subsidiaries, and each of our Affiliates has established a compliance program to address regulatory compliance requirements for its operations, and
provides ongoing reporting to us on compliance matters.

Employees and Corporate Organization

As of December 31, 2016, we had approximately 4,100 employees, the substantial majority of whom were employed full-time by our Affiliates. Neither
we nor our Affiliates are subject to any collective bargaining agreements, and we believe that our and our Affiliates’ labor relations are good. We were formed
in 1993 as a corporation under the laws of the State of Delaware.

Our Web Site

Our web site is www.amg.com. Our web site provides information about us, and from time to time we may use it as a distribution channel of material
company information. We routinely post financial and other important information regarding the Company in the “Investor Relations” section of our web site
and we encourage investors to consult that section regularly. That section of our web site includes a link to another web site where one can obtain, free of
charge, copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K, including exhibits, and any
amendments to those reports filed or furnished with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We
make these reports available through our web site as soon as reasonably practicable after our electronic filing of such materials with, or the furnishing of them
to, the SEC. The information contained or incorporated on our web site is not a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

We and our Affiliates face a variety of risks that are substantial and inherent in our businesses, including those related to markets, liquidity, credit,
operational, legal and regulatory risks. The following are some of the more important factors that could affect our and our Affiliates’ businesses. Certain
statements in “Risk Factors” are forward-looking statements. See “Forward-Looking Statements.”

Our financial results depend on the receipt of asset based and performance fees by our Affiliates, and are impacted by changes in our total assets under
management as well as the relative levels of assets under management among our Affiliates.

Our financial results depend on the receipt of investment management fees by our Affiliates. Asset based fees are primarily based on a percentage of the
value of assets under management, and vary with the nature of the account or product managed. In certain instances, our Affiliates are paid fees based on
investment performance on an absolute basis or relative to a benchmark and, as such, are directly dependent upon investment results that may vary
substantially from year to year. The total level of our assets under management generally or with particular Affiliates could be adversely affected by
conditions outside of our control, including:

• a decline in market value of such assets, including due to exchange rate fluctuations, or declines in the capital markets and in the equity markets in
particular;

• changes in investor risk tolerance or investment preferences such as the recent growth in passively managed products including index and exchange
traded funds, which could result in investor allocations away from active return-oriented strategies offered by our Affiliates;

• our Affiliates’ ability to maintain existing advisory relationships and fee structures; 

• our or our Affiliates’ ability to market products and services, which may be impacted by volatility in the capital markets or in the prices of securities;

• the ability to market products and services available through AMG Funds;

• unanticipated changes in currency exchange rates, interest rates, inflation rates, or the yield curve;

• global economic conditions, exacerbated by changes in the equity or debt marketplaces;

• financial crises, political or diplomatic developments, war, terrorism or natural disasters; and

• other factors that are difficult to predict.

A reduction in our assets under management would adversely affect the fees payable to our Affiliates and, ultimately, our results of operations and
financial condition. Further, our structured partnership interests are tailored to meet the needs of each Affiliate and are therefore varied, and our revenue and
profitability may be adversely affected by changes in the relative performance and the relative levels of assets under management among our Affiliates,
independent of overall effective fee rates and our total level of assets under management.  Additionally, certain Affiliates contribute significantly to our
earnings and, therefore, changes in the assets under management at such Affiliates for any of the above reasons could have a disproportionate adverse impact
on our earnings. 

Our growth strategy depends upon the continued growth of our existing Affiliates and upon making investments in new boutique investment management
firms or additional investments in existing Affiliates.

Our Affiliates may not maintain their respective levels of performance or contribute to our growth at their historical or currently anticipated levels. Also,
our Affiliates may be unable to carry out their management succession plans, which may adversely affect their operations and revenue streams and thus our
results of operations.

Our continued success in investing in boutique investment management firms will depend upon our ability to find suitable firms in which to invest or
make additional investments in existing Affiliates, our ability to negotiate agreements with such firms on acceptable terms and our ability to raise the capital
necessary to finance such transactions. We cannot be certain that we will be successful in making investments in such firms or that they will have favorable
operating results following our investment, which could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Historically, equity markets and our common stock have been volatile.

The market price of our common stock has experienced and may continue to experience volatility, and the broader equity markets have experienced and
may again experience significant price and volume fluctuations. In addition, our announcements
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of our quarterly financial and operating results, including changes in net client cash flows and assets under management, changes in our financial guidance or
our failure to meet such guidance, changes in general conditions in the economy or the financial markets and other developments affecting us, our Affiliates
or our competitors, as well as geopolitical, regulatory, economic, and business factors unrelated to us, could cause the market price of our common stock to
fluctuate substantially.

If our reputation is harmed, we could suffer losses in our business and financial results.

Our business depends on earning and maintaining the trust and confidence of our Affiliates and our stockholders. Our reputation is critical to our business
and is vulnerable to threats that may be difficult or impossible to control, and costly or impossible to remediate. For example, failure to comply with
applicable laws, rules or regulations, errors in our public reports or litigation against us or any of our Affiliates, or the publicity surrounding these events,
even if satisfactorily addressed, could adversely impact our reputation, our relationships with our Affiliates and our ability to negotiate agreements with new
investment management firms, which could negatively impact our financial condition and results of operations.     

Our and our Affiliates’ businesses are highly regulated.

Our and our Affiliates’ businesses are subject to complex and extensive regulation by various regulatory and self-regulatory authorities and exchanges in
jurisdictions around the world, as detailed in “Government Regulation” in Item 1. This regulatory environment may be altered without notice by new laws or
regulations, revisions to existing laws or regulations or new or revised interpretations, guidance or enforcement priorities. These laws and regulations impose
requirements, restrictions and limitations on our and our Affiliates’ businesses, and compliance with these laws and regulations results in significant cost and
expense. Any determination of a failure to comply with laws or regulations could result in disciplinary or enforcement action with penalties that may include
the disgorgement of fees, fines, suspensions or censure of individual employees or revocation or limitation of business activities or registration. Further, if we
or any of our Affiliates were to fail to comply with applicable laws, rules or regulations or be named as a subject of an investigation or other regulatory
action, the public announcement and potential publicity surrounding any such investigation or action could have a material adverse effect on our stock price
and result in increased costs even if we or our Affiliates were found not to have violated such laws, rules or regulations. The failure to satisfy regulatory
requirements could subject us or our Affiliates to civil liability, criminal liability or sanctions that might materially impact our or our Affiliates’ businesses.
Further, some of these laws and regulations limit the types of activities in which we or our Affiliates may engage, and any failure to manage our respective
businesses to ensure compliance with applicable regulations and to avoid becoming subject to additional regulations could have a material adverse effect on
our and our Affiliates’ businesses. As investment advisers, our Affiliates and AMG Funds are subject to numerous obligations, fiduciary duties and other
regulatory requirements, where non-compliance could result in censure or termination of adviser status, litigation or reputational harm, any of which could
have a material adverse effect on our stock price and results of operations.

In the U.S., the new presidential administration may significantly alter current regulation, including the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act, which may create uncertainty, or change the requirements applicable to our and our Affiliates’ businesses. Rulemaking under the Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act continues to drive regulation in our industry for the time being, with new rules imposing additional
restrictions and limitations on our and our Affiliates’ businesses. Rulemaking proposed by the SEC has created additional reporting requirements for advisers
and funds, and additional requirements for mutual funds in the areas of liquidity management. For example, if the new administration proceeds with the
derivatives rule proposal, and that rule is adopted as proposed, it could negatively impact our Affiliates’ ability to manage certain products. Further,
rulemaking by the Department of Labor in 2016 extends the application of fiduciary duty standards under ERISA to brokers and other intermediaries in the
context of retirement advice. If the Department of Labor proceeds with implementation of the new fiduciary rule, that rule may impact the way retirement
products are sold and could negatively impact the distribution of Affiliate products into that channel.

Changes in laws or regulatory requirements, or the interpretation or application of such laws and regulatory requirements by regulatory authorities, may
occur with short or no notice, and could have a material adverse impact on our and our Affiliates’ financial results and mode of operations. Globally,
proposals have called for more stringent regulation of the financial services industry in which we and our Affiliates operate, which may make it more likely
that changes will occur that could adversely affect our and our Affiliates’ businesses, increase compliance costs, require that we or our Affiliates curtail
operations or investment offerings, or impact our access to capital and the market for our common stock. Regulators continue to consider whether asset
managers or funds, or certain asset management products or activities, should be designated as systemically important, and therefore subject to additional
regulation. In the UK and Europe, our and our Affiliates’ businesses may be impacted by financial services reform initiatives enacted or under consideration
in the European Union, and by the UK’s vote on the referendum to exit the European Union, which could impact our or our Affiliates’ ability to conduct
operations pursuant to a European passport. These new laws and regulations may also result in increased compliance costs and expenses, and non-compliance
may result in fines and penalties.
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Our and our Affiliates’ international operations are subject to foreign risks, including political, regulatory, economic and currency risks.

We and certain of our Affiliates operate offices or advise clients outside the U.S., and several Affiliates are based outside the U.S. Accordingly, we and
certain of our Affiliates are subject to risks inherent in doing business internationally, in addition to the risks our businesses face more generally. These risks
may include changes in applicable laws and regulatory requirements, difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations, longer payment cycles,
difficulties in collecting investment advisory fees receivable, different (and in some cases less stringent) legal, regulatory and accounting regimes, political
instability, fluctuations in currency exchange rates, expatriation controls, expropriation risks and potential adverse tax consequences. In the UK, for example,
our and our Affiliates’ businesses may be impacted by the UK’s vote on the referendum to exit the European Union. In addition, we and certain of our
Affiliates are required to maintain minimum levels of capital, and such capital requirements may be increased from time to time, which may have the effect of
limiting withdrawals of capital, repayment of intercompany loans and payment of distributions to us by these Affiliates. These or other risks related to our and
our Affiliates’ non-U.S. operations may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Failure to comply with the applicable laws, rules, regulations, codes, directives, notices or guidelines in any jurisdiction outside of the U.S. could result in
a wide range of penalties and disciplinary actions, including fines, censures and the suspension or expulsion from a particular jurisdiction or market or the
revocation of licenses, any of which could adversely affect our or our Affiliates’ reputations and operations. Regulators in jurisdictions outside of the U.S.
could also change their policies or laws in a manner that might restrict or otherwise impede the ability to offer our Affiliates’ investment products and
services in their respective markets, or we or our Affiliates may be unable to keep up with, or adapt to, the ever-changing, complex regulatory requirements in
such jurisdictions or markets, which could further negatively impact our business.

Changes in tax laws or exposure to additional income tax liabilities could have a material impact on our financial condition, results of operations and
liquidity.

We are subject to income taxes as well as non-income-based taxes in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions. Tax laws, regulations and administrative
practices in various jurisdictions may be subject to significant change, with or without notice, and significant judgment is required in estimating and
evaluating our tax provision and accruals.  Our effective tax rates could be affected by a change in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax
rates, as well as changes in foreign currency exchange rates, changes to our existing business and changes in relevant tax, accounting or other laws,
regulations, administrative practices and interpretations.  We are subject to ongoing tax examinations by various tax authorities and may be subject to future
tax examinations.  We regularly assess the likely outcomes of these examinations in order to determine the appropriateness of our tax provision.  However, tax
authorities may disagree with certain positions we have taken and may assess additional taxes and/or penalties and interest.  There can be no assurance that
we will accurately predict the outcomes of these examinations and the actual outcomes could have a material impact on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Future changes in U.S. or foreign tax laws, including those with retroactive effect, could materially impact our effective tax rate, overall tax expense and
cash flow.  The U.S. Congress and other government agencies in jurisdictions in which we do business have maintained a focus on the taxation of
multinational companies.  Proposals for fundamental U.S. corporate tax reform call for significant changes to the taxation of corporate profits and foreign
earnings.  If enacted, the proposed reforms could materially affect the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, the future deductibility of our interest
expense and intangible assets, and the rates at which our foreign earnings would be taxed in the U.S.  While the prospects for U.S. tax reform are uncertain,
the current proposals being considered could have a significant impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our Affiliates’ autonomy limits our ability to alter their management practices and policies, and we may be held responsible for liabilities incurred by
certain of them.

Although our agreements with Affiliates typically give us the authority to control and/or vote with respect to certain of their business activities, we
generally are not directly involved in managing our Affiliates’ day-to-day activities, including investment management policies and procedures, fee levels,
marketing, product development, client relationships, employment and compensation programs and compliance activities. As a consequence, our financial
condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by problems stemming from the day-to-day operations of our Affiliates, where weaknesses or
failures in internal processes or systems, legal or regulatory matters, or other operational challenges could lead to a disruption of our Affiliates’ operations,
liability to their clients, exposure to claims or disciplinary action or reputational harm.

Some of our Affiliates are limited liability companies or limited partnerships (or equivalent non-U.S. forms) of which we, or entities controlled by us, are
the general partner or managing member. Consequently, to the extent that any of these Affiliates
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incur liabilities or expenses that exceed their ability to pay for them, we may be directly or indirectly liable for their payment. Similarly, an Affiliate’s
payment of distributions to us may be subject to claims by potential creditors, and an Affiliate may default on distributions that are payable to us. In addition,
with respect to each of these Affiliates, we may be held liable in some circumstances as a control person for the acts of the Affiliate or its employees. Our
Affiliates also may face various claims, litigation or complaints from time to time and we cannot predict the eventual outcome of such matters, some of which
may be resolved in a manner unfavorable to us or our Affiliates, or whether any matters could become material to a particular Affiliate or us in any reporting
period. While we and our Affiliates maintain errors and omissions and general liability insurance in amounts believed to be adequate to cover certain potential
liabilities, we cannot be certain that we will not have claims that exceed the limits of available insurance coverage, that the insurers will remain solvent and
will meet their obligations to provide coverage or that insurance coverage will continue to be available to us and our Affiliates with sufficient limits and at a
reasonable cost. A judgment in excess of available insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

The agreed-upon expense allocation under our structured partnership interests in which we share in the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses
may not be large enough to pay for all of the respective Affiliate’s operating expenses.

In our typical structured partnership interests, the Affiliate allocates a specified percentage of Owners’ Allocation to us, while using the remainder of
Owners’ Allocation along with the Operating Allocation for operating expenses and for distributions to Affiliate management. Our structured partnership
interests, and these agreed allocations, may not anticipate changes in the revenue and operating expense base of the Affiliate, and the revenue remaining after
our Owners’ Allocation may not be large enough to cover all of the Affiliate’s operating expenses. While our distributions generally have priority, we may
elect to defer or forgo the receipt of our share of the Affiliate’s revenue to permit the Affiliate to fund such operating expenses, with the aim of maximizing
the long-term benefits. We cannot be certain that any such deferral or forbearance would be of any greater benefit to us, and such a deferral or forbearance
may have an adverse effect on our near- or long-term financial condition and results of operations. Further, unanticipated changes in revenue, operating
expenses or other commitments could leave the Affiliate with a shortfall in remaining funds for distribution to us or to Affiliate management, which may have
an adverse effect on our financial condition generally and on our results of operations for the applicable reporting period.

When our structured partnership interest is calculated by reference to the Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses, we have direct exposure
to fluctuations in revenue and operating expenses.

In the case of our structured partnership interests that are calculated by reference to an Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses, we are
allocated a set percentage of the Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses, thereby participating in any increases or decreases in both revenue and
the expenses that are included in the calculation. This structure allows us to benefit from any increase in revenue or any decrease in the expenses that are
included in the calculation, but also directly exposes us to any decrease in revenue or any increase in such expenses, which we may not anticipate and which
could be significant. Further, the impact of such decreases and increases in revenue or expenses at these Affiliates on our earnings and our stock price could
increase if the portion of our earnings derived from such Affiliates increases.

We may restructure our relationships with Affiliates, and cannot be certain that any such restructurings will benefit us in the near- or long-term.

From time to time we may restructure our relationships with our Affiliates, which could, among other things, include changes to our structured
partnership interests, including the calculation of our share of revenue and/or operating expenses. Such restructurings may be done in order to address an
Affiliate’s succession planning, changes in their operating expense base, strategic planning or other developments. Any restructuring of our interest in an
Affiliate may result in additional investments from us or a reduction of our interest in the Affiliate, and could impact our share of the Affiliate’s revenue
and/or operating expenses. Any such restructurings could have an adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our industry is highly competitive.

Our Affiliates compete with a broad range of domestic and foreign investment management firms, including public, private and client-owned investment
advisors, firms managing passive strategies as well other firms managing active return-oriented strategies, firms associated with securities broker-dealers,
financial institutions, insurance companies, private equity firms, sovereign wealth funds and other entities that serve our three principal distribution channels.
This competition may reduce the fees that our Affiliates can obtain for investment management services. We believe that our Affiliates’ ability to compete
effectively with other firms depends upon our Affiliates’ strategies, investment performance, reputations, and client-servicing capabilities, and the marketing
and distribution of their investment strategies, among other factors. See “Competition” in Item 1. Our Affiliates may not compare favorably with their
competitors in any or all of these categories. From time to time, our
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Affiliates may also compete with each other for clients. Further, our Affiliates’ ability to compete with other investment management firms also depends, in
part, on the relative attractiveness of their investment strategies, market trends, fees or a combination of these factors. Our Affiliates represent a diverse group
of boutique investment management firms with predominantly active return-oriented strategies, rather than indexing strategies, exchange traded funds, fixed
income or money market products, which typically carry lower fee rates. Changes in investor risk tolerance or investment preferences, such as recent growth
in passively managed products including index and exchange traded funds, could result in investor allocation away from active return-oriented strategies.

The market for acquisitions of interests in boutique investment management firms is highly competitive. Many other public and private financial services
companies, including commercial and investment banks, private equity firms, sovereign wealth funds, insurance companies and investment management
firms, which may have significantly greater resources than we do, also invest in or buy boutique investment management firms. Further, our innovative
partnership approach with our Affiliates is designed to provide enhanced incentives for management owners while enabling us to protect our interests,
including through structured partnership interests and long-term employment agreements with key members of the firm. Target investment management firms
may prefer investments in their firms under terms and structures offered by our competitors. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to compete effectively
with such companies, that new competitors will not enter the market or that such competition will not make it more difficult or not feasible for us to maintain
existing investments or to make new investments in boutique investment management firms.

The failure to consummate announced investments in new investment management firms could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

Consummation of our announced investments is generally subject to a number of closing conditions, contingencies and approvals, including but not
limited to obtaining certain consents of the investment management firms’ clients and applicable regulatory approvals. In the event that an announced
transaction is not consummated, we may experience a decline in the price of our common stock to the extent that the then-current market price reflects a
market assumption that we will complete the announced transaction. In addition, the fact that a transaction did not close after we announced it publicly may
negatively affect our ability and prospects to consummate transactions in the future. Finally, we must pay costs related to these investments, including
transaction fees, even if the investments are not completed, which may have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We expect that we will need to raise additional capital in the future, and existing or future resources may not be available to us in sufficient amounts or
on acceptable terms.

While we believe that our existing cash resources and cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet our working capital needs for normal
operations for the foreseeable future, our continuing acquisitions of interests in new boutique investment management firms and additional investments in
existing Affiliates may require additional capital. Further, we are contingently liable to make additional purchase payments (of up to $396.9 million through
2019) upon the achievement of specified financial targets in connection with certain of our prior acquisitions. As of December 31, 2016, we expected to make
payments of $10.3 million ($3.0 million in 2017) to settle such obligations. We also have committed to co-invest in certain investment partnerships, which
commitments may be called in future periods.

Subject to certain limitations, majority-owned Affiliate equity interests generally provide holders the conditional right to put equity interests to us over
time. Because these obligations are conditional and dependent upon the individual equity holder’s decision to sell his or her equity, it is difficult to predict the
frequency and magnitude of these repurchases (our Redeemable non-controlling interests balance at December 31, 2016 was $673.5 million). We may also
call all or a portion of these equity interests upon, among other events, the termination of an equity holder’s employment, although these rights may be limited
or suspended in certain circumstances. These obligations may require more cash than is then available from operations. Thus, we may need to raise capital by
making additional borrowings or by selling shares of our common stock or other equity or debt securities, or to otherwise refinance a portion of these
obligations.

As of December 31, 2016, we had outstanding total debt of $2.3 billion. Our level of indebtedness may increase if we fund one or more future
acquisitions through borrowings under our credit facilities. This additional indebtedness could increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and
industry conditions and would require us to dedicate a greater portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness.

The financing activities described above could increase our interest expense, decrease our net income (controlling interest) or dilute the interests of our
existing stockholders. In addition, our access to further capital, and the cost of capital we are able to access, is influenced by a number of factors, including
the state of global credit and equity markets, interest rates, credit spreads and our credit ratings. We are rated A3 by Moody’s Investors Service and BBB+
with a positive outlook by S&P Global Ratings. The rating agencies could decide to modify their outlook or downgrade our ratings or the entire investment
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management industry, thereby making it difficult to access capital markets. In addition, a reduction in our credit rating could increase our borrowing costs.

Our debt agreements impose certain covenants relating to the conduct of our business, including financial covenants under our credit facilities, and, if
amounts borrowed or outstanding under these agreements were subject to accelerated repayment, we may not have sufficient assets or liquidity to repay
such amounts in full.

Our credit facilities require us to maintain specified financial ratios, including a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio, and also
contain customary affirmative operating covenants and negative covenants that, among other things, place certain limitations on our and our subsidiaries’
ability to incur debt, merge or transfer assets and on our ability to create liens. The indentures governing our senior notes also contain restrictions on our
ability to merge or transfer assets and on our ability to create liens. The breach of any covenant (either due to our actions or, in the case of financial covenants,
due to a significant and prolonged market driven decline in our operating results) could result in a default under the applicable debt agreement. In the event of
any such default, lenders that are party to the credit facilities could refuse to make further extensions of credit to us. Further, in the event of certain defaults,
amounts borrowed under the credit facilities and/or outstanding under the senior notes, together with accrued interest and other fees, could become
immediately due and payable. If any indebtedness under the credit facilities or the indentures governing the senior notes was subject to accelerated
repayment, we may not have sufficient liquid assets to repay such indebtedness in full.

We have substantial intangibles on our balance sheet, and any impairment of our intangibles could adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations.

At December 31, 2016, our total assets were $8.7 billion, of which $4.1 billion were intangible assets, and $3.4 billion were equity method investments in
Affiliates, an amount primarily composed of intangible assets. We cannot be certain that we will realize the value of such intangible assets. An impairment of
our intangible assets or an other-than-temporary decline in the value of our equity investments could adversely affect our financial condition and results of
operations.

We and our Affiliates rely on certain key personnel and cannot guarantee their continued service.

We depend on the efforts of our executive officers and our other officers and employees. Our executive officers, in particular, play an important role in
the stability and growth of our existing Affiliates and in identifying potential investment opportunities. We do not have employment agreements with our
executive officers, although each has a significant deferred equity interest in the Company and is subject to non-solicitation and non-competitive restrictions
that may be triggered upon their departure. However, there is no guarantee that these officers will remain with the Company.

In addition, our Affiliates depend heavily on the services of key principals, who in many cases have managed their firms for many years. These principals
often are primarily responsible for their firm’s investment decisions. Although we use a combination of economic incentives, transfer restrictions and, in some
instances, non-solicitation and employment agreements in an effort to retain key management personnel, there is no guarantee that these principals will
remain with their firms. Since certain Affiliates contribute significantly to our revenue, the loss of key management personnel at these Affiliates could have a
disproportionately adverse impact on our business.

Investment management contracts are subject to termination on short notice.

Through our Affiliates, we derive almost all of our revenue from clients pursuant to investment management contracts. While certain Affiliates’ private
equity and alternative products have long-term commitment periods, many of our Affiliates’ investment management contracts are terminable by the client
without penalty upon relatively short notice (typically not longer than 60 days) and may not be assignable without consent. We cannot be certain that our
Affiliates will be able to retain their existing clients or attract new clients. If their clients withdraw a substantial amount of funds, it is likely to harm our
results of operations. In addition, investment management contracts with mutual funds are subject to annual approval by each fund’s board of directors.

Our or our Affiliates’ controls and procedures and risk management policies may be inadequate, fail or be circumvented, and procedures may be
inadequate, and operational risk could adversely affect our or our Affiliates’ reputation and financial position.

We and our Affiliates have adopted various controls, procedures, policies and systems to monitor and manage risk in our and their businesses. While we
currently believe that our and our Affiliates’ operational controls are effective, we cannot provide assurance that those controls, procedures, policies and
systems will always be adequate to identify and manage the internal and external risks in our and our Affiliates’ various businesses. Furthermore, we or our
Affiliates may have errors in business processes or fail to implement proper procedures in operating our or their businesses, which may expose us or our
Affiliates to risk of financial loss or failure to comply with a regulatory requirement. We and our Affiliates are also subject to
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the risk that employees or contractors, or other third parties, may deliberately seek to circumvent established controls to commit fraud or act in ways that are
inconsistent with our or our Affiliates’ controls, policies and procedures. The financial and reputational impact of control failures can be significant.

In addition, our and our Affiliates’ businesses and the markets in which we and our Affiliates operate are continuously evolving. If our or our Affiliates’
risk framework is ineffective, either because of a failure to keep pace with changes in the financial markets, regulatory requirements, our or our Affiliates’
businesses, counterparties, clients or service providers or for other reasons, we or our Affiliates could incur losses, suffer reputational damage or be out of
compliance with applicable regulatory or contractual mandates or expectations.

Provisions in our organizational documents, Delaware law and our debt agreements could delay or prevent a change in control of our company.

Provisions in our charter and by-laws and anti-takeover provisions under Delaware law could discourage, delay or prevent an unsolicited change in
control of the Company. These provisions may also have the effect of making it more difficult for third parties to replace our executive officers without the
consent of our Board of Directors. Provisions in our charter and by-laws that could delay or prevent an unsolicited change in control include:

• the ability of our Board of Directors to issue preferred stock and to determine the terms, rights and preferences of the preferred stock without
stockholder approval; and

• the prohibition on the right of stockholders to call meetings or act by written consent and limitations on the right of stockholders to present proposals
or make nominations at stockholder meetings.

Delaware law also imposes restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and any holder of 15 percent or more of our outstanding
common stock. In addition, our credit facilities and the indentures governing our senior notes contain various covenants that limit our ability, among other
things, to consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets. Further, given our long-term partnership approach, which is
designed to preserve our Affiliates’ investment and operational autonomy and independence, a change in control may also be viewed negatively by our
Affiliates, impacting their relationships with us.

These anti-takeover provisions and other factors may inhibit a change in control in circumstances that could give our stockholders the opportunity to
realize a premium over the market price of our common stock, and may result in negative impacts on our financial results in periods following a change in
control.

The sale or issuance of substantial amounts of our common stock, or the expectation that such sales or issuances will occur, could adversely impact the
price of our common stock.

The sale or issuance of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market could adversely impact its price. In connection with our financing
activities, we have issued securities and entered into contracts, including our junior convertible trust preferred securities and equity distribution program, that
may result in the issuance of our common stock upon the occurrence of certain events. We also have exercisable options outstanding and unvested restricted
stock that have been awarded under our share-based incentive plans. Additionally, we have the right to settle certain Affiliate equity repurchase obligations
with shares of our common stock. Moreover, in connection with future financing activities, we may issue additional convertible securities or shares of our
common stock, including through forward equity transactions. Any such issuance of shares of our common stock could have the effect of substantially
diluting the interests of our current equity holders. In the event that a large number of shares of our common stock are sold or issued in the public market, or
the expectation that such sales or issuances will occur, the price of our common stock may decline as a result.

Failure to maintain and properly safeguard an adequate technology infrastructure may limit our or our Affiliates’ growth, result in losses or disrupt our
or our Affiliates’ businesses.

Our and our Affiliates’ businesses are reliant upon financial, accounting and technology systems and networks to process, transmit and store information,
including sensitive client and proprietary information, and to conduct many business activities and transactions with clients, advisors, vendors and other third
parties. The failure to implement, maintain and safeguard an infrastructure commensurate with the size and scope of our and our Affiliates’ businesses could
impede productivity and growth, which could adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations. Further, we and our Affiliates rely on third
parties for certain aspects of our respective businesses, including financial intermediaries and technology infrastructure and service providers, including
brokers, custodians, administrators and other agents, and these parties are also susceptible to similar risks.
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Although we and our Affiliates take protective measures and endeavor to modify them as circumstances warrant, computer systems, software, networks
and mobile devices, and those of third parties on whom we and our Affiliates rely, may be vulnerable to cyber-attacks, breaches, unauthorized access, theft,
misuse, computer viruses or other malicious code and other events that could have a security impact. If any such events occur, it could jeopardize
confidential, proprietary or other sensitive information of ours, our Affiliates and our respective clients, employees or counterparties that may be stored in, or
transmitted through, internal or third-party computer systems, networks and mobile devices, or could otherwise cause interruptions or malfunctions in our and
our Affiliates’ operations or those of our respective clients or counterparties. Despite efforts to ensure the integrity of systems and networks, it is possible that
we, our Affiliates or third-party service providers may not be able to anticipate or to implement effective preventive measures against all threats, especially
because the techniques used change frequently and can originate from a wide variety of sources. As a result, we or our Affiliates could experience disruption,
significant losses, increased costs, reputational harm, regulatory actions or legal liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. We or our Affiliates may be required to spend significant additional resources to modify protective measures or to
investigate and remediate vulnerabilities or other exposures, and we or our Affiliates may be subject to litigation and financial losses that are either not
insured against fully or not fully covered through any insurance that we or our Affiliates maintain. Further, recent well-publicized security breaches at other
companies have led to enhanced government and regulatory scrutiny of the measures taken by companies to protect against cyber-attacks, and may in the
future result in heightened cyber security requirements, including additional regulatory expectations for oversight of vendors and service providers.

Our financial results could be adversely affected by the financial stability of other financial institutions.

We and our Affiliates routinely execute transactions with various counterparties in the financial services industry. Historical market volatility highlights
the interconnection of the global markets and demonstrates how the deteriorating financial condition of one or more institutions may materially and adversely
impact the performance of other institutions. We and our Affiliates may be exposed to credit, operational or other risk in the event that a counterparty with
whom we or our Affiliates transact defaults on its obligations, or if there are other unrelated systemic failures in the markets.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We conduct our operations around the world using a combination of leased and owned facilities. While we believe we have suitable property resources
currently, we will continue to evaluate our property needs and will complement these resources as necessary.

Our principal offices are located at 777 South Flagler Drive, West Palm Beach, Florida; 600 Hale Street, Prides Crossing, Massachusetts; and 35 Park
Lane, London, England. We also lease offices in Greenwich, Connecticut; Conshohocken, Pennsylvania; Sydney, Australia; Toronto, Canada; Zurich,
Switzerland; Hong Kong; and Dubai, United Arab Emirates. In addition, each of our Affiliates leases office space in the city or cities in which it conducts
business, as appropriate for their respective business needs from time to time.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we and our Affiliates may be parties to various claims, suits, complaints and regulatory inquiries, certain of which are described in the
notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements. Currently, there are no such claims, suits, complaints or regulatory inquiries against us or our Affiliates that,
in our opinion, would have a material adverse effect on our financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (symbol: AMG). The following table sets forth the high and low prices as reported on the
New York Stock Exchange since January 1, 2015 for the periods indicated.

  High  Low

2015     
First quarter  $ 221.46  $ 191.36
Second quarter  230.63  211.98
Third quarter  221.80  164.54
Fourth quarter  190.74  141.68
2016     
First quarter  $ 165.10  $ 115.97
Second quarter  179.85  131.16
Third quarter  148.70  131.02
Fourth quarter  162.85  130.48

The closing price for a share of our common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange on February 21, 2017 was $170.91. As of February 21,
2017, there were 18 stockholders of record, including banks, brokers and other financial institutions holding shares in omnibus accounts for their customers
(in total representing substantially all of the beneficial holders of our common stock).

On January 30, 2017, we announced the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend program, and declared a $0.20 per share cash dividend. We paid the initial
dividend on February 23, 2017 to all holders of record of our common stock as of February 9, 2017. We expect to continue paying quarterly cash dividends,
although the declaration of future dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Board of Directors authorized share repurchase programs in January 2017 and May 2015, authorizing us to repurchase up to 1.9 million and 3.0
million shares of our common stock, respectively, which do not expire. Purchases may be made from time to time, at management's discretion, in the open
market or in privately negotiated transactions, including through the use of derivative instruments. Upon the January 2017 authorization, we had 4.0 million
total shares available for repurchase under the share repurchase programs.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative stockholder return on our common stock from December 31, 2011 through December 31, 2016, with the
cumulative total return, during the same period, on the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and a peer group comprising AllianceBernstein Holding L.P., Ameriprise
Financial, Inc., BlackRock, Inc., Eaton Vance Corp., Franklin Resources, Inc., Invesco Ltd., Legg Mason, Inc., T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. and Waddell &
Reed Financial, Inc. The comparison assumes the investment of $100 on December 31, 2011 in our common stock and each of the comparison indices and, in
each case, assumes reinvestment of all dividends.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected financial data for the last five years. This data should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by
reference to, the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

  For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions, except as noted and per share data)  2012(1)  2013(1)  2014(1)  2015(1)  2016

Operating Measures           
Assets under management (at period end, in billions)  $ 431.8  $ 537.3  $ 620.2  $ 611.3  $ 688.7
Average assets under management (in billions)  381.2  483.8  585.9  623.9  655.6
           

Consolidated Affiliate average assets under management (in billions)  $ 276.2  $ 334.8  $ 387.8  $ 396.4  $ 373.4
Equity method Affiliate average assets under management (in billions)  105.0  149.0  198.1  227.5  282.2
           

Revenue  $ 1,805.5  $ 2,188.8  $ 2,510.9  $ 2,484.5  $ 2,194.6
Equity method revenue  909.3  1,718.6  1,692.2  1,655.6  2,101.7
Financial Performance Measures           
Net income (controlling interest)  $ 157.0  $ 338.8  $ 433.9  $ 509.5  $ 472.8
Earnings per share (diluted)  $ 2.96  $ 6.17  $ 7.70  $ 9.17  $ 8.57
Supplemental Financial Performance Measures           
Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest)(2)  $ 543.4  $ 819.9  $ 900.8  $ 942.2  $ 945.5
Economic net income (controlling interest)(2)  393.6  549.8  629.2  687.2  703.6
Economic earnings per share(2)  $ 7.42  $ 9.94  $ 11.18  $ 12.47  $ 12.84
Balance Sheet Data           
Total assets  $ 6,161.4  $ 6,300.3  $ 7,683.5  $ 7,769.4  $ 8,749.1
Long-term debt  1,604.9  1,365.2  1,880.3  1,879.4  2,109.6
Redeemable non-controlling interests  477.5  641.9  645.5  612.5  673.5
Total equity  3,041.4  3,144.6  3,643.2  3,769.1  4,426.5
__________________________

(1) We have revised our prior period financial statements to correct for an immaterial error. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 for
previously reported amounts for the annual periods ended December 31, 2014 and 2015. Net income (controlling interest) as previously reported for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 was $174.0 million and $360.5 million, respectively, and Earnings per share (diluted) was $3.28 and $6.55,
respectively. Economic net income (controlling interest) as previously reported for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013 was $408.8 million and
$570.1 million, respectively, and Economic earnings per share was $7.71 and $10.31, respectively.

(2) Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest) and Economic net income (controlling interest), including Economic earnings per share, are non-GAAP
performance measures and are discussed in “Supplemental Financial Performance Measures” in Item 7.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) should be read in conjunction with the “Forward-looking Statements” section set forth in Part I and the “Risk
Factors” section set forth in Item 1A of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in any more recent filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission, each of which describes these risks, uncertainties and other important factors in more detail.

Executive Overview

The following executive overview summarizes the significant trends affecting our results of operations and financial condition. This overview and the
remainder of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and the notes thereto contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We are a global asset management company with equity investments in leading boutique investment management firms, which we refer to as our
“Affiliates.” Our innovative partnership approach allows each Affiliate’s management team to own significant equity in their firm and maintain operational
autonomy. Our strategy is to generate shareholder value through the internal growth of existing Affiliates, as well as through investments in new Affiliates,
and additional investments in existing Affiliates. In addition, we provide centralized assistance to our Affiliates in strategic matters, marketing, distribution,
product development and operations. As of December 31, 2016, our assets under management were $688.7 billion (approximately $727 billion pro forma for
investments which have since closed or are accounted for on a lag basis) in over 550 investment products across a broad range of active return-oriented
strategies and distribution channels.

We hold meaningful equity interests in each of our Affiliates. In certain cases, we own a majority of the equity interests while in other cases we own a
minority of the equity interests. When we own a majority of the equity interests of an Affiliate, we consolidate the Affiliate’s financial results in our Revenue,
Operating expenses and Other non-operating (income) and expenses. When we own a minority of the equity interests of an Affiliate, we generally use the
equity method of accounting and our share of the Affiliate’s financial results is reported (net of intangible amortization) in Income from equity method
investments.

While we account for a majority of our Affiliates on a consolidated basis of accounting, a growing number of our Affiliates are accounted for on an
equity method basis, including all of our 2016 investments in new Affiliates. As a result, equity method Affiliates represent a growing proportion of Net
income (controlling interest), as evidenced by the increase in Income from equity method investments, as compared to our consolidated Affiliates which
represent a decreasing proportion of Net income (controlling interest).

Whether we account for an Affiliate on a consolidated or equity method basis of accounting, we generally maintain the same partnership approach,
provide support and assistance in substantially the same manner, and our operating model is generally the same. Furthermore, our Affiliates are impacted by
similar marketplace factors and operational trends, which may not be observable when analyzing the financial results of consolidated and equity method
Affiliates separately. Therefore, we believe our aggregate operating measures of assets under management, average assets under management and aggregate
revenue, each of which incorporates the assets under management and revenues of all of our Affiliates regardless of the accounting treatment, have become
increasingly important in providing management and investors with a more comprehensive view of the operating performance and material trends across our
entire business. Aggregate revenue is calculated by combining the Revenue of our consolidated Affiliates with equity method revenue. We discuss both
Revenue and equity method revenue in our Results of Operations.

The following table presents our key operating measures:
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(in billions, except as noted)  2015  2016  % Change

Assets under management  $ 611.3  $ 688.7  13 %
Average assets under management  623.9  655.6  5 %
       

Consolidated Affiliate average assets under management  $ 396.4  $ 373.4  (6)%
Equity method Affiliate average assets under management  227.5  282.2  24 %
       

Revenue (in millions)  $ 2,484.5  $ 2,194.6  (12)%
Equity method revenue (in millions)(1)  1,655.6  2,101.7  27 %

__________________________

(1) Equity method revenue consists of asset based and performance fees earned by our equity method Affiliates. It is not derived from and differs from the
revenue of our equity method Affiliates reported in Note 14 to our Consolidated Financial Statements as it excludes asset based and performance fees of
our equity method Affiliates prior to the date of closing of the respective investment and does not include investment income or loss from any sponsored
investment products that may need to be consolidated by our equity method Affiliates under GAAP.

Assets under Management

Through our Affiliates, we predominantly manage active return-oriented strategies, rather than passive indexing strategies, exchange traded funds, fixed
income or money market products, which typically carry lower fee rates. The following charts provide information regarding the composition of our assets
under management by active return-oriented strategy:

Assets under Management by Strategy

__________________________

(1) Alternatives primarily include assets under management in long and short public equity, control equity, managed futures, multi-strategy, and other
alternative and hedge fund strategies, as well as energy and infrastructure investments and primary and secondary private equity strategies.  Alternative
strategies generate earnings from (i) management fees from products subject to lock-ups or similar restrictions, (ii) management fees from products not
subject to such restrictions and/or (iii) performance fees and carried interest.

(2) Global equities include emerging markets strategies, which accounted for 9% of our overall assets under management in both 2015 and 2016.
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The following table presents changes in our assets under management by active return-oriented strategy:

(in billions) Alternatives  Global Equities  U.S. Equities  
Multi-asset &

Other  Total

December 31, 2015 $ 195.5  $ 221.4  $ 110.6  $ 83.8  $ 611.3
   Client cash inflows and commitments 48.3  33.0  18.8  18.3  118.4
   Client cash outflows and realizations (28.2)  (36.5)  (31.0)  (15.3)  (111.0)
        Net client cash flows 20.1  (3.5)  (12.2)  3.0  7.4
   New investments 35.4  0.0  —  1.9  37.3
   Market changes 2.6  21.9  12.7  3.9  41.1
   Foreign exchange(1) (0.7)  (6.0)  (0.1)  (0.3)  (7.1)
   Other (0.5)  0.1  (0.9)  (0.0)  (1.3)

December 31, 2016 $ 252.4  $ 233.9  $ 110.1  $ 92.3  $ 688.7

__________________________

(1) Foreign exchange reflects the impact of translating non-U.S. dollar denominated assets under management into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes.

Also through our Affiliates, we manage active return-oriented strategies in our three principal distribution channels. The following charts provide
information regarding the composition of our assets under management by distribution channel:

Assets under Management by Distribution Channel

The following table presents changes in our assets under management by distribution channel:

(in billions)  Institutional  Mutual Fund  
High Net

Worth  Total

December 31, 2015  $ 347.5  $ 175.8  $ 88.0  $ 611.3
Client cash inflows and commitments  46.7  53.8  17.9  118.4
Client cash outflows and realizations  (46.4)  (51.1)  (13.5)  (111.0)

Net client cash flows  0.3  2.7  4.4  7.4
New investments  32.4  1.4  3.5  37.3
Market changes  22.6  15.2  3.3  41.1
Foreign exchange(1)  (1.1)  (6.2)  0.2  (7.1)
Other  (0.5)  (0.6)  (0.2)  (1.3)

December 31, 2016  $ 401.2  $ 188.3  $ 99.2  $ 688.7

__________________________

(1) Foreign exchange reflects the impact of translating non-U.S. dollar denominated assets under management into U.S. dollars for reporting purposes.

20



Table of Contents

Our assets under management increased $77.4 billion or 13% in 2016. This increase was due to an increase of $41.1 billion from market changes,
principally in our Institutional and Mutual Fund distribution channels and primarily in global and U.S. equity strategies. The increase in assets under
management was also due to a $37.3 billion increase from the addition of new equity method Affiliates, which primarily offer alternative strategies,
principally in our Institutional distribution channel. We believe boutique investment management firms will continue to seek a long-term institutional partner
with global scale and a long track record of success. We are well positioned to execute on opportunities to invest in leading traditional and alternative firms
around the world, and believe that the transaction environment remains favorable.

The increase in assets under management in 2016 was also the result of a $7.4 billion increase from net client cash inflows, primarily in our High Net
Worth and Mutual Fund distribution channels. This increase from net client cash inflows was primarily in alternative strategies, partially offset by net client
cash outflows in our U.S. equity strategies and to a lesser extent global equity strategies. The increases in assets under management was partially offset by a
$7.1 billion decrease from changes in foreign exchange and a $1.3 billion decrease from other changes.

Notwithstanding the recent growth in passively managed products industrywide, we continue to see meaningful client demand for active return-oriented
strategies, as evidenced by our positive net client cash flows in 2016. In particular, we believe our positive net client cash flows in alternative strategies and
multi-asset strategies were a reflection of continued investor demand for returns that are less correlated to traditional equity and fixed income markets. We
expect client demand for alternative and multi-asset strategies to continue, and believe the best-performing active equity managers (whether global-, regional-
or country-specific) will continue to have significant opportunities to grow from net client cash inflows. We believe we are well-positioned to benefit further
from these trends.

The previously discussed changes in assets under management, and the timing of those changes, increased our average assets under management by
$31.7 billion or 5% in 2016. Average assets under management reflects the particular billing patterns of products and client accounts and includes new
Affiliates on a weighted average basis from the closing date of each investment. The increase in average assets under management in 2016 was primarily due
to a 24% increase in average assets under management at equity method Affiliates, partially offset by a 6% decrease in average assets under management at
consolidated Affiliates.

Aggregate Revenue

Our aggregate revenue is generally determined by the level of our average assets under management and the composition of our assets across our
distribution channels and active return-oriented strategies. The 5% increase in our average assets under management in 2016 contributed to a 4% increase in
our aggregate revenue. The increase in aggregate revenue was primarily due to an increase in equity method revenue of $446.1 million or 27%, principally
due to an increase in average assets under management at equity method Affiliates. In 2016, we made investments in several new Affiliates which are
accounted for under the equity method and continued to experience net client cash inflows into our alternative strategies and to a lesser extent multi-asset
strategies at our equity method Affiliates. The increase in aggregate revenue was partially offset by a $289.9 million or 12% decrease in revenue at our
consolidated Affiliates primarily due to a decrease in average assets under management at our consolidated Affiliates where we experienced outflows in our
U.S. equity strategies and to a lesser extent global equity strategies. These outflows were principally in our Mutual Fund products which have higher fee rates
and, therefore, not only contributed to a decrease in consolidated Affiliate average assets under management, but also resulted in a decrease in our ratio of
average fees (calculated by dividing aggregate revenue by average assets under management). Our ratio of average fees also declined from a reduction in
asset based fees related to renewal commissions as a result of a regulatory change affecting one of our UK-based Affiliates.

Financial Performance and Supplemental Performance Measures

The following table presents our key financial performance and supplemental performance measures:

(in millions)  2015  2016  % Change

Net income (controlling interest)  $ 509.5  $ 472.8  (7)%
Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest)(1)  942.2  945.5  0 %
Economic net income (controlling interest)(1)  687.2  703.6  2 %

__________________________

(1) Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest) and Economic net income (controlling interest) are non-GAAP performance measures and are discussed in
“Supplemental Financial Performance Measures.”
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We believe Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest) is an important supplemental financial performance measure for our management and investors.
Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest) provides a comprehensive view of our share of the financial performance of our entire business before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization and impairments, regardless of the accounting treatment of our Affiliates. Conversely, our GAAP financial performance
measure, operating income, includes the non-controlling interests’ share of financial performance and does not include our share of earnings from our equity
method Affiliates. Similarly, our GAAP financial performance measure, Income before income taxes, includes the non-controlling interests’ share of financial
performance.

Our ownership level of consolidated Affiliates is higher than our ownership level of our equity method Affiliates and, as a result, we experience a greater
proportion of an increase or decrease in revenue from our consolidated Affiliates than an increase or decrease in our equity method revenue. In 2016, while
our equity method revenue increased 27%, our revenue from consolidated Affiliates decreased 12%, resulting in a $3.3 million increase in Adjusted EBITDA
(controlling interests).

While our Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest) increased in 2016, our Net income (controlling interest) decreased by $36.7 million or 7%, primarily
due to an increase in other non-operating expenses of $44.2 million relating to Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements. The increase
in Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements was primarily due to a $44.7 million non-cash gain on contingent payment obligations
recorded in 2015, which did not reoccur to the same extent in 2016. The other changes in Net income (controlling interest) include an increase in Equity
method intangible amortization of $24.9 million in 2016, primarily due to the full-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates and the partial-year
impact of our 2016 investments in new Affiliates, offset by a decrease of $28.6 million in Income taxes primarily due to the decline in our share of Income
before taxes.

We consider Economic net income (controlling interest) to be an important measure of our financial performance, as we believe it best represents our
operating performance after tax and before our share of non-cash expenses relating to our acquisition of interests in our Affiliates.  Our Economic net income
(controlling interest) increased $16.4 million or 2% in 2016, which is greater than the increase in Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest), primarily due to
the incremental tax benefits related to our investments in new Affiliates in 2015 and 2016 and our reinvestment of foreign earnings in 2016.

Results of Operations

The following discussion includes the financial results of our consolidated and equity method Affiliates. As previously discussed, our consolidated
Affiliates’ financial results are included in our Revenue, Operating expenses and Other non-operating (income) and expenses and our share of our equity
method Affiliates’ financial results is reported (net of intangible amortization) in Income from equity method investments.

As discussed in “Executive Overview,” we supplementally prepare and disclose aggregate revenue, which incorporates the revenue of all of our
Affiliates, regardless of the accounting treatment, as well as equity method revenue, which provides additional information on the factors impacting the
operating results of our equity method Affiliates. These measures provide management with a more comprehensive view of the operating performance and
material trends in our business, and have become increasingly important to management as the number and proportion of our equity method Affiliates have
increased relative to our consolidated Affiliates.

Average assets under management reflects the particular billing patterns of products and client accounts. Therefore, we believe average assets under
management more closely correlates to the billing cycle of each distribution channel and, as such, provides a more meaningful relationship to Revenue and to
equity method revenue. In the Mutual Fund distribution channel, average assets under management generally represents an average of the daily net assets
under management. For the Institutional and High Net Worth distribution channels, an account that bills in advance is included in the calculation of average
assets under management on the basis of beginning of period assets under management, while an account that bills in arrears is reflected on the basis of end of
period assets under management. Assets under management attributable to investments in new Affiliates are generally included on a weighted average basis
for the period from the closing date of the respective new investment.

Additional investments in existing or new Affiliates will generally impact our financial results in the year of investment and, depending upon the timing,
in the following year when the full-year financial results of the Affiliate investment are reflected in our financial statements.

Revenue

We derive most of our Revenue from asset based and performance fees from investment management services. Asset based fees are typically determined
as a percentage fee charged on the value of a client’s assets under management. Performance fees are billed based upon investment performance, typically on
an absolute basis or relative to a benchmark.
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Performance fees are typically billed less frequently than asset based fees and, although performance fees inherently depend on investment performance
and will vary from period to period, we anticipate performance fees will be a recurring component of our revenue.

Our Revenue is generally determined by the level of our consolidated Affiliate average assets under management and the composition of our assets
across our distribution channels and active return-oriented strategies within our distribution channels, which realize different fee rates. Our ratio of asset based
fees to consolidated Affiliate average assets under management (“ratio of average fees”) is calculated as asset based fees divided by consolidated Affiliate
average assets under management and may change as a result of new investments, client cash flows, market changes, foreign exchange rate changes or
changes in contractual fees. Therefore, changes in this ratio should not necessarily be viewed as an indicator of changes in contractual fee rates billed by our
Affiliates to their clients.

The following tables summarize our consolidated Affiliate average assets under management and Revenue in total and by distribution channel. These
amounts do not include average assets under management or revenue at equity method Affiliates, which are summarized separately in “Income from equity
method investments.”

 For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions, except as noted) 2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Consolidated Affiliate average assets under management (in billions) $ 387.8  $ 396.4  2 %  $ 373.4  (6)%

Revenue $ 2,510.9  $ 2,484.5  (1)%  $ 2,194.6  (12)%

Our Revenue decreased $289.9 million or 12% in 2016. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease in consolidated Affiliate average assets under
management at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset based fees $184.9 million or 7%. This decrease was also the result of a decline in our ratio of average
fees at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset based fees $126.0 million or 5%, including a reduction in asset based fees related to renewal commissions at
one of our Affiliates in the UK. The reduction in asset based fees related to renewal commissions was the result of a regulatory change and was offset by a
decline in distribution expenses at the Affiliate that reduced our Selling, general and administrative expenses. These decreases were partially offset by an
increase in Revenue from the full-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates of $16.8 million or 1%, as well as an increase in performance and
other fees at existing Affiliates of $4.2 million. The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to changes in the composition of our assets under
management as well as the aforementioned decline in renewal commissions. The changes in the composition of our assets under management were primarily
from decreases in assets under management in the Mutual Fund and Institutional distribution channels, which realize comparatively higher fee rates and by
increases in assets under management in the High Net Worth distribution channel, which realizes comparatively lower fee rates.

Our Revenue decreased $26.4 million or 1% in 2015. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease in consolidated Affiliate average assets under
management at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset based fees $108.5 million or 5%. This decrease was also the result of a decline in our ratio of average
fees at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset based fees $38.0 million or 1%, as well as the result of a decline in performance and other fees at existing
Affiliates of $11.6 million. These decreases were partially offset by increases in revenue from the full-year impact of our 2014 and partial-year impact of our
2015 investments in new Affiliates of $131.7 million or 5%. The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to changes in the composition of our assets
under management across our distribution channels, primarily from decreases in assets under management in the Mutual Fund and Institutional distribution
channels, which realize comparatively higher fee rates and by increases in assets under management in the High Net Worth distribution channel, which
realizes comparatively lower fee rates.

The following sections discuss the changes in our revenue by distribution channel.

Institutional Distribution Channel

 For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions, except as noted) 2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Consolidated Affiliate average assets under management (in billions) $ 188.6  $ 186.4  (1)%  $ 173.7  (7)%

Revenue $ 1,022.8  $ 979.4  (4)%  $ 878.5  (10)%

Our revenue in the Institutional distribution channel decreased $100.9 million or 10% in 2016. This decrease was due primarily to a decrease in
consolidated Affiliate average assets under management at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset
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based fees $71.3 million or 7%. This decrease was also the result of a decline in our ratio of average fees at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset based fees
$33.5 million or 3%. These decreases were partially offset by increases in revenue from the full-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates of $2.8
million, as well as an increase in performance and other fees at existing Affiliates of $1.1 million. The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to a change
in the composition of our assets under management within the distribution channel, primarily from decreases in assets under management in products that
realize comparatively higher fee rates and by an increase in assets under management in products that realize comparatively lower fee rates.

Our revenue in the Institutional distribution channel decreased $43.4 million or 4% in 2015. This decrease was due primarily to a decrease in
consolidated Affiliate average assets under management, which reduced asset based fees $53.2 million or 5%. This decrease was also the result of a decline in
performance fees at existing Affiliates of $15.8 million or 2%, and decline in our ratio of average fees at existing Affiliates of $13.6 million or 1%. These
decreases were partially offset by increases in revenue from the full-year impact of our 2014 and partial-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates
of $39.2 million or 4%. The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to a change in the composition of our assets under management within the
distribution channel, primarily from decreases in assets under management in products that realize comparatively higher fee rates and by an increase in assets
under management in products that realize comparatively lower fee rates.

Mutual Fund Distribution Channel

 For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions, except as noted) 2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Consolidated Affiliate average assets under management (in billions) $ 141.7  $ 143.2  1 %  $ 123.0  (14)%

Revenue $ 1,242.6  $ 1,238.2  (0)%  $ 1,036.0  (16)%

Our revenue in the Mutual Fund distribution channel decreased $202.2 million or 16% in 2016. This decrease was due primarily to a decrease in
consolidated Affiliate average assets under management, which reduced asset based fees $164.3 million or 13%. This decrease was also the result of a decline
in our ratio of average fees, which reduced asset based fees $40.3 million or 3%, including a reduction in asset based fees related to renewal commissions at
one of our Affiliates in the UK. The reduction in asset based fees related to renewal commissions was the result of a regulatory change and was offset by a
decline in distribution expenses at the Affiliate that reduced our Selling, general and administrative expenses. These decreases were partially offset by an
increase in performance and other fees of $2.4 million. The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to a change in the composition of our assets under
management as well as the aforementioned decline in renewal commissions. The change in the composition of our assets under management within the
distribution channel was primarily from decreases in assets under management in products that realize comparatively higher fee rates and by increases in
assets under management in products that realize comparatively lower fee rates.

Our revenue in the Mutual Fund distribution channel decreased $4.4 million in 2015. This decrease was due primarily to a decrease in consolidated
Affiliate average assets under management at existing Affiliates, which reduced assets based fees $83.6 million or 7%. This decrease was partially offset by
an increase in revenue from the full-year results of our 2014 investments in new Affiliates of $74.1 million or 6%, as well as an increase in performance and
other fees at existing Affiliates of $5.6 million.

High Net Worth Distribution Channel

 For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions, except as noted) 2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Consolidated Affiliate average assets under management (in billions) $ 57.5  $ 66.8  16%  $ 76.7  15%

Revenue $ 245.5  $ 266.9  9%  $ 280.1  5%

Our revenue in the High Net Worth distribution channel increased $13.2 million or 5% in 2016. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in
consolidated Affiliate average assets under management at existing Affiliates, which increased asset based fees $14.3 million or 5%. The increase in revenue
was also the result of an $14.0 million or 5% increase in asset based fees from the full-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates. These increases
were partially offset by a decrease in our ratio of average fees at existing Affiliates, which decreased asset based fees $15.8 million or 5%. The decline in our
ratio of average fees was due to a change in the composition of our assets under management within the distribution
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channel, primarily from decreases in assets under management in products that realize comparatively higher fee rates and by increases in assets under
management in products that realize comparatively lower fee rates.

Our revenue in the High Net Worth distribution channel increased $21.4 million or 9% in 2015. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in
revenue from the full-year impact of our 2014 and the partial-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates of $18.4 million or 7%. The increase was
also the result of an increase in consolidated Affiliate average assets under management at existing Affiliates, which increased asset based fees $10.9 million
or 4%. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in our ratio of average fees at existing Affiliates which decreased asset based fees $6.6 million or
2% and a decline in performance and other fees at existing Affiliates of $1.3 million. The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to a change in the
composition of our assets under management within the distribution channel, primarily from decreases in assets under management in products that realize
comparatively higher fee rates and by increases in assets under management in products that realize comparatively lower fee rates.

Operating Expenses

The following table summarizes our consolidated operating expenses:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Compensation and related expenses  $ 1,030.5  $ 1,027.7  (0)%  $ 932.4  (9)%
Selling, general and administrative  485.5  443.8  (9)%  398.1  (10)%
Intangible amortization and impairments  122.2  115.4  (6)%  110.2  (5)%
Depreciation and other amortization  16.9  18.8  11 %  19.5  4 %
Other operating expenses, net  40.6  43.8  8 %  29.1  (34)%

Total operating expenses  $ 1,695.7  $ 1,649.5  (3)%  $ 1,489.3  (10)%

Our operating expenses were incurred primarily by our consolidated Affiliates, the substantial majority of which were incurred by Affiliates through
which we share in revenue without regard to expenses. For these Affiliates, the Affiliate’s Operating Allocation percentage generally determines its operating
expenses. Accordingly, our operating expenses are impacted by increases or decreases in each Affiliate’s revenue and corresponding increases or decreases in
its respective Operating Allocation.

Compensation and related expenses decreased $95.3 million or 9% in 2016, primarily due to decreases in compensation expenses at existing Affiliates of
$78.3 million or 8% and compensation expenses associated with Affiliate equity transactions of $28.7 million or 3%. These decreases were partially offset by
an increase in compensation expenses from the full-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates of $7.0 million or 1%. These changes primarily
relate to the non-controlling interests.

Compensation and related expenses decreased $2.8 million or (0)% in 2015, primarily due to decreases in compensation expenses at existing Affiliates of
$46.8 million or 5% and compensation expenses associated with Affiliate equity transactions of $15.9 million or 2%. These decreases were partially offset by
an increase in compensation expenses from the full-year impact of our 2014 and the partial-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates of $56.9
million or 6%. These changes primarily relate to the non-controlling interests.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $45.7 million or 10% in 2016, primarily due to decreases in sub-advisory and distribution
expenses, including renewal commissions, of $57.7 million or 13% at our Affiliates in the Mutual Fund distribution channel. This decrease was partially
offset by a reserve of $15.0 million or 3% recorded by and attributable to Third Avenue Management LLC in connection with a proposed resolution of claims
relating to the Focused Credit Fund.

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $41.7 million or 9% in 2015, primarily due to decreases in sub-advisory and distribution expenses
of $50.0 million or 10% at our Affiliates in the Mutual Fund distribution channel and a decrease in acquisition-related professional fees of $5.8 million or 1%.
These decreases were partially offset by an increase of $18.2 million or 4% from the full-year impact of our 2014 and the partial-year impact of our 2015
investments in new Affiliates.

Intangible amortization and impairments decreased $5.2 million or 5% in 2016, and $6.8 million or 6% in 2015. In 2016, the decrease was primarily due
to certain assets being fully amortized in 2015, which decreased intangible amortization $13.2 million or 11% in 2016, partially offset by increases in
intangible amortization of definite-lived assets at existing Affiliates of
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$5.5 million or 5%. In 2015, the decrease was primarily due to certain assets being fully amortized in 2014, which reduced intangible amortization $7.1
million in 2015.

There were no significant changes in Depreciation and other amortization in 2016 or 2015.

Other operating expenses (net) decreased $14.7 million or 34% in 2016 and increased $3.2 million or 8% in 2015. In 2016, this decrease was primarily
due to net gains on Affiliates’ consolidated investment products of $12.5 million. In 2015, this increase was primarily due to a $2.0 million increase in
expenses from the full-year impact of our 2014 and the partial-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates.

Income from Equity Method Investments

When we own a minority of the equity interests in an Affiliate, we either share in the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses or share in an
Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses. When we share in the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses, we are allocated a set percentage
of revenue, with the remaining revenue available to the Affiliate to fund its operating expenses and distributions to Affiliate management. When we share in
the Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses, our distributions are calculated by reference to the Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon
expenses.

For our minority investments in our Affiliates, we generally use the equity method of accounting.  Under the equity method of accounting, we only
recognize our share of the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses or less certain agreed-upon expenses, net of equity method intangible amortization in
Income from equity method investments in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Our equity method Affiliates derive most of their revenue from asset based and performance fees from investment management services. Our equity
method Affiliates operate primarily in the Institutional distribution channel. Asset based fees are typically determined as a percentage fee charged on the
value of a client’s assets under management. Performance fees are billed based upon investment performance, typically on an absolute basis or relative to a
benchmark, primarily on our liquid and illiquid alternative and equity products.

Performance fees are typically billed less frequently than asset based fees and, although performance fees inherently depend on investment performance
and will vary from period to period, we anticipate performance fees will be a recurring component of our Income from equity method investments.

The following table summarizes equity method earnings and equity method intangible amortization, which together comprise Income from equity
method investments, as well as equity method Affiliate average assets under management and equity method revenue:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions, except as noted)  2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Equity method earnings  $ 314.0  $ 323.2  3 %  $ 388.0  20%
Equity method intangible amortization  (32.3)  (34.3)  6 %  (59.2)  73%

Income from equity method investments  $ 281.7  $ 288.9  3 %  $ 328.8  14%

           

Operating Measures           
Equity method Affiliate average assets under management (in
billions)  $ 198.1  $ 227.5  15 %  $ 282.2  24%

Equity method revenue  $ 1,692.2  $ 1,655.6  (2)%  $ 2,101.7  27%

Our equity method revenue increased $446.1 million or 27% in 2016. This increase was primarily due to an increase in revenue from the full-year impact
of our 2015 and the partial-year impact of our 2016 investments in new Affiliates of $352.5 million or 21%. The increase was also the result of an increase in
equity method Affiliate average assets under management at existing Affiliates, which increased asset based fees $133.3 million or 8%. These increases were
partially offset by a decline in our ratio of average fees at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset based fees $21.7 million or 1%, as well as a decrease in
performance and other fees at existing Affiliates of $18.0 million or 1%. The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to a change in the composition of
our assets under management, primarily from decreases in assets under management in products that realize comparatively higher fee rates and by increases
in assets under management in products that realize comparatively lower fee rates.

While equity method revenue increased 27% in 2016, equity method earnings increased $64.8 million or 20% in 2016, primarily due to the full-year
impact of our 2015 and the partial-year impact of our 2016 investments in new Affiliates, in
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which we own less of the equity interests, and an increase in expenses at Affiliates where our structured partnership interest is calculated by reference to the
Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses.

Equity method intangible amortization increased $24.9 million or 73% in 2016, primarily as a result of a $21.5 million increase from the full-year impact
of our 2015 and the partial-year impact of our 2016 investments in new Affiliates.

Our equity method revenue decreased $36.6 million or 2% in 2015. This decrease was primarily due to a decline in performance fees at existing
Affiliates of $206.0 million or 12%, as well as a decline in our ratio of average fees at existing Affiliates, which reduced asset based fees $20.4 million or 1%.
The decline in our ratio of average fees was due to a change in the composition of our assets under management, primarily from decreases in assets under
management in products that realize comparatively higher fee rates and by increases in assets under management in products that realize comparatively lower
fee rates. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in equity method Affiliate average assets under management at existing Affiliates, which
increased asset based fees $133.8 million or 8%, and the result of an increase in equity method revenue from the full-year impact of our 2014 and the partial-
year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates of $44.7 million or 3%.

Equity method earnings increased $9.2 million or 3% primarily due to the full-year impact in 2015 of our additional investment in an existing Affiliate in
2014, partially offset by the previously discussed decline in performance fees in 2015.

Equity method intangible amortization increased $2.0 million or 6% in 2015, primarily as a result a $4.3 million increase from the full-year impact of our
2014 and the partial-year impact of our 2015 investments in new Affiliates, partially offset by a $2.3 million decrease related to certain assets being fully
amortized in 2014 and 2015.

Other Non-Operating (Income) and Expenses

The following table summarizes non-operating income and expense data:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Investment and other income  $ (23.3)  $ (15.3)  (34)%  $ (33.8)  121 %
Interest expense  76.6  88.9  16 %  89.4  1 %
Imputed interest expense and contingent payment
arrangements  30.1  (40.3)  N.M.(1)  3.9  N.M.(1)

Income taxes  246.1  263.4  7 %  235.6  (11)%
__________________________

(1) Percentage change is not meaningful.

Investment and other income increased $18.5 million or 121% in 2016, principally due to a $10.7 million increase in realized gains on the sales of
available-for-sale securities and a $7.0 million increase in the fair value of Affiliates’ investments.

Investment and other income decreased $8.0 million or 34% in 2015, principally due to a $20.3 million decrease in the fair value of Affiliates’
investments, partially offset by a $9.0 million increase in realized gains on the sales of available-for-sale securities.

There was no significant change in our Interest expense in 2016. Interest expense increased $12.3 million or 16% in 2015, primarily as a result of the
issuance of our senior notes in February 2014 and 2015, which collectively increased interest expense by $13.2 million in 2015.

Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements increased $44.2 million in 2016, primarily due to a $44.7 million gain on the revaluation
of our contingent payment arrangements in 2015 as compared to a $2.8 million gain recorded in 2016.

Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements decreased $70.4 million in 2015, primarily due to a $44.7 million gain on the revaluation
of our contingent payment arrangements in 2015 and an $18.8 million loss recognized on the settlement of certain of our junior convertible securities in 2014,
which did not reoccur in 2015. 

Income taxes decreased $27.8 million or 11% in 2016, primarily due to a decrease in Income before income taxes attributable to the controlling interest
as well as the effect of foreign operations, including an increase in the indefinite reinvestment of certain foreign earnings.

Income taxes increased $17.3 million or 7% in 2015, primarily due to an increase in Income before income taxes
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attributable to the controlling interest. In addition, in 2014 we restructured certain of our foreign subsidiaries and recorded a deferred tax benefit for the
reversal of previously recorded deferred tax liabilities, which did not reoccur in 2016. The increase in Income taxes was partially offset by the indefinite
reinvestment of a portion of our foreign earnings, the recording of a deferred tax benefit for a reduction in UK tax rates and a decline in Affiliate equity
compensation, a non-deductible expense.

Net Income

The previously discussed changes in revenue and expenses had the following effect on Net income:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2015  % Change  2016  % Change

Net income  $ 767.4  $ 827.2  8 %  $ 739.0  (11)%
Net income (non-controlling interests)  333.5  317.7  (5)%  266.2  (16)%
Net income (controlling interest)  433.9  509.5  17 %  472.8  (7)%

Supplemental Financial Performance Measures

Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest)

As supplemental information, we provide a non-GAAP measure that we refer to as Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest). Adjusted EBITDA
(controlling interest) represents our earnings before our share of interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortization, impairments and adjustments to
our contingent payment obligations. We believe that many investors use this information when assessing the financial performance of companies in the
investment management industry. This non-GAAP performance measure is provided in addition to, but not as a substitute for, Net income (controlling
interest) or any other GAAP measures of financial performance. The title of this performance measure has been renamed from EBITDA (controlling interest)
to Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest). There has been no change in the calculation of this performance measure.

The following table provides a reconciliation of Net income (controlling interest) to Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest):

(in millions)  2014  2015  2016

Net income (controlling interest)  $ 433.9  $ 509.5  $ 472.8
Interest expense  76.6  88.9  89.4
Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements(1)  30.1  (40.3)  3.9
Income taxes  231.6  257.8  229.2
Depreciation and other amortization  7.6  7.9  7.7
Intangible amortization and impairments(2)  121.0  118.4  142.5

Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest)  $ 900.8  $ 942.2  $ 945.5

__________________________

(1) During 2014, we redeemed certain of our junior convertible securities and recorded a loss of $18.8 million. During 2015 and 2016, we adjusted our
estimate of our contingent payment obligations and recorded a gain of $44.7 million and $2.8 million, respectively. These amounts are included in
Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

(2) Our reported intangible amortization includes amortization attributable to our non-controlling interests. For our equity method Affiliates, we do not
separately report intangible amortization in our Consolidated Statements of Income. Our share of these Affiliates’ amortization is reported in Income
from equity method investments.

The following table summarizes the Intangible amortization and impairments shown above:
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(in millions)  2014  2015  2016

Reported Intangible amortization and impairments  $ 122.2  $ 115.4  $ 110.2
Intangible amortization—non-controlling interests  (33.5)  (31.3)  (26.9)
Equity method intangible amortization  32.3  34.3  59.2

Total  $ 121.0  $ 118.4  $ 142.5

Economic Net Income (controlling interest) and Economic Earnings Per Share

As supplemental information, we also provide non-GAAP performance measures that we refer to as Economic net income (controlling interest) and
Economic earnings per share. We consider Economic net income (controlling interest) and Economic earnings per share to be important measures of our
financial performance, as we believe they best represent our operating performance before our share of non-cash expenses relating to our acquisition of
interests in our Affiliates. Economic net income (controlling interest) and Economic earnings per share are used by our management and Board of Directors
as our principal performance benchmarks, including as one of the measures for aligning executive compensation with stockholder value. These measures are
provided in addition to, but not as substitutes for, other GAAP measures of financial performance, such as Net income (controlling interest) and Earnings per
share (diluted).

Under our Economic net income (controlling interest) definition, we add to Net income (controlling interest) our share of pre-tax intangible amortization
and impairments (including the portion attributable to equity method Affiliates), deferred taxes related to intangible assets, and other economic items, which
include non-cash imputed interest (principally related to the accounting for convertible securities and contingent payment arrangements) and certain Affiliate
equity expenses. We add back intangible amortization and impairments attributable to acquired client relationships because these expenses do not correspond
to the changes in value of these assets, which do not diminish predictably over time. The portion of deferred taxes generally attributable to intangible assets
(including goodwill) is added back because we believe it is unlikely these accruals will be used to settle material tax obligations. We add back non-cash
imputed interest and reductions or increases in contingent payment arrangements to better reflect our contractual interest obligations. We add back non-cash
expenses relating to certain transfers of equity between Affiliate partners when these transfers have no dilutive effect to shareholders.

Economic earnings per share represents Economic net income (controlling interest) divided by the Average shares outstanding (adjusted diluted). In this
calculation, the potential share issuance in connection with our convertible securities is measured using a “treasury stock” method. Under this method, only
the net number of shares of common stock equal to the value of these convertible securities in excess of par, if any, is deemed to be outstanding. We believe
the inclusion of net shares under a treasury stock method best reflects the benefit of the increase in available capital resources (which could be used to
repurchase shares of common stock) that occurs when these securities are converted and we are relieved of our debt obligation. This method does not take
into account any increase or decrease in our cost of capital in an assumed conversion.

The following table provides a reconciliation of Net income (controlling interest) to Economic net income (controlling interest):

(in millions, except per share data)  2014(1)  2015(1)  2016

Net income (controlling interest)  $ 433.9  $ 509.5  $ 472.8
Intangible amortization and impairments(2)  121.0  118.4  142.5
Intangible-related deferred taxes  47.8  77.7  84.3
Other economic items(3)(4)  26.5  (18.4)  4.0

Economic net income (controlling interest)  $ 629.2  $ 687.2  $ 703.6

Average shares outstanding (diluted)  58.4  57.2  57.0
Assumed issuance of junior convertible securities shares  (2.2)  (2.2)  (2.2)
Dilutive impact of junior convertible securities shares  0.1  0.1  —

Average shares outstanding (adjusted diluted)  56.3  55.1  54.8

Economic earnings per share  $ 11.18  $ 12.47  $ 12.84
__________________________

(1) We revised our prior period financial statements to correct for an immaterial error. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Economic net
income (controlling interest) as previously reported for 2014 and 2015 was $644.4 million and $691.2 million, respectively, and Economic earnings per
share for 2014 and 2015 was $11.45 and $12.55, respectively.
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(2) See note (2) to the table in “Adjusted EBITDA (controlling interest).”

(3) During 2014, 2015 and 2016, Other economic items were net of income taxes of $11.4 million, $15.2 million and $1.5 million, respectively.

(4) During 2014, we redeemed certain of our junior convertible securities and recorded a loss of $18.8 million ($11.6 million net of tax). During 2015 and
2016, we adjusted our estimate of our contingent payment obligations and recorded a gain of $44.7 million ($27.8 million net of tax) and $2.8 million
($1.7 million net of tax), respectively. These amounts are included in Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In 2016, we met our cash requirements primarily through cash generated by operating activities, the settlement of our forward equity agreement and net
borrowings under our credit facilities. Our principal uses of cash were for investments in new Affiliates, distributions to Affiliate equity holders and general
working capital purposes.

We expect that our principal uses of cash for the foreseeable future will be for investments in new and existing Affiliates, distributions to Affiliate equity
holders, payment of principal and interest on outstanding debt, share repurchases, the payment of cash dividends on our common stock and general working
capital purposes. We anticipate that cash flows from operations, together with borrowings under our revolver and proceeds from our equity distribution
program, will be sufficient to support our cash flow needs for the foreseeable future.

Cash and cash equivalents were $430.8 million and $563.8 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, including $18.9 million and $98.6
million, respectively, in our wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries. If we repatriated the cash from our wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries, we do not anticipate
that we would need to accrue or pay any significant additional U.S. taxes.

The following summarizes our operating, investing and financing cash flow activities:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2015  2016

Operating cash flow  $ 1,436.9  $ 1,208.4  $ 1,027.6
Investing cash flow  (1,268.1)  (324.5)  (1,332.2)
Financing cash flow  (77.6)  (857.7)  200.9

Operating Cash Flow

In 2016, Cash flow from operating activities decreased $180.8 million, of which approximately 50% was attributable to the non-controlling interests.
Cash flow from operating activities attributable to the controlling interest decreased primarily due to a timing difference between the receipt of cash
distributions of our equity method earnings and the recording of such earnings in our Consolidated Statements of Income. In 2016, the net effect of these
timing differences decreased cash flows to the controlling interest $64.5 million.

Cash flows from operations decreased $228.5 million in 2015, primarily from a $228.0 million decrease in Payables and accrued liabilities, and Other
liabilities, which primarily resulted from an increase in payments of accrued compensation and distributions.

Investing Cash Flow

Net cash flows used in investing activities increased $1.0 billion in 2016 to $1.3 billion, primarily due to a $1.1 billion increase in cash used to make
investments in Affiliates, which was attributable to the controlling interest.

Net cash flows used in investing activities decreased $943.6 million in 2015, primarily due to a $947.3 million decrease in cash used to make investments
in Affiliates, which was attributable to the controlling interest.  

Financing Cash Flow

Cash flows from financing activities increased $1.1 billion in 2016. This was primarily a result of a $408.0 million increase in the issuance of common
stock, a $380.3 million decrease in repurchases of common stock, and a $227.7 million increase in net borrowings of senior debt, all of which were
attributable to the controlling interest.  We used available cash, proceeds from issuance of common stock and borrowings under our credit facilities to finance
our investments in new Affiliates in 2016.
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Cash flows used in financing activities increased $780.1 million in 2015. This was primarily a result of a $493.2 million decrease in borrowings of senior
debt, a $235.4 million decrease in repayments of senior debt and convertible securities as well as a $222.9 million increase in repurchases of common stock,
all of which were attributable to the controlling interest. These increases were partially offset by a $138.0 million decrease in distributions to non-controlling
interests.  We used available cash and borrowings under our credit facilities to finance our investments in new Affiliates in 2015.

The following table summarizes the carrying value of our outstanding indebtedness:

  December 31,

(in millions)  2014  2015  2016

Senior bank debt  $ 855.0  $ 645.0  $ 870.0
Senior notes  736.8  944.6  945.1
Convertible securities  303.1  305.2  307.5

Senior Bank Debt

We have a senior unsecured multicurrency revolving credit facility (the “revolver”) and a senior unsecured term loan facility (the “term loan” and,
together with the revolver, the “credit facilities”). In 2016, we amended the revolver to increase commitments from $1.3 billion to $1.45 billion, and amended
the term loan to increase borrowings from $350.0 million to $385.0 million. The credit facilities mature on September 30, 2020.

Subject to certain conditions, we may further increase the commitments under the revolver by up to $350.0 million and borrow up to an additional $65.0
million under the term loan. We pay interest on any outstanding obligations under the revolver and on the term loan at specified rates, based either on the
LIBOR rate or the prime rate as in effect from time to time.

Under the terms of our credit facilities we are required to meet two financial ratio covenants. The first of these covenants is a maximum ratio of debt to
EBITDA (the “bank leverage ratio”) of 3.25x. The second covenant is a minimum EBITDA to cash interest expense ratio of 3.00x (the “bank interest
coverage ratio”). For purposes of calculating these ratios, share-based compensation and Affiliate equity expense are added back to EBITDA. The credit
facilities are also subject to customary affirmative and negative covenants, including limitations on priority indebtedness, asset dispositions and fundamental
corporate changes, and certain customary events of default. Many of these conditions and restrictions are subject to certain minimum thresholds and
exceptions. As of December 31, 2016, our bank leverage and bank interest coverage ratios were 1.7x and 11.8x, respectively, and we were in compliance with
all terms of our credit facilities. As of December 31, 2016, we had approximately $965 million of remaining capacity under our revolver, and could borrow all
such capacity and remain in compliance with our credit facilities.

We are currently rated A3 by Moody’s Investors Service and BBB+ with a positive outlook by S&P Global Ratings. A downgrade of our credit rating,
including a downgrade to below investment grade, would not trigger a default or have any other significant impact on the terms of our existing credit
facilities. A reduction in our credit rating could, however, increase our borrowing costs. Additionally, a downgrade of our credit rating below investment
grade in connection with a change in control would require us to make a repurchase offer on certain of our senior notes.

Senior Notes

At December 31, 2016, we had three senior notes outstanding, the principal terms of which are summarized below. In 2015, we redeemed, canceled and
retired all $140.0 million principal amount outstanding of our 2022 senior notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest.
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2024

Senior
Notes  

2025
Senior
Notes  

2042
Senior
Notes

Issue date  February 2014  February 2015  August 2012
Maturity date  February 2024  August 2025  August 2042
Potential Call Date  Any Time (1)  Any Time (1)  August 2017
Par value (in millions)  $ 400.0  $ 350.0  $ 200.0
Call Price  As Defined (1)  As Defined (1)  At Par
Stated coupon  4.25%  3.50%  6.375%
Coupon frequency  Semi-annually  Semi-annually  Quarterly
__________________________

(1) The 2024 and 2025 senior notes may be redeemed at any time, in whole or in part, at a make-whole redemption price plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Convertible Securities

At December 31, 2016, we had junior convertible trust preferred securities outstanding (the “junior convertible securities”). The carrying value ($307.5
million as of December 31, 2016) is accreted to the principal amount at maturity ($430.8 million) over a remaining life of approximately 21 years. The junior
convertible securities bear interest at 5.15% per annum, payable quarterly in cash. Each $50 security is convertible, at any time, into 0.25 shares of our
common stock, which represents a conversion price of $200 per share, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments. Holders of the junior convertible
securities have no rights to put these securities to us. Upon conversion, holders will receive cash or shares of our common stock, or a combination thereof, at
our election. We may redeem the junior convertible securities if the closing price of our common stock exceeds $260 per share for 20 trading days in a period
of 30 consecutive trading days. The junior convertible securities are considered contingent payment debt instruments under federal income tax regulations,
which require us to deduct interest in an amount greater than our reported interest expense. These deductions result in annual deferred tax liabilities of
$10.2 million. These deferred tax liabilities will be reclassified directly to stockholders’ equity if our common stock is trading above certain thresholds at the
time of the conversion of the securities.

Forward Equity and Equity Distribution Program

In 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell approximately 2.9 million shares of our common stock at a price of $167.25 per share on a forward basis.
During the year, we issued 2.7 million shares to settle a portion of this forward equity sale and received proceeds of $440.3 million, and net settled 0.2 million
shares for cash at an average share price of $144.59. As of December 31, 2016, no shares remain outstanding under this agreement.

In 2016, we entered into equity distribution and forward equity agreements with several major securities firms under which we, from time to time, may
issue and sell shares of our common stock (immediately or on a forward basis) having an aggregate sales price of up to $500.0 million (the “equity
distribution program”). As of December 31, 2016, no sales have occurred under the equity distribution program.

Derivatives

From time to time, we seek to offset our exposure to changing interest rates under our debt financing arrangements and certain of our Affiliates seek to
offset their exposure to changing foreign currency exchange rates by entering into derivative contracts.

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016, our Affiliates realized $3.2 million and $0.2 million of gains, respectively, and $1.7 million and $1.2
million of losses, respectively, upon the settlement of certain foreign currency forward contracts. Such realized gains and losses are presented in Revenue,
Operating expenses or Investment and other income, depending on the risk being hedged. At December 31, 2016, our Affiliates had unrealized gains and
losses related to outstanding foreign currency forward contracts of $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively.  There were no foreign currency forward
contracts outstanding at December 31, 2015. Such unrealized gains and losses are presented within Accumulated other comprehensive income.

Affiliate Equity
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Many of our Affiliate agreements provide us with a conditional right to call and Affiliate equity holders with the conditional right to put their Affiliate
equity interests to us at certain intervals. In cases where we own a minority interest in an Affiliate, we do not typically have such put and call arrangements.
The purchase price of these conditional purchases is generally calculated based upon a multiple of the Affiliate’s cash flow distributions, which is intended to
represent fair value. Affiliate equity holders are also permitted to sell their equity interests to other individuals or entities in certain cases, subject to our
approval or other restrictions.

As of December 31, 2016, our current redemption value of $673.5 million for these interests has been presented as Redeemable non-controlling interests
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Although the timing and amounts of these purchases are difficult to predict, we repurchased $69.1 million of Affiliate
equity during 2016, and expect to repurchase approximately $100 million in 2017. In the event of a repurchase, we would become the owner of the cash flow
associated with the repurchased equity.

Commitments

We have committed to co-invest in certain investment partnerships. As of December 31, 2016, these unfunded commitments totaled $92.2 million and
may be called in future periods. In connection with a past acquisition agreement, we are contractually entitled to reimbursement from a prior owner of one of
the Company’s Affiliates for $11.8 million of these commitments if they are called.

As of December 31, 2016, we were contingently liable, upon achievement by certain Affiliates of specified financial targets, to make payments through
2019 of up to $84.9 million associated with our consolidated Affiliates and $312.0 million associated with our equity method Affiliates. We expect to make
payments of $10.3 million of the $84.9 million ($3.0 million in 2017) related to our consolidated Affiliates and no payments in 2017 related to our equity
method Affiliates.

Affiliate equity interests provide holders with a conditional right to put their interests to us over time. In addition, in connection with an investment in an
Affiliate accounted for under the equity method, we entered into an arrangement with a minority owner of the Affiliate that gives such owner the right to sell
a portion of its ownership interest in the Affiliate to us annually beginning in 2018. The purchase price of these conditional purchases will be at fair market
value on the date of the transaction.

We and certain of our Affiliates operate under regulatory authorities, which require that they maintain minimum financial or capital requirements.

Share Repurchases

Our Board of Directors authorized share repurchase programs in January 2017 and May 2015, authorizing us to repurchase up to 1.9 million and 3.0
million shares of our common stock, respectively, which do not expire. In 2016, we repurchased 0.2 million shares at an average price per share of $161.16,
all of which occurred in the first three months of the year. Upon the January 2017 authorization, we had 4.0 million total shares available for repurchase under
the share repurchase programs.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2016. Contractual debt obligations include cash payments of fixed
interest.

    Payments Due

(in millions)  Total  2017  2018-2019  2020-2021  Thereafter

Contractual Obligations(1)           

Senior bank debt  $ 870.0  $ —  $ —  $ 870.0  $ —
Senior notes  1,516.1  42.1  84.0  84.0  1,306.0
Junior convertible securities  896.8  22.2  44.4  44.4  785.8
Leases(2)  218.9  37.7  66.4  57.4  57.4
Affiliate equity  12.1  12.1  —  —  —

Total contractual obligations  $ 3,513.9  $ 114.1  $ 194.8  $ 1,055.8  $ 2,149.2

Contingent Obligations           
Contingent payment obligations(3)  $ 10.3  $ 3.0  $ 7.3  $ —  $ —
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__________________________

(1) This table does not include liabilities for commitments to co-invest in certain investment partnerships or unrecognized tax benefits of $92.2 million and
$26.8 million, respectively, as we cannot predict when such obligations will be paid.

(2) The controlling interest portion is $11.5 million through 2017, $22.2 million in 2018-2019, $19.3 million in 2020-2021 and $29.3 million thereafter.

(3) The contingent payment obligations disclosed in the table represent the expected settlement amounts associated with our investments in new Affiliates.
The maximum settlement amount through 2017 is $209.9 million, $187.0 million in 2018-2019 and none thereafter.

Recent Accounting Developments

See Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with GAAP requires us to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that
affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. The following are our critical accounting estimates and
judgments used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, and actual results could differ materially from the amounts reported.

Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards define fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. These standards establish a fair value hierarchy that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

We make judgments to determine the fair value of certain assets, liabilities and equity interests when allocating the purchase price of our new
investments, when revaluing our contingent payment arrangements, when we issue or repurchase Affiliate equity interests and when we test our intangible
assets or equity and cost method investments for impairment.

In determining fair values, we make assumptions about the growth rates, profitability and useful lives of existing and prospective client accounts, and
consider historical and current market multiples, tax benefits, credit risk, interest rates and discount rates. We consider the reasonableness of our assumptions
by comparing our valuation conclusions to observed market transactions, and in certain instances consult with third-party valuation firms.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified and
separately recognized, and is reported within the segments in which the Affiliate operates. Our goodwill impairment assessments are performed annually at
the reporting unit level (in our case, our three distribution channels), or more frequently should circumstances suggest fair value has declined below the
related carrying value. If we determine that the fair value has declined below our related carrying value, an impairment is recognized to reduce the carrying
value to its fair value. We completed our annual goodwill impairment assessment and no impairments were identified. For purposes of our assessment, we
considered various qualitative factors (including market multiples for asset management businesses) and determined that it was more-likely-than-not that the
fair value of each of our reporting units was greater than its respective carrying amount, including goodwill. Only a substantial decline in the fair value of any
of our reporting units would indicate that an impairment may exist.

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Indefinite-lived intangible assets include investment advisory contracts between our Affiliates and their sponsored investment products. Because the
contracts are with the investment products themselves, and not with the underlying investors, and the contracts between our Affiliates and the investment
products are typically renewed on an annual basis, industry practice under GAAP is to consider the contract life to be indefinite and, as a result, not
amortizable.

We perform indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment tests annually, or more frequently should circumstances suggest fair value has declined below
the related carrying value. If we determine that the fair value has declined below our related carrying value, an impairment is recognized to reduce the
carrying value to its fair value. We completed our annual impairment assessment and no impairments were identified. For purposes of our assessment, we
considered various qualitative factors
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(including market multiples) and determined that it was more-likely-than-not that the fair value of each asset was greater than its carrying amount.

Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

Definite-lived intangible assets include investment advisory contracts between our Affiliates and their underlying investors, and are amortized over their
estimated useful lives. We monitor the useful lives of these assets and revise them, if necessary. We review historical and projected attrition rates and other
events that may influence our projections of the future economic benefit that we will derive from these relationships. Significant judgment is required to
estimate the period that these assets will contribute to our cash flows and the pattern over which these assets will be consumed.

We perform definite-lived intangible asset impairment tests annually, or more frequently should circumstances suggest fair value has declined below the
related carrying value. If we determine that the fair value has declined below our related carrying value, an impairment is recognized to reduce the carrying
value to its fair value. We assess each of our definite-lived acquired client relationships for impairment by comparing their carrying value to the projected
undiscounted cash flows of the acquired client relationships. We completed our annual assessment and noted that projected undiscounted cash flows over the
remaining life of each of these assets exceed their carrying value and, accordingly, no impairments were identified.

Equity and Cost Method Investments

We evaluate equity and cost method investments for impairment by assessing whether the fair value of the investment has declined below its carrying
value for a period we consider other-than-temporary. If we determine that a decline in fair value below our carrying value is other-than-temporary, an
impairment is recognized to reduce the carrying value of the investment to its fair value.

For companies with quoted market prices in active markets, we use these prices to determine the fair value of our equity and cost method investments.
For companies without quoted market prices in active markets, we determine the fair values by applying a market multiple to the estimated cash flows of each
investment. Our fair value multiples are supported by observed transactions and discounted cash flow analyses that reflect assumptions of current and
projected levels of Affiliate assets under management, fee rates and estimated expenses.

We completed our annual evaluation of equity and cost method investments and no impairments were identified.

Contingent Payment Arrangements

We periodically enter into contingent payment arrangements in connection with our business combinations. In these arrangements, the Company agrees
to pay additional consideration upon achievement by certain Affiliates of specified financial targets. For consolidated Affiliates, we estimate the fair value of
these potential future obligations by discounting the projected future payments (such estimates being dependent upon projected revenue) using current market
rates. Our discount rates are developed with input from third-party valuation firms.

We then accrete these obligations to their expected payment amounts until they are measured. If the expected payment amounts subsequently change, the
obligations are reduced or increased in the current period resulting in a gain or loss, respectively. Both gains and losses resulting from changes to expected
payments and the accretion of these obligations to their expected payment amounts are reflected within Imputed interest expense and contingent payment
arrangements in our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Redeemable Non-controlling Interests

Redeemable non-controlling interests represent the currently redeemable value of Affiliate equity interests. We may pay for these Affiliate equity
purchases in cash, shares of our common stock or other forms of consideration, at our election.

We generally value these interests upon their transfer or repurchase by applying market multiples to cash flows, which is intended to represent fair value.
The use of different assumptions could change the value of these interests, including the amount of compensation expense, if any, that we may report upon
their transfer or repurchase.

Income Taxes

Our income tax expense, deferred tax assets and liabilities, and liabilities for unrecognized tax benefits reflect management’s best estimate of current and
future taxes to be paid. We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and numerous foreign jurisdictions.

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial
statements, which will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the future. We measure our deferred
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tax liabilities based on enacted tax rates and projected state apportionment percentages for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income tax expense in the period in which the change in tax rates is
enacted. Our principal deferred tax assets relate to deferred compensation, state and foreign operating loss carryforwards and the indirect benefits of uncertain
foreign tax positions. We regularly assess the recoverability of our deferred tax assets, considering all available positive and negative evidence, including
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. A
valuation allowance is recorded to reduce the carrying values of deferred tax assets to the amount that is more-likely-than-not to be realized.

We record unrecognized tax benefits based on whether it is more-likely-than-not that uncertain tax positions will be sustained on the basis of the technical
merits of the position. If it is determined an uncertain tax position is more-likely-than-not to be sustained, the Company recognizes the largest amount of tax
benefit that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority.

We consider certain earnings of a foreign subsidiary to be indefinitely reinvested outside the U.S. Accordingly, we have not recorded a deferred tax
liability related to these earnings. If we decide to repatriate these earnings, we would need to adjust our income tax provision in the period we determine that
the earnings will no longer be indefinitely reinvested outside the U.S.

Share-Based Compensation and Affiliate Equity

We have share-based compensation arrangements covering directors, senior management and employees (including our Affiliates). We calculate share-
based compensation using the fair value of the awards on the grant date. Our share-based compensation arrangements typically vest and become fully
exercisable over three to five years of continued employment, and in some cases, are further subject to certain performance or market conditions. We
recognize expense net of expected forfeitures on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, including grants that are subject to graded vesting.

We estimate the fair value of stock option awards using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes model requires us to make
assumptions about the volatility and dividend yield of our common stock and the expected life of our stock options. In measuring expected volatility, we
consider both the historical volatility of our common stock, as well as the current implied volatility from traded options.

For restricted stock awards with service or performance conditions, we determine the fair value of the awards using our share price on the date of grant.
For awards with market conditions, the fair value of the award is determined using a Monte Carlo simulation with inputs for expected volatility, a risk-free
rate and expected dividends. Our estimate of expected volatility is developed in a manner consistent with that of our stock options.

From time to time, we grant equity interests in our Affiliates to Affiliate management and our officers, with vesting, forfeiture and repurchase terms
established at the date of grant. The fair value of the equity interests is determined as of the date of grant using a discounted cash flow analysis. Key valuation
assumptions include projected assets under management, fee rates and discount rates.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Assets Under Management Market Price Risk

Our Revenue, equity method revenue and, therefore, our aggregate revenue are derived primarily from asset based fees that are typically determined as a
percentage of the value of a client’s assets under management and performance fees determined as a percentage of the returns realized on a client’s assets
under management. Such values are affected by changes in financial markets (including interest rates and foreign exchange rates) and, accordingly, declines
in the financial markets will negatively impact our Revenue, equity method revenue and, therefore, our aggregate revenue.

As of December 31, 2016, we estimate a proportional 1% increase or decrease in the value of our assets under management would have resulted in an
annualized increase or decrease in asset based fees in Revenue of $19.0 million for our consolidated Affiliates and in equity method revenue of $17.3 million
for our equity method Affiliates. This proportional increase or decrease excludes assets under management on which asset based fees are charged on
committed capital.

Interest Rate Risk

We have fixed rates of interest on our senior notes and on our junior convertible securities. While a change in market interest rates would not affect the
interest expense incurred on our fixed rate securities, such a change may affect the fair value of these securities. We estimate that a 1% change in interest rates
would have resulted in a net change in the fair value of our
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fixed rate securities of $97.1 million, as of December 31, 2016. We pay a variable rate of interest on our revolver and term loan. We estimate that a
1% increase in interest rates would increase the interest expense related to our variable rate debt under our revolver and term loan outstanding by $8.7 million,
as of December 31, 2016.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Most of our Revenue and expenses are denominated in U.S. dollars. A portion of our revenue and expenses are denominated in foreign currencies,
primarily pound sterling and Canadian dollars, and are impacted by movements in foreign exchange rates. In addition, the valuations of our foreign Affiliates
are impacted by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, which are recorded as a component of stockholders’ equity. To illustrate the effect of possible changes
in currency exchange rates, as of December 31, 2016, we estimate a 1% change in the pound sterling and Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rates would
have resulted in changes to stockholders’ equity of approximately $7 million and $2 million, respectively, and changes to Income before income taxes of
$0.8 million and $0.3 million, respectively. During 2016, changes in currency in the pound sterling and Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rates
decreased stockholders’ equity by $68.8 million.

Derivative Risk

From time to time, we seek to offset our exposure to changing interest rates under our debt financing arrangements, and our Affiliates seek to offset
exposure to foreign currency exchange rates by entering into derivative contracts as described in “Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

There can be no assurance that our or our Affiliates hedging contracts will meet their overall objective or that we or our Affiliates will be successful in
obtaining hedging contracts in the future.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting processes are designed by, or under the supervision of, the Company’s chief executive and
chief financial officers and applied by the Company’s Board of Directors, management and other senior employees to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets; provide reasonable assurances that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S., and that receipts and expenditures are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

As of December 31, 2016, management conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
the framework established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment, management has determined that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2016 was effective.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report appearing in “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” which expresses an
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed
under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016,
based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework 2013 issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in Management’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 8. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the
financial statement schedule, and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 24, 2017
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AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in millions, except per share data)

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Revenue  $ 2,510.9  $ 2,484.5  $ 2,194.6
Operating expenses:       

Compensation and related expenses  1,030.5  1,027.7  932.4
Selling, general and administrative  485.5  443.8  398.1
Intangible amortization and impairments  122.2  115.4  110.2
Depreciation and other amortization  16.9  18.8  19.5
Other operating expenses, net  40.6  43.8  29.1

  1,695.7  1,649.5  1,489.3
Operating income  815.2  835.0  705.3
Income from equity method investments  281.7  288.9  328.8
Other non-operating (income) and expenses:       

Investment and other income  (23.3)  (15.3)  (33.8)
Interest expense  76.6  88.9  89.4
Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements  30.1  (40.3)  3.9

  83.4  33.3  59.5
Income before income taxes  1,013.5  1,090.6  974.6
Income taxes  246.1  263.4  235.6
Net income  767.4  827.2  739.0
Net income (non-controlling interests)  (333.5)  (317.7)  (266.2)

Net income (controlling interest)  $ 433.9  $ 509.5  $ 472.8

Average shares outstanding (basic)  55.0  54.3  54.2
Average shares outstanding (diluted)  58.4  57.2  57.0
Earnings per share (basic)  $ 7.89  $ 9.37  $ 8.73
Earnings per share (diluted)  $ 7.70  $ 9.17  $ 8.57

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Net income  $ 767.4  $ 827.2  $ 739.0
Other comprehensive income (loss):       

Controlling interest:       
Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  (48.6)  (72.8)  (68.8)
Change in net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securities, net of tax  1.1  1.1  0.7
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities, net of tax  5.3  21.8  (36.7)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (Controlling interest)  (42.2)  (49.9)  (104.8)
Non-controlling interests:       

Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  (13.4)  (20.4)  (46.5)
Change in net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securities, net of tax  (0.8)  0.8  (0.6)
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities, net of tax  (1.9)  0.3  1.5

Other comprehensive income (loss) (Non-controlling interests)  (16.1)  (19.3)  (45.6)
Other comprehensive income (loss)  (58.3)  (69.2)  (150.4)

Comprehensive income  709.1  758.0  588.6
Comprehensive income (non-controlling interests)  (317.4)  (298.4)  (220.6)

Comprehensive income (controlling interest)  $ 391.7  $ 459.6  $ 368.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in millions, except par value)

  December 31,

  2015  2016

Assets     
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 563.8  $ 430.8
Receivables  391.2  383.3
Investments in marketable securities  199.9  122.4
Other investments  149.3  147.5
Fixed assets, net  114.1  110.1
Goodwill  2,668.4  2,628.1
Acquired client relationships, net  1,686.4  1,497.4
Equity method investments in Affiliates  1,937.1  3,368.3
Other assets  59.2  61.2

Total assets  $ 7,769.4  $ 8,749.1

Liabilities and Equity     
Payables and accrued liabilities  $ 729.4  $ 729.3
Senior bank debt  643.3  868.6
Senior notes  937.1  939.4
Convertible securities  299.0  301.6
Deferred income taxes  565.7  660.8
Other liabilities  213.3  149.4

Total liabilities  3,387.8  3,649.1
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)   
Redeemable non-controlling interests  612.5  673.5
Equity:     

Common stock ($0.01 par value, 153.0 shares authorized; 55.8 shares outstanding in 2015 and 58.5 shares
outstanding 2016)  0.6  0.6
Additional paid-in capital  694.9  1,073.5
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  (18.1)  (122.9)
Retained earnings  2,581.6  3,054.4

  3,259.0  4,005.6
Less: Treasury stock, at cost (2.0 shares in 2015 and 1.8 shares in 2016)  (421.9)  (386.0)

Total stockholders’ equity  2,837.1  3,619.6
Non-controlling interests  932.0  806.9
Total equity  3,769.1  4,426.5

Total liabilities and equity  $ 7,769.4  $ 8,749.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(in millions)

   Total Stockholders’ Equity     

 
Shares

Outstanding  
Common

Stock  
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

Retained
Earnings  

Treasury
Stock at

Cost  
Non-

controlling
Interests  

Total
Equity

December 31, 2013 53.9  $ 0.5  $ 552.9  $ 74.0  $1,638.2  $ (131.4)  $ 1,010.4  $3,144.6

Net income —  —  —  —  433.9  —  333.5  767.4

Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  (42.2)  —  —  (16.1)  (58.3)

Share-based compensation —  —  29.3  —  —  —  —  29.3

Common stock issued under share-based incentive plans —  —  (134.4)  —  —  129.1  —  (5.3)

Tax benefit from share-based incentive plans —  —  60.2  —  —  —  —  60.2

Settlement of senior convertible securities 1.9  0.1  276.4  —  —  —  —  276.5

Shares repurchases —  —  —  —  —  (238.6)  —  (238.6)

Forward equity —  —  (45.0)  —  —  —  —  (45.0)

Investments in Affiliates —  —  —  —  —  —  235.0  235.0

Affiliate equity activity:                

Affiliate equity expense —  —  47.4  —  —  —  37.0  84.4

Issuances —  —  —  —  —  —  10.8  10.8

Repurchases —  —  19.6  —  —  —  (19.6)  —
Changes in Redemption value of Redeemable non-
controlling interests —  —  (43.0)  —  —  —   (43.0)

Transfers to Redeemable non-controlling interests —  —  —  —  —  —  (22.7)  (22.7)

Capital Contributions by Affiliate equity holders —  —  —  —  —  —  17.3  17.3

Distributions to non-controlling interests —  —  —  —  —  —  (569.4)  (569.4)

December 31, 2014 55.8  $ 0.6  $ 763.4  $ 31.8  $2,072.1  $ (240.9)  $ 1,016.2  $3,643.2

Net income —  —  —  —  509.5  —  317.7  827.2

Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  (49.9)  —  —  (19.3)  (69.2)

Share-based compensation —  —  34.2  —  —  —  —  34.2

Common stock issued under share-based incentive plans —  —  (131.0)  —  —  185.0  —  54.0

Tax benefit from share-based incentive plans —  —  44.5  —  —  —  —  44.5

Shares repurchases —  —  —  —  —  (366.0)  —  (366.0)

Investments in Affiliates —  —  —  —  —  —  33.8  33.8

Affiliate equity activity:                

Affiliate equity expense —  —  16.9  —  —  —  51.6  68.5

Issuances —  —  0.1  —  —  —  1.6  1.7

Repurchases —  —  48.4  —  —  —  (0.4)  48.0
Changes in Redemption value of Redeemable non-
controlling interests —  —  (81.6)  —  —  —    (81.6)

Transfers to Redeemable non-controlling interests —  —  —  —  —  —  (49.5)  (49.5)

Capital Contributions by Affiliate equity holders —  —  —  —  —  —  11.7  11.7

Distributions to non-controlling interests —  —  —  —  —  —  (431.4)  (431.4)

December 31, 2015 55.8  $ 0.6  $ 694.9  $ (18.1)  $2,581.6  $ (421.9)  $ 932.0  $3,769.1

Net income —  —  —  —  472.8  —  266.2  739.0

Other comprehensive income (loss) —  —  —  (104.8)  —  —  (45.6)  (150.4)

Share-based compensation —  —  39.2  —  —  —  —  39.2

Common stock issued under share-based incentive plans —  —  (53.8)  —  —  69.3  —  15.5
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Shares repurchases —  —  —  —  —  (33.4)  —  (33.4)

Forward equity —  —  5.2  —  —  —  —  5.2

Common stock issued under forward equity agreement 2.7  0.0  440.3  —  —  —  —  440.3

Issuance costs and other —  —  (3.0)  —  —  —  —  (3.0)

Affiliate equity activity:                

Affiliate equity expense —  —  10.0  —  —  —  31.2  41.2

Issuances —  —  (2.8)  —  —  —  14.7  11.9

Repurchases —  —  14.9  —  —  —  0.4  15.3
Changes in redemption value of Redeemable non-
controlling interests —  —  (71.4)  —  —  —  —  (71.4)

Transfers to Redeemable non-controlling interests —  —  —  —  —  —  (42.6)  (42.6)

Capital contributions by Affiliate equity holders —  —  —  —  —  —  4.7  4.7

Distributions to non-controlling interests —  —  —  —  —  —  (354.1)  (354.1)

December 31, 2016 58.5  $ 0.6  $ 1,073.5  $ (122.9)  $3,054.4  $ (386.0)  $ 806.9  $4,426.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Cash flow from (used in) operating activities:       

Net income  $ 767.4  $ 827.2  $ 739.0

Adjustments to reconcile Net income to net cash flow from operating activities:       

Intangible amortization and impairments  122.2  115.4  110.2

Depreciation and other amortization  16.9  18.8  19.5

Deferred income tax provision  81.0  101.2  59.3

Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements  30.1  (40.3)  3.9

Income from equity method investments, net of amortization  (281.7)  (288.9)  (328.8)

Distributions received from equity method investments  366.9  346.1  346.4

Amortization of issuance costs  7.6  8.1  4.8

Share-based compensation and Affiliate equity expense  113.7  102.7  80.4

Other non-cash items  3.8  (5.8)  (24.8)

Changes in assets and liabilities:       

Purchases of trading securities by Affiliate sponsored consolidated products  (1.9)  (4.6)  (86.2)

Sales of trading securities by Affiliate sponsored consolidated products  1.3  4.1  82.8

Decrease in receivables  26.5  56.1  58.2

(Increase) decrease in other assets  (6.5)  6.7  (6.1)

Increase (decrease) in payables, accrued liabilities and other liabilities  189.6  (38.4)  (31.0)

Cash flow from operating activities  1,436.9  1,208.4  1,027.6

Cash flow from (used in) investing activities:       

Investments in Affiliates  (1,245.0)  (297.7)  (1,361.3)

Purchase of fixed assets  (19.2)  (38.2)  (20.2)

Purchase of investment securities  (21.2)  (13.5)  (16.0)

Sale of investment securities  17.3  24.9  65.3

Cash flow used in investing activities  (1,268.1)  (324.5)  (1,332.2)

Cash flow from (used in) financing activities:       

Borrowings of senior debt  1,746.5  1,253.3  1,350.0

Repayments of senior debt and convertible securities  (1,020.6)  (1,256.0)  (1,125.0)

Issuance of common stock  41.4  57.8  465.8

Repurchase of common stock  (190.8)  (413.7)  (33.4)

Note and contingent payments  14.4  20.5  4.9

Distributions to non-controlling interests  (569.4)  (431.4)  (354.1)

Affiliate equity issuances and repurchases  (65.7)  (120.6)  (104.0)

Excess tax benefit from share-based compensation  61.5  44.5  —

Settlement of forward equity sale agreement  (45.0)  0.1  —

Other financing items  (49.9)  (12.2)  (3.3)

Cash flow from (used in) financing activities  (77.6)  (857.7)  200.9

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (10.2)  (13.0)  (27.2)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  81.0  13.2  (130.9)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  469.6  550.6  563.8

Net cash outflows upon the consolidation and deconsolidation of Affiliate sponsored products  —  —  (2.1)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 550.6  $ 563.8  $ 430.8

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:       

Interest paid  $ 67.9  $ 76.4  $ 85.0

Income taxes paid  110.7  89.6  152.3

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:       

Settlement of 2006 junior convertible securities  217.8  —  —

Stock issued under incentive plans  63.6  10.7  17.2

Stock received for tax withholdings on share-based payments  44.7  3.6  9.8

Payables recorded for Share repurchases  47.8  —  —

Payables recorded for Affiliate equity repurchases  21.5  62.3  12.1



The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1. Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Organization and Nature of Operations

Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (“AMG” or the “Company”) is a global asset management company with equity investments in leading boutique
investment management firms, referred to as “Affiliates.” AMG’s Affiliates provide investment management services globally to institutional, retail and high
net worth clients.

Each of AMG’s Affiliates operates through distinct entities, typically organized as limited liability companies or limited partnerships (or equivalent non-
U.S. forms), which affords AMG the flexibility to design a separate operating agreement for each Affiliate. The operating agreements reflect the specific
terms of AMG’s economic participation in the Affiliate through a “structured partnership interest.” AMG’s structured partnership interests typically consist of
arrangements through which AMG shares in the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses and also include arrangements through which AMG shares in
the Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses. When AMG owns a majority of the equity interests in an Affiliate and its structured partnership
interest is calculated by reference to the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses, a set percentage of revenue is allocated to fund operating expenses,
including compensation (the “Operating Allocation”), while the remaining revenue (the “Owners’ Allocation”) is allocated to AMG and Affiliate
management in proportion to their respective ownership interests. When AMG owns a minority of the equity interests in an Affiliate, its structured
partnership interest is either calculated by reference to the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses or by reference to the Affiliate’s revenue less certain
agreed-upon expenses. When AMG’s interest is calculated by reference to an Affiliate’s revenue less certain agreed-upon expenses, AMG participates in
increases and decreases both in revenue and the agreed-upon expenses included in the calculation. This structure allows AMG to benefit from any increase in
revenue or any decrease in the expenses that are included in the calculation, but also directly exposes AMG to any decrease in revenue or any increase in such
expenses, which AMG may not anticipate and which could be significant.

(b) Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”). All dollar amounts, except per
share data in the text and tables herein, are stated in millions unless otherwise indicated. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior years’ financial
statements to conform to the current year’s presentation. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revision of Prior Periods

In the third quarter of 2016, the Company reviewed its accounting for Affiliate equity transactions in preparation for the adoption of Accounting Standard
Update (“ASU”) 2016-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting, which the Company has
now adopted. During this review, the Company determined that it had incorrectly recorded deferred tax benefits, a non-cash item, on certain Affiliate equity
transactions dating back to 2005. The Company assessed the impact of the error, both quantitatively and qualitatively, in accordance with the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 99 and SAB No. 108 and concluded that it was not material to any of the Company’s
previously issued Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company has revised its Consolidated Financial Statements for periods prior to 2016 to reflect the
correction of the error in the periods in which the deferred tax benefits were recorded. The cumulative impact of the correction has been reflected as a
reclassification between the beginning Retained earnings and Additional paid-in capital balances as of December 31, 2013 in the Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Equity.

The tables below show the effect of the correction on the Consolidated Statements of Income and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2015 and on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2015. All financial information presented in these notes has
been revised to reflect the correction of this error.

The revision had no impact on Income before income taxes, Total stockholders’ equity or Cash flow from operating activities.
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 For the Year Ended 2014  For the Year Ended 2015

Consolidated Statements of Income
As Previously

Reported  Adjustments  As Revised  
As Previously

Reported  Adjustments  As Revised

Income taxes $ 227.9  $ 18.2  $ 246.1  $ 256.9  $ 6.5  $ 263.4
Net income 785.6  (18.2)  767.4  833.7  (6.5)  827.2
Net income (controlling interest) 452.1  (18.2)  433.9  516.0  (6.5)  509.5
Earnings per share (basic) $ 8.22  $ (0.33)  $ 7.89  $ 9.49  $ (0.12)  $ 9.37
Earnings per share (diluted) $ 8.01  $ (0.31)  $ 7.70  $ 9.28  $ (0.11)  $ 9.17

 December 31, 2015

Consolidated Balance Sheet
As Previously

Reported  Adjustments  As Revised

Additional paid-in capital $ 597.2  $ 97.7  $ 694.9
Retained earnings 2,679.3  (97.7)  2,581.6

 For the Year Ended 2014  For the Year Ended 2015

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
As Previously

Reported Adjustments As Revised  
As Previously

Reported Adjustments As Revised

Net income $ 785.6  $ (18.2)  $ 767.4  $ 833.7  $ (6.5)  $ 827.2
Deferred income tax provision 62.8  18.2  81.0  94.7  6.5  101.2

(c) Principles of Consolidation

The Company assesses consolidation requirements pursuant to ASU 2015-02: Consolidation, which was adopted using the modified retrospective method
and resulted in an effective date of adoption of January 1, 2016.

In evaluating whether an investment must be consolidated, the Company evaluates the risk, rewards, and significant terms of each of its Affiliate and
other investments to determine if an investment is considered a voting rights entity (“VRE”) or a variable interest entity (“VIE”). An entity is a VRE when the
total equity investment at risk is sufficient to enable the entity to finance its activities independently and when the equity holders have the obligation to absorb
losses, the right to receive residual returns and the right to direct the activities of the entity that most significantly impact its economic performance. An entity
is a VIE when it lacks one or more of the characteristics of a VRE. Assessing whether an entity is a VRE or VIE involves judgment. Upon the occurrence of
certain events, management reviews and reconsiders its previous conclusion regarding the status of an entity as a VRE or a VIE.

The Company consolidates VREs when it has control over significant operating, financial and investing decisions of the investment or holds the majority
voting interest. The Company consolidates VIEs when it has a controlling financial interest, which is defined as having the power to direct the activities that
most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses of or the right to receive benefits from the entity that could
potentially be significant to the VIE.

Investments in Affiliates

For the Company’s consolidated Affiliates, the portion of the Owners’ Allocation allocated to Affiliate management is included in Net income (non-
controlling interests) in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Non-controlling interests on the Consolidated Balance Sheets include capital and
undistributed Operating and Owners’ Allocation owned by Affiliate management of the Company’s consolidated Affiliates. The effect of any changes in the
Company’s equity interests in its consolidated Affiliates resulting from the issuance or repurchase of an Affiliate’s equity by the Company or one of its
Affiliates is included as a component of stockholders’ equity, net of any related income tax effects in the period of the change. The current redemption value
of non-controlling interests has been presented as Redeemable non-controlling interests on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Company applies the equity method of accounting to investments where the Company does not hold a controlling equity interest but has the ability
to exercise significant influence over operating and financial matters. Other investments in
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which the Company owns less than a 20% interest and does not exercise significant influence are accounted for under the cost method. Under the cost
method, income is recognized when dividends are declared.

Affiliate Sponsored Investment Vehicles

The Company’s consolidated Affiliates sponsor various investment products where they also act as the investment advisor, and in some cases these
products are considered VIEs. These investment products are typically owned primarily by third-party investors; however, certain products are capitalized
with seed capital investments from Affiliates.

Investors are generally entitled to substantially all of the economics of these VIEs, except for the management and performance fees earned by Affiliates
or any gains or losses attributable to Affiliates’ investments in these products. As a result, Affiliates do not generally consolidate these VIEs unless the
Affiliate’s interest in the product is considered substantial. When consolidating these VIEs, the Company retains the specialized investment company
accounting principles of the underlying products, and all of the underlying investments are carried at fair value in Investments in marketable securities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets with corresponding changes in the investments’ fair values reflected in Other operating expenses (net) in the Consolidated
Statements of Income. Purchases and sales of securities are presented within purchases and sales by Affiliate sponsored consolidated products in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. When Affiliates no longer control these products, due to a reduction in ownership or other reasons, the products are
deconsolidated.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments, including money market mutual funds, with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value due to the short-term maturity of these investments. Money market mutual
funds with a floating net asset value (“NAV”) would not meet the definition of a cash equivalent if the fund has enacted liquidity fees or redemption gates.

(e) Receivables

The Company’s Affiliates earn asset based and performance fees, which are billed based on the terms of the related contracts. Billed but uncollected asset
based and performance fees are presented within Receivables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are generally short-term in nature.

Certain of the Company’s Affiliates in the UK act as intermediaries between clients and their sponsored investment products. Normal settlement periods
on transactions initiated by these clients with the sponsored investment products result in unsettled fund share receivables and payables that are presented on a
gross basis within Receivables and Payables and accrued liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The gross presentation of these receivables and
offsetting payables reflects the legal relationship between the underlying investor and the Company’s Affiliates.

(f) Investments in Marketable Securities

Investments in marketable securities are classified as either trading or available-for-sale and carried at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses on
investments classified as available-for-sale are reported, net of tax, as a separate component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in Equity
until realized when they are reported in Investment and other income in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Realized and unrealized gains or losses
related to trading securities are reported within Investment and other income. Realized gains and losses are recorded on trade date on a specific identified
basis. If a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale investment is determined to be other-than-temporary, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its fair value, and the difference is charged to Investment and other income in the period incurred.

(g) Fair Value Measurements

The Company determines the fair value of certain investment securities and other financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is
determined based on the price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, utilizing a hierarchy of three different valuation techniques:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted market prices for identical instruments in active markets;
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Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and
model-derived valuations whose inputs, or significant value drivers, are observable; and

Level 3 - Prices reflect the Company’s own assumptions concerning unobservable inputs to the valuation model. These inputs require significant
management judgment and reflect the Company’s assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.

(h) Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of office
equipment and furniture and fixtures range from three to ten years. Computer software developed or obtained for internal use is amortized over the estimated
useful life of the software, generally three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the term of
the lease, and buildings are amortized over their expected useful lives. The costs of improvements that extend the life of a fixed asset are capitalized, while
the cost of repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Land is not depreciated.

(i) Leases

The Company and its Affiliates currently lease office space and equipment under various leasing arrangements. As these leases expire, it can be expected
that in the normal course of business they will be renewed or replaced. Leases are classified as either capital leases or operating leases, as appropriate. Most
lease agreements for office space that are classified as operating leases contain renewal options, rent escalation clauses or other inducements provided by the
landlord. Rent expense is accrued to recognize lease escalation provisions and inducements provided by the landlord, if any, on a straight-line basis over the
lease term and is reported in Other operating expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

(j) Equity Method Investments in Affiliates

For Equity method investments in Affiliates, the Company’s share of the Affiliate’s revenue without regard to expenses or less certain agreed-upon
expenses, net of amortization of intangible assets related to the Company’s investment, is included in Income from equity method investments in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. The Company’s share of income taxes incurred directly by Affiliates accounted for under the equity method is recorded
within Income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income because these taxes generally represent the Company’s share of the taxes incurred by
Affiliates.

The Company periodically evaluates its equity method investments for impairment. In such impairment evaluations, the Company assesses if the fair
value of the investment has declined below its carrying value for a period considered to be other-than-temporary. If the Company determines that a decline in
fair value below the carrying value of the investment is other-than-temporary, then the reduction in carrying value would be recorded in Income from equity
method investments.

(k) Acquired Client Relationships and Goodwill

Each Affiliate in which the Company makes an investment has identifiable assets arising from contractual or other legal rights with their clients
(“acquired client relationships”). In determining the value of acquired client relationships, the Company analyzes the net present value of these Affiliates’
existing client relationships based on a number of factors, including: the Affiliate’s historical and potential future operating performance; the Affiliate’s
historical and potential future rates of attrition of existing clients; the stability and longevity of existing client relationships; the Affiliate’s recent, as well as
long-term, investment performance; the characteristics of the firm’s products and investment styles; the stability and depth of the Affiliate’s management
team; and the Affiliate’s history and perceived franchise or brand value.

The Company has determined that certain of its acquired client relationships meet the criteria to be considered indefinite-lived assets because the
Company expects both the renewal of these contracts and, therefore, the cash flows generated by these contracts to continue indefinitely. Accordingly, the
Company does not amortize these intangible assets, but instead reviews these assets annually or more frequently whenever events or circumstances occur
indicating that the recorded indefinite-lived assets may be impaired. Each reporting period, the Company assesses whether events or circumstances have
occurred that indicate that the indefinite life criteria are no longer met. If the indefinite life criteria are no longer met, the Company would assess whether the
carrying value of the assets exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss would be recorded in an amount equal to any such excess and these assets would be
reclassified to definite-lived.

The expected useful lives of definite-lived acquired client relationships are determined based on an analysis of the historical and projected attrition rates
of each Affiliate’s existing clients, and other factors that may influence the expected
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future economic benefit the Company will derive from the relationships. The expected lives of definite-lived acquired client relationships are analyzed
annually or more frequently whenever events or circumstances have occurred that indicate the expected useful lives may no longer be appropriate.

The Company tests for the possible impairment of indefinite and definite-lived intangible assets annually or more frequently whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset is not recoverable. If such indicators exist, the Company compares the fair value of the asset to
the carrying value of the asset. If the carrying value is greater than the fair value, an impairment loss would be recorded in Intangible amortization and
impairments in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified and
separately recognized, and is reported within the segments in which the Affiliate operates. Goodwill is not amortized, but is instead reviewed for impairment.
The Company assesses goodwill for impairment at least annually, or more frequently whenever events or circumstances occur indicating that the recorded
goodwill may be impaired. If the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the fair value, an impairment loss would be recorded in Intangible amortization and
impairments.

(l) Issuance Costs

Issuance costs related to the Company’s senior bank debt are amortized over the remaining term of the senior unsecured multicurrency revolving credit
facility (the “revolver”) and the senior unsecured term loan facility (the “term loan”).  Issuance costs associated with the revolver and term loan are included
in Other assets and as a reduction of the related debt balance, respectively, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Issuance costs associated with the Company’s
senior notes are amortized over the shorter of the period to the first investor put date or the Company’s estimate of the expected term of the security, and are
included as a reduction of the related debt balance in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  The expense resulting from the amortization of these issuance costs is
reported in Interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

(m) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company may utilize financial instruments, specifically interest rate derivative contracts to hedge certain interest rate exposures. In entering into
these contracts, the Company intends to offset cash flow gains and losses that occur on its existing debt obligations with cash flow gains and losses on the
contracts hedging these obligations.

From time to time, the Company’s Affiliates use foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the risk of foreign exchange rate movements. In entering
into these contracts, the Affiliates intend to offset cash flow gains and losses on projected foreign currency-denominated revenues and expenses as a result of
variability in foreign exchange rates.

The Company records derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. If the Company’s derivatives qualify as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the
unrealized gain or loss is recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders’ equity and reclassified to
Investment and other income when the hedged cash flows are recorded in earnings. Hedge effectiveness is generally measured by comparing the present value
of the cumulative change in the expected future variable cash flows of the hedged contract with the present value of the cumulative change in the expected
future variable cash flows of the hedged item. To the extent that the critical terms of the hedged item and the derivative are not identical, hedge
ineffectiveness would be reported in Investment and other income. If the Company’s or its Affiliates’ derivatives do not qualify as cash flow or fair value
hedges, changes in the fair value of the derivatives are recognized as a gain or loss in Investment and other income.

(n) Contingent Payment Arrangements

The Company periodically enters into contingent payment arrangements in connection with its business combinations. In these arrangements, the
Company agrees to pay additional consideration to the sellers to the extent that certain levels of revenue growth or other metrics are achieved. For
consolidated Affiliates, the Company estimates the fair value of these potential future obligations at the time a business combination is consummated and
records a liability primarily in Other liabilities on its Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company then accretes the obligation to its expected payment amount
over the period until the arrangement is measured. If the Company’s expected payment amount subsequently changes, the obligation is reduced or increased
in the current period resulting in a gain or loss, respectively. Both gains and losses resulting from changes to expected payments and the accretion of these
obligations to their expected payment amounts are reflected within Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements. For Affiliates accounted
for under the equity method of accounting, the Company records a liability when a payment becomes probable in Payables and accrued liabilities, with a
corresponding increase to the carrying value of the Affiliate in Equity method investments in Affiliates in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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(o) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the
expected future tax consequences of differences between the financial reporting bases of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, using tax rates in
effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
Income taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period when the change is enacted.

The Company regularly assesses the recoverability of its deferred income tax assets to determine whether these assets are more-likely-than-not to be
realized. In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable
temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies and results of recent operations. If the Company determines that it would be
able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of their recorded amount, or that the recorded deferred tax assets are not realizable, the Company
would adjust the deferred tax asset valuation allowance to record the deferred tax assets at their current value, which would increase or decrease Income
taxes, respectively.

The Company records unrecognized tax benefits based on whether it is more-likely-than-not that the uncertain tax positions will be sustained on the basis
of the technical merits of the position. If it is determined an uncertain tax position is more-likely-than-not to be sustained, the Company records the largest
amount of tax benefit that is more than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement with the related tax authority in Income taxes. Interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits are also recorded in Income taxes.

(p) Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar are translated into U.S. dollars using exchange rates in effect as of the balance sheet
date. Revenue and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars using average exchange rates for the relevant period. Because of the long-term nature of the
Company’s investments in Affiliates, net translation exchange gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in Accumulated
comprehensive income as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are reflected in Investment and other
income.

(q) Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash investments. The
Company maintains cash and cash equivalents, investments and, at times, certain financial instruments with various high credit-quality financial institutions.
These financial institutions are typically located in countries in which AMG and its Affiliates operate. For AMG and certain Affiliates, cash deposits at a
financial institution may exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limits.

(r) Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue primarily represents advisory fees billed by consolidated Affiliates for managing the assets of clients. Asset based advisory fees
are recognized as services are rendered and are typically based upon a percentage of the value of a client’s assets under management. Any fees collected in
advance are deferred and recognized as income over the period earned. Performance fees are generally assessed as a percentage of the investment
performance realized on a client’s account. Performance fees are recognized when they are earned (i.e., when they become billable to customers and are not
subject to claw-back) based on the contractual terms of agreements and when collection is reasonably assured. Carried interest is recognized upon the earlier
of the termination of the investment product or when the likelihood of claw-back is improbable. Also included in revenue are commissions earned by broker-
dealers, and administrative fees for services provided to Affiliate sponsored investment products.

The Company’s Affiliates have contractual arrangements with third parties to provide certain distribution-related services. These third parties are
primarily compensated based on the value of client assets over time. Distribution-related revenues are presented in Revenue in the Consolidated Statements of
Income gross of any related expenses when the Affiliate is the principal in its role as primary obligor under its sales and distribution arrangements.
Distribution-related expenses are presented within Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

(s) Earnings Per Share
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The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share is similar to basic earnings per share, but adjusts for the dilutive effect of the potential issuance of incremental shares of the
Company’s common stock.

The Company had convertible securities outstanding during the periods presented and is required to apply the if-converted method to these securities in
its calculation of diluted earnings per share. Under the if-converted method, shares that are issuable upon conversion are deemed outstanding, regardless of
whether the securities are contractually convertible into the Company’s common stock at that time. For this calculation, the interest expense (net of tax)
attributable to these dilutive securities is added back to Net income (controlling interest), reflecting the assumption that the securities have been converted.
Issuable shares for these securities and related interest expense are excluded from the calculation if an assumed conversion would be anti-dilutive to diluted
earnings per share.

(t) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company recognizes expenses for all share-based payments based on their grant date fair values over the requisite service period. The Company
records these expenses only for awards that are expected to vest.

Prior to 2016, the Company reported any tax benefits realized upon the exercise of stock options or vesting of restricted stock that were in excess of the
expense recognized for reporting purposes as a financing activity in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. If the tax benefit ultimately realized was
greater than or less than the expense recognized, the tax windfall or shortfall was recognized in stockholders’ equity. To the extent the shortfall exceeded the
cumulative windfall tax benefits, the excess was recognized in Income taxes.

Beginning in 2016, all tax windfalls or shortfalls are recognized in Income taxes and have been classified as operating activities in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows. Taxes paid by the Company when it withholds shares to satisfy tax withholding obligations are classified as a financing activity.

(u) Segment Information

Management has assessed and determined that the Company operates in three business segments representing the Company’s three principal distribution
channels: Institutional, Mutual Fund and High Net Worth, each of which has different client relationships.

Revenue and Income from equity method investments in the Institutional distribution channel are earned from relationships with public and private client
entities, including foundations, endowments, sovereign wealth funds and retirement plans for corporations and municipalities. Revenue and Income from
equity method investments in the Mutual Fund distribution channel are earned from advisory or sub-advisory relationships with active return-oriented mutual
funds, UCITS and other retail products. Revenue and Income from equity method investments in the High Net Worth distribution channel are earned from
relationships with high net worth and ultra-high net worth individuals, families, trusts, foundations, endowments and retirement plans.

In measuring Net income (controlling interest) by segment, the Company’s share of expenses incurred directly at Affiliates and AMG Funds is allocated
to a particular segment pro rata to the revenue generated by the Affiliate and AMG Funds in such segment. All other operating and non-operating expenses
not incurred directly by an Affiliate or AMG Funds are generally allocated to segments based on the relative contribution to Adjusted EBITDA (controlling
interest) of the applicable Affiliate or AMG Funds in each segment.

(v) Recent Accounting Developments

Effective January 1, 2016, the Company adopted several updates to accounting standards as follows:

• ASU 2015-02, Consolidation: Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis (“ASU 2015-02: Consolidation”);
• ASU 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest: Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs;
• ASU 2015-07, Fair Value Measurement: Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent);
• ASU 2015-16, Business Combinations: Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period Adjustments; and
• ASU 2016-09, Stock Compensation: Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting.

The adoption of these updates did not have a significant impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
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In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, as amended. The
new standard provides a comprehensive model for revenue recognition. The standard is effective for interim and fiscal periods beginning after December 15,
2017. The Company is reviewing its and its Affiliates’ contracts with clients to evaluate the impact of this standard on its Consolidated Financial Statements,
but it does not expect the adoption to significantly impact the timing of the recognition of the majority of its Revenue.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Fair Value: Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Liabilities.  Under the new standard,
all equity investments in unconsolidated entities (other than those accounted for using the equity method of accounting) will generally be measured at fair
value through earnings.  The standard is effective for interim and fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2017.  The Company is evaluating the impact of
this standard on its Consolidated Financial Statements; any impact will be primarily dependent on equity investments in securities held by the Company at the
time of adoption.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities arising from most operating leases on
the statement of financial position. The standard is effective for interim and fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is evaluating the
impact of this standard on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-07, Investments - Equity Method and Joint Ventures: Simplifying the Transition to the Equity Method of
Accounting, which simplifies the equity method of accounting by eliminating the need to apply the equity method retroactively to an investment that
subsequently qualifies for such accounting treatment. The standard is effective for interim and fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The
Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows - Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments, which clarifies
how cash receipts and cash payments are classified in the statement of cash flows. The standard is effective for interim and fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2017. The Company does not expect the adoption of this standard to have a significant impact on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01, Clarifying the Definition of a Business, which provides guidance on evaluating whether transactions
should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. The standard is effective for interim and fiscal periods beginning after
December 15, 2017. The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other: Simplifying the Accounting for Goodwill Impairment, which
simplifies goodwill impairment testing. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value exceeds its fair value, not
to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. The standard is effective for interim and fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Company is
evaluating the impact of this standard on its Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. Investments in Marketable Securities

Investments in marketable securities at December 31, 2015 and 2016 were $199.9 million and $122.4 million, respectively. The following is a summary
of the cost, gross unrealized gains and losses and fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale and trading:

  Available-for-Sale  Trading

  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2016  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2016

Cost  $ 104.7  $ 66.1  $ 19.8  $ 34.4
Unrealized Gains  77.6  17.6  1.9  6.6
Unrealized Losses  (1.8)  (1.8)  (2.3)  (0.5)

Fair Value  $ 180.5  $ 81.9  $ 19.4  $ 40.5

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016, the Company received proceeds of $18.1 million and $61.1 million, respectively, from the sale of
investments classified as available-for-sale and recorded gains of $8.8 million and $19.9 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2016, the Company realized gains on the sale of investments classified as trading of $0.8 million and $4.4 million, respectively. For the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2016, the
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Company realized losses on the sale of investments classified as trading of $0.1 million and $3.4 million, respectively. These gains and losses were recorded
in Investment and other income.

3. Other Investments

Other investments consist of investments in funds advised by Affiliates that are carried at fair value. The income or loss related to these investments is
recorded in Investment and other income.

4. Variable Interest Entities

The Company’s consolidated Affiliates act as the investment advisor for certain investment entities that are considered VIEs, and in connection with the
adoption of ASU 2015-02: Consolidation, certain investment entities previously accounted for as VIEs no longer met the criteria for being a VIE and certain
VREs became VIEs and were either consolidated or disclosed as VIEs.

The Company's Affiliates’ involvement with unconsolidated VIEs is generally limited to that of a service provider, and their investment, if any,
represents an insignificant interest in the relevant investment entities’ assets under management. The Company's Affiliates’ exposure to risk in these entities is
generally limited to any capital contribution it has made or is required to make and any earned but uncollected asset based and performance fees. The
Company has not issued any investment performance guarantees to these VIEs or their investors.

The net assets and liabilities of unconsolidated VIEs and the Company’s maximum risk of loss were as follows:

  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2016

  
Unconsolidated
VIE Net Assets  

Carrying Value and
Maximum Risk of Loss  

Unconsolidated
VIE Net Assets  

Carrying Value and
Maximum Risk of Loss

Sponsored investment funds  $ 6,688.9  $ 1.4  $ 1,756.6  $ 9.4

In addition, substantially all of the Company’s consolidated Affiliates are considered VIEs. The unconsolidated assets, net of liabilities and non-
controlling interests, of Affiliates accounted for under the equity method of accounting were $1.2 billion and $1.0 billion, as of December 31, 2015 and 2016,
respectively.  The Company’s carrying value and maximum exposure to loss for these Affiliates was approximately $1.9 billion and $2.8 billion as of
December 31, 2015 and 2016, respectively.

5. Senior Bank Debt

The Company has a senior unsecured multicurrency revolving credit facility and a senior unsecured term loan facility (together, the “credit facilities”). 
In 2016, the Company amended the revolver to increase commitments from $1.3 billion to $1.45 billion, and amended the term loan to increase borrowings
from $350.0 million to $385.0 million. The credit facilities mature on September 30, 2020.

Subject to certain conditions, the Company may further increase the commitments under the revolver by up to $350.0 million and borrow up to an
additional $65.0 million under the term loan. The Company pays interest on any outstanding obligations under the credit facilities at specified rates, based
either on the LIBOR rate or the prime rate as in effect from time to time.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2016, the Company had outstanding borrowings under the revolver of $295.0 million and $485.0 million, respectively, and
the weighted-average interest rate on outstanding borrowings was 2.52% and 1.88%, respectively. As of December 31, 2015 and 2016, the Company had
outstanding borrowings under the term loan of $350.0 million and $385.0 million, respectively, and the weighted-average interest rate on outstanding
borrowings was 1.45% and 1.87%, respectively. The Company pays commitment fees on the unused portion of its revolver. For the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2016, these fees amounted to $1.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

The credit facilities contain financial covenants with respect to leverage and interest coverage, as well as customary affirmative and negative covenants,
including limitations on priority indebtedness, asset dispositions and fundamental corporate changes, and certain customary events of default.

6. Senior Notes
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At December 31, 2016, the Company had three senior notes outstanding, the principal terms of which are summarized below. In 2015, the Company
redeemed, canceled and retired all $140.0 million principal amount outstanding of its 5.25% senior unsecured notes due 2022 at a redemption price equal to
100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest.

  
2024

Senior
Notes  

2025
Senior
Notes  

2042
Senior
Notes

Issue date  February 2014  February 2015  August 2012
Maturity date  February 2024  August 2025  August 2042
Potential Call Date  Any Time (1)  Any Time (1)  August 2017
Par value (in millions)  $ 400.0  $ 350.0  $ 200.0
Call Price  As Defined (1)  As Defined (1)  At Par
Stated coupon  4.25%  3.50%  6.375%
Coupon frequency  Semi-annually  Semi-annually  Quarterly
__________________________

(1) The 2024 and 2025 senior notes may be redeemed at any time, in whole or in part, at a make-whole redemption price plus accrued and unpaid interest.

7. Convertible Securities

At December 31, 2016, the Company had junior convertible trust preferred securities outstanding (the “junior convertible securities”).

The carrying value and principal amount at maturity of the junior convertible securities were as follows:

  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2016

  
Carrying

Value  
Principal Amount

at Maturity  
Carrying

Value  
Principal Amount

at Maturity

Junior convertible securities(1)  $ 305.2  $ 430.8  $ 307.5  $ 430.8
__________________________

(1) The carrying value is accreted to the principal amount at maturity over a remaining life of 21 years.

The junior convertible securities bear interest at 5.15% per annum, payable quarterly in cash. Each $50 security is convertible, at any time, into 0.25
shares of the Company’s common stock, which represents a conversion price of $200 per share, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments. Holders of the
junior convertible securities have no rights to put these securities to the Company. Upon conversion, holders will receive cash or shares of the Company’s
common stock, or a combination thereof, at the Company’s election. The Company may redeem the junior convertible securities if the closing price of its
common stock exceeds $260 per share for 20 trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days. The junior convertible securities are considered
contingent payment debt instruments under federal income tax regulations, which require the Company to deduct interest in an amount greater than its
reported interest expense. These deductions result in annual deferred tax liabilities of $10.2 million. These deferred tax liabilities will be reclassified directly
to stockholders’ equity if the Company’s common stock is trading above certain thresholds at the time of the conversion of the securities.

8. Forward Equity and Equity Distribution Program

In 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell approximately 2.9 million shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $167.25 per share
on a forward basis.  During the year, the Company issued 2.7 million shares to settle a portion of this forward equity sale and received proceeds of $440.3
million, and net settled 0.2 million shares for cash at an average share price of $144.59. As of December 31, 2016, no shares remain outstanding under this
agreement.

In 2016, the Company entered into equity distribution and forward equity agreements with several major securities firms under which the Company, from
time to time, may issue and sell shares of its common stock (immediately or on a forward basis) having an aggregate sales price of up to $500.0 million (the
“equity distribution program”). As of December 31, 2016, no sales have occurred under the equity distribution program.
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9. Derivative Financial Instruments

From time to time, the Company seeks to offset its exposure to changing interest rates under its debt financing arrangements and certain of its Affiliates
seek to offset their exposure to changing foreign exchange rates by entering into derivative contracts.

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016, the Company’s Affiliates realized $3.2 million and $0.2 million of gains, respectively, and $1.7
million and $1.2 million of losses, respectively, upon the settlement of certain foreign currency forward contracts. Such realized gains and losses are
presented in Revenue, Operating expenses or Investment and other income, depending on the risk being hedged. At December 31, 2016, the Company’s
Affiliates had unrealized gains and losses related to outstanding foreign currency forward contracts of $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively.  Such
unrealized gains and losses are presented within Accumulated other comprehensive income. There were no foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at
December 31, 2015.

10. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company and its Affiliates may be subject to claims, legal proceedings and other contingencies in the ordinary course of their
business activities. Any such matters are subject to various uncertainties, and it is possible that some of these matters may be resolved in a manner
unfavorable to the Company or its Affiliates. The Company and its Affiliates establish accruals, as necessary, for matters for which the outcome is probable
and the amount of the liability can be reasonably estimated.

Third Avenue Management LLC (“Third Avenue”), one of the Company’s consolidated Affiliates, has been named as a defendant in various legal actions
relating to the liquidation and closure of the Third Avenue Focused Credit Fund. The Company has been named as a co-defendant in one of these actions, as a
purported control person. In the fourth quarter of 2016, Third Avenue recorded a reserve of $15.0 million in connection with the proposed resolution of all
claims, including against the Company, related to the Focused Credit Fund, which is subject to court approvals. The entire amount of the reserve would be
funded by Third Avenue and, therefore, the recording of the reserve had no impact on Net income (controlling interest).

The Company has committed to co-invest in certain Affiliate sponsored investment products. As of December 31, 2016, these unfunded commitments
were $92.2 million and may be called in future periods. In connection with a past acquisition agreement, the Company is contractually entitled to
reimbursement from a prior owner of one of the Company’s Affiliates for $11.8 million of these commitments if they are called.

As of December 31, 2016, Company was contingently liable, upon achievement by certain Affiliates of specified financial targets, to make payments
through 2019 of up to $84.9 million associated with its consolidated Affiliates and $312.0 million associated with its equity method Affiliates. The Company
expects to make payments of $10.3 million ($3.0 million in 2017) of the $84.9 million related to consolidated Affiliates and no payments related to the
Company’s equity method Affiliates.

Affiliate equity interests provide holders with a conditional right to put their interests to the Company over time. See Note 20. In addition, in connection
with an investment in an Affiliate accounted for under the equity method, the Company entered into an arrangement with a minority owner of the Affiliate
that gives such owner the right to sell a portion of its ownership interest in the Affiliate to the Company annually beginning in 2018. The purchase price of
these conditional purchases will be at fair market value on the date of the transaction.

The Company and certain Affiliates operate under regulatory authorities that require that they maintain minimum financial or capital requirements.
Management is not aware of any significant violations of such requirements.

11. Fair Value Measurements

The following tables summarize the Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
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Fair Value Measurements  

December 31, 2015    Level 1  Level 2  Level 3

Financial Assets         
Cash equivalents  $ 65.9  $ 65.9  $ —  $ —
Investments in marketable securities(1)         

Trading securities  19.4  19.4  —  —
Available-for-sale securities  180.5  180.5  —  —

Other investments(2)  23.3  20.7  2.6  —
Financial Liabilities(3)         

Contingent payment arrangements  $ 10.2  $ —  $ —  $ 10.2
Affiliate equity obligations  62.3  —  —  62.3

 

    

Fair Value Measurements  

December 31, 2016    Level 1  Level 2  Level 3

Financial Assets         
Cash equivalents  $ 64.1  $ 64.1  $ —  $ —
Investments in marketable securities(1)         

Trading securities  40.5  40.5  —  —
Available for sale securities  81.9  81.9  —  —

Other investments(2)  3.4  3.4  —  —
Foreign currency forward contracts(3)  0.6  —  0.6  —

Financial Liabilities(3)         
Contingent payment arrangements  $ 8.6  $ —  $ —  $ 8.6
Affiliate equity obligations  12.1  —  —  12.1
Foreign currency forward contracts  0.5  —  0.5  —

__________________________

(1) Principally investments in equity securities.

(2) The Company adopted ASU 2015-07 and no longer includes $126.0 million and $144.1 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2016, respectively, of
investments in certain entities for which fair value was measured using NAV as a practical expedient.

(3) Amounts are presented within Other assets or Other liabilities.

The following are descriptions of the significant financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and the fair value methodologies used.

Cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid investments in daily redeeming money market funds, without enacted liquidity fees or redemption
gates.

Investments in marketable securities consist primarily of investments in publicly traded securities and in funds advised by Affiliates that are valued at
NAV. Publicly traded securities valued using unadjusted quoted market prices for identical instruments in active markets are classified as level 1. Publicly
traded securities valued using quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are
not active are classified as level 2.

Other investments consist primarily of funds advised by Affiliates that are valued using NAV. Investments in funds that calculate NAVs are classified as
level 1. Investments in funds valued using other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data, such as quoted prices for similar
instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, are classified as level 2.
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Contingent payment arrangements represent the present value of the expected future settlement of contingent payment arrangements related to the
Company’s investments in consolidated Affiliates. The significant unobservable inputs that are used in the fair value measurement of these obligations are
growth and discount rates. Increases in the growth rate result in a higher obligation while an increase in the discount rate results in a lower obligation.

Affiliate equity obligations include agreements to repurchase Affiliate equity. The significant unobservable inputs that are used in the fair value
measurement of the agreements to repurchase Affiliate equity are growth and discount rates. Increases in the growth rate result in a higher obligation while an
increase in the discount rate results in a lower obligation.

Foreign currency forward contracts use model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable in active markets to determine fair value
and are classified as level 2.

It is the Company’s policy to value financial assets or liabilities transferred as of the beginning of the period in which the transfer occurs. There were no
significant transfers of financial assets or liabilities from level 1 to level 2 in 2015 or 2016.

Level 3 Financial Liabilities

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 liabilities:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2015  2016

  
Contingent Payment

Arrangements  
Affiliate Equity

Obligations  
Contingent Payment

Arrangements  
Affiliate Equity

Obligations

Balance, beginning of period  $ 59.3  $ 21.5  $ 10.2  $ 62.3
Net (gains) losses  (40.9) (1) (1.4)  (1.6) (1) 3.1
Purchases and issuances  9.3  158.0  —  69.1
Settlements and reductions  (17.5)  (115.8)  —  (122.4)

Balance, end of period  $ 10.2  $ 62.3  $ 8.6  $ 12.1

Net change in unrealized (gains) losses relating to instruments still
held at the reporting date  $ (40.9)  $ —  $ (1.6)  $ —
__________________________

(1) Accretion and changes in the expected value of the Company’s contingent payment arrangements are recorded in Imputed interest expense and
contingent payment arrangements.

The following table presents certain quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in valuing the Company’s level 3 financial
liabilities:

  Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

  
Valuation

Techniques  
Unobservable

Input  
Fair Value at

December 31, 2015  
Range at December

31, 2015  
Fair Value at
December 31,

2016  
Range at December

31, 2016

Contingent payment arrangements  Discounted cash flow  Growth rates  $ 10.2  3% - 8%  $ 8.6  3% - 8%

    Discount rates    15%    14% - 15%

Affiliate equity obligations  Discounted cash flow  Growth rates  62.3  1% - 9%  12.1  4% - 10%

    Discount rates    14% - 15%    15% - 16%

Investments in Certain Entities that Calculate Net Asset Value

The Company uses the NAV of certain investments as their fair value. The NAVs provided by the investees have been derived from the fair values of the
underlying assets and liabilities as of the measurement dates. The following table summarizes the nature of these investments and any related liquidity
restrictions or other factors that may impact the ultimate value realized:
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  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2016

Category of Investment  Fair Value  
Unfunded

Commitments  Fair Value  
Unfunded

Commitments

Private equity(1)  $ 126.0  $ 76.8  $ 137.8  $ 92.2
Other funds(2)  72.3  —  36.8  —

  $ 198.3  $ 76.8  $ 174.6  $ 92.2
__________________________

(1) These funds primarily invest in a broad range of private equity funds, as well as make direct investments. Distributions will be received as the underlying
assets are liquidated over the life of the funds, which is generally up to 15 years. The fair value of private equity funds is determined using NAV one
quarter in arrears (adjusted for current period calls and distributions).

(2) These are multi-disciplinary funds that invest across various asset classes and strategies, including long/short equity, credit and real estate. Investments
are generally redeemable on a daily, monthly or quarterly basis.

Other Financial Assets and Liabilities Not Carried at Fair Value

The carrying amount of Receivables and Payables and accrued liabilities approximates fair value because of the short-term nature of these instruments.
The carrying value of notes receivable approximates fair value because interest rates and other terms are at market rates. The carrying value of the credit
facilities approximates fair value because the debt has variable interest based on selected short-term rates. The following table summarizes the Company’s
other financial liabilities not carried at fair value:

  December 31, 2015  December 31, 2016   

  Carrying Value  Fair Value  Carrying Value  Fair Value  
Fair Value
Hierarchy

Senior notes  $ 944.6  $ 966.3  $ 945.1  $ 936.0  Level 2
Convertible securities  305.2  483.6  307.5  466.9  Level 2

12. Business Combinations

The Company completed majority investments in Baker Street Advisors, LLC on April 1, 2015 and myCIO Wealth Partners, L.P. on October 1, 2015.
The Company’s purchase price allocations used financial models that included assumptions of market performance, net client cash flows and discount rates. 
The consideration paid (less net tangible assets acquired) will be deductible for U.S. tax purposes over a 15-year life.

The aggregate purchase price allocation for the 2015 investments was as follows:

  Total

Consideration paid  $ 76.1
Contingent payment obligations  9.3
Non-controlling interests  33.8

Enterprise value  $ 119.2

Acquired client relationships  $ 52.5
Tangible assets, net  2.4
Goodwill  64.3

  $ 119.2
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The excess of the enterprise value over the separately identifiable net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill and the segment allocation was as
follows:

  Total

Institutional  14.4%
Mutual Fund  —%
High Net Worth  85.6%

Unaudited pro forma financial results are set forth below, assuming these investments occurred on January 1, 2014 and the Company’s structured
partnership interests had been in effect for the entire period.

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014 (Unaudited)  2015 (Unaudited)

Revenue  $ 2,538.2  $ 2,499.4
Net income (controlling interest)  436.3  511.4
Earnings per share (basic)  $ 7.93  $ 9.41
Earnings per share (diluted)  $ 7.74  $ 9.20

The unaudited pro forma financial results are not necessarily indicative of the financial results had the investments been consummated at the beginning
of the periods presented, nor are they necessarily indicative of the financial results expected in future periods. The unaudited pro forma financial results do
not include the impact of transaction and integration related costs or benefits that may be expected to result from these investments.

The Company’s new investments contributed $15.3 million and $1.3 million to the Company’s Revenue and Net income, respectively, during 2015.

The Company had liabilities to related parties for contingent payment arrangements in connection with certain business combinations. The total payable
was $10.2 million and $8.6 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2016, respectively, and was included in Other liabilities. In 2015, the Company made $17.5
million in payments associated with these liabilities. In 2016, no such payments were made.  For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016, the Company
adjusted its estimates of contingent payment obligations and recorded gains attributable to the controlling interest of $44.7 million and $2.8 million,
respectively. These amounts are included in Imputed interest expense and contingent payment arrangements.

13. Goodwill and Acquired Client Relationships

The following tables present the change in Goodwill and components of Acquired client relationships, net of the Company’s consolidated Affiliates:

  Goodwill

  Institutional  Mutual Fund  High Net Worth  Total

Balance, as of December 31, 2014  $ 1,159.1  $ 1,125.3  $ 368.4  $ 2,652.8
Goodwill acquired  9.2  —  55.1  64.3
Foreign currency translation  (27.0)  (5.8)  (15.9)  (48.7)
Balance, as of December 31, 2015  $ 1,141.3  $ 1,119.5  $ 407.6  $ 2,668.4
Goodwill acquired  —  —  —  —
Foreign currency translation  (5.1)  (37.0)  1.8  (40.3)

Balance, as of December 31, 2016  $ 1,136.2  $ 1,082.5  $ 409.4  $ 2,628.1

During 2015 and 2016, the Company completed impairment assessments on its goodwill and no impairments were indicated.  Only a substantial decline
in the fair value of its reporting units would result in an indication of impairment.
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  Acquired Client Relationships

  Definite-lived  Indefinite-lived  Total

  
Gross Book

Value  
Accumulated
Amortization  

Net Book
Value  

Net Book
Value  

Net Book
Value

Balance, as of December 31, 2014  $ 1,255.1  $ (565.0)  $ 690.1  $ 1,088.3  $ 1,778.4
New Investments  52.5  —  52.5  —  52.5
Intangible amortization and impairments  —  (115.4)  (115.4)  —  (115.4)
Foreign currency translation  (5.8)  —  (5.8)  (23.3)  (29.1)
Balance, as of December 31, 2015  $ 1,301.8  $ (680.4)  $ 621.4  $ 1,065.0  $ 1,686.4
New Investments  —  —  —  —  —
Intangible amortization and impairments  —  (107.7)  (107.7)  (2.5)  (110.2)
Foreign currency translation  (11.8)  —  (11.8)  (67.0)  (78.8)

Balance, as of December 31, 2016  $ 1,290.0  $ (788.1)  $ 501.9  $ 995.5  $ 1,497.4

Definite-lived acquired client relationships are amortized over their expected useful lives. As of December 31, 2016, these relationships were being
amortized over a weighted average life of approximately ten years. The Company recorded amortization expense for these relationships of $115.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015, as compared to $107.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2016, in Intangible amortization and impairments. Based
on relationships existing as of December 31, 2016, the Company estimates that its consolidated annual amortization expense will be approximately $100
million for each of the next five years.

During 2015 and 2016, the Company completed impairment assessments on its definite-lived and indefinite-lived acquired client relationships and no
impairments were indicated.

As of December 31, 2016, the fair values of the indefinite-lived intangible assets at two of the Company’s Affiliates, both managers of global equity funds,
have recently experienced declines, and further declines in the fair values of these assets could result in future impairments.

14. Equity Method Investments in Affiliates

The following table presents the change in Equity method investments in Affiliates:

 Total

Balance, December 31, 2014 $ 1,783.5
Equity method earnings 323.2
Equity method intangible amortization (34.3)
Distributions from equity method investments (346.1)
Consideration for new investments 223.4
Foreign currency translation (4.7)
Other(1) (7.9)
Balance, December 31, 2015 $ 1,937.1
Equity method earnings 388.0
Equity method intangible amortization (59.2)
Distributions from equity method investments (346.4)
Consideration for new investments 1,361.3
Foreign currency translation 8.0
Other(1) 79.5

Balance, December 31, 2016 $ 3,368.3

__________________________
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(1) Includes incremental basis related to deferred income taxes of $4.3 million and $93.3 million in 2015 and 2016, respectively.

In 2015, the Company completed minority investments in Abax Investments (Pty) Ltd and Ivory Investment Management, L.P. On January 4, 2016, the
Company completed minority investments in Systematica Investments L.P. and Baring Private Equity Asia. The Company completed minority investments in
Capula Investment Management LLP and CapeView Capital LLP on July 1, 2016, Partner Fund Management, L.P. on September 30, 2016 and Winton Group
Ltd. on October 4, 2016. The purchase price allocations were measured using financial models that include assumptions of expected market performance, net
client flows and discount rates. The majority of the consideration paid (less net tangible assets acquired) will be deductible for U.S. tax purposes over a 15-
year life.

In 2015, the Company paid $23.3 million to settle a contingent payment related to an equity method Affiliate investment. The payment increased the
Company’s carrying value of the Affiliate investment.

A portion of the purchase price attributable to the Company’s equity method Affiliates relates to definite-lived acquired client relationships. As of
December 31, 2016, the definite-lived acquired relationships were being amortized over a weighted average life of approximately fourteen years. The
Company recorded amortization expense in Income from equity method investments for these relationships of $34.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2015, as compared to $59.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2016. Based on relationships existing as of December 31, 2016, the Company estimates
the annual amortization expense attributable to its current equity-method Affiliates to be approximately $80 million for each of the next five years.

As of December 31, 2016, the fair value of one of the Company’s Affiliates, which is a firm with a fundamental value-based investment approach, had
recently experienced a decline, and further declines in the fair value of the Affiliate could result in a future impairment.

The following table presents summarized financial information for Affiliates accounted for under the equity method:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014(1)(2)  2015(1)(2)  2016(2)

Revenue  $ 1,869.3  $ 2,217.1  $ 2,200.9
Net income  253.8  431.5  1,068.9

  December 31,

  2015(3)  2016

Assets  $ 30,663.4  $ 1,915.3
Liabilities and Non-controlling interest  29,434.7  862.4

__________________________

(1) Revenue includes advisory fees for asset management services and net investment income from consolidated investment partnerships.

(2) Revenue and Net income reflect investments in new Affiliates for the full-year, regardless of the date of the Company’s investment.

(3) Assets consist primarily of investment securities in consolidated investment partnerships, which are generally held by non-controlling interests.

The Company’s share of undistributed earnings from equity method investments was $134.3 million as of December 31, 2016.

15. Fixed Assets and Lease Commitments

Fixed assets consisted of the following:
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  December 31,

  2015  2016

Building and leasehold improvements  $ 104.7  $ 103.5
Software  45.4  52.5
Equipment  39.9  39.5
Furniture and fixtures  22.4  20.8
Land, improvements and other  18.6  17.9

Fixed assets, at cost  231.0  234.2
Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (116.9)  (124.1)

Fixed assets, net  $ 114.1  $ 110.1

The Company and its consolidated Affiliates lease office space and equipment for their operations. At December 31, 2016, the Company’s aggregate
future minimum payments for operating leases having initial or non-cancelable lease terms greater than one year were payable as follows:

  
Required Minimum

Payments (1)

2017  $ 37.7
2018  34.7
2019  31.7
2020  30.0
2021  27.4
Thereafter  57.4
__________________________

(1) The controlling interest portion is $11.5 million through 2017, $11.4 million in 2018, $10.8 million in 2019, $10.0 million in 2020, $9.3 million in 2021
and $29.3 million thereafter.

Consolidated rent expense for 2014, 2015 and 2016 was $30.5 million, $36.3 million and $35.5 million, respectively.

16. Payables and Accrued Liabilities

Payables and accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

  December 31,

  2015  2016

Accrued compensation  $ 455.0  $ 418.5
Unsettled fund share payables  76.6  83.2
Accrued income taxes  67.9  87.7
Accrued professional fees  31.4  26.1
Other  98.5  113.8

Payables and accrued liabilities  $ 729.4  $ 729.3

17. Related Party Transactions

A prior owner of one of the Company’s Affiliates retained an interest in certain of the Affiliate’s private equity investment partnerships. The prior
owner’s interest is presented in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as either a liability in Other liabilities or as Non-controlling interests, depending
on the structure of the prior owner’s investments in the partnerships. The total liability was $75.0 million and $67.8 million at December 31, 2015 and 2016,
respectively. The total non-controlling interest was $5.1 million and $2.5 million at December 31, 2015 and 2016, respectively.
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In certain cases, Affiliate management owners and Company officers may serve as trustees or directors of certain mutual funds from which the Affiliate
earns advisory fee revenue.

The Company has related party transactions in association with its business combinations, as more fully described in Note 12, as well as Affiliate equity
transactions, as more fully described in Notes 20 and 21.

18. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 5.0 million shares of Preferred Stock. Any such Preferred Stock issued by the Company may rank prior to
common stock as to dividend rights, liquidation preference or both, may have full or limited voting rights and may be convertible into shares of common
stock.

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue up to 150.0 million shares of Voting Common Stock and 3.0 million shares of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock.
As more fully described in Note 8, the Company is party to an equity distribution program under which the Company may sell shares of its common stock.

The Company’s Board of Directors authorized share repurchase programs in January 2017 and May 2015, authorizing the Company to repurchase up to
1.9 million and 3.0 million, respectively, shares of its common stock, which do not expire. In 2016, the Company repurchased 0.2 million shares at an average
price per share of $161.16.

The following is a summary of the Company’s recent share repurchase activity:

Period  
Shares

Repurchased  
Average

Price

2014  1.2  $ 204.72
2015  1.7  209.39
2016  0.2  161.16

Financial Instruments

The Company’s junior convertible securities contain an embedded right for holders to receive shares of the Company’s common stock under certain
conditions. These arrangements, as well as the equity distribution program, meet the definition of equity and are not required to be accounted for separately as
derivative instruments.

19. Share-Based Compensation

Share-Based Incentive Plans

The Company has established various plans under which it is authorized to grant restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock options and stock
appreciation rights. Compensation payable under these plans is intended to qualify as performance-based compensation within the meaning of Section 162(m)
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company may also grant cash awards that can be notionally invested in one or more specified measurement funds,
including the Company’s common stock. Awards granted under the Company’s share-based incentive plans typically participate in any dividends declared,
but such amounts are deferred until delivery of the shares and are forfeitable if the requisite service is not satisfied. Dividends may be paid in cash or may be
reinvested in the Company’s common stock.

Share-Based Incentive Compensation

The following is a summary of share-based compensation expense:
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Period  
Share-Based

Compensation
Expense  Tax Benefit

2014  $ 29.3  $ 11.3
2015  34.2  13.2
2016  39.2  15.1

The excess tax benefit recognized from share-based incentive plans was $44.5 million and $5.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2016, respectively. The excess tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2015 was recorded as an increase to Additional paid-in capital and the excess tax
benefit for the year ended December 31, 2016 was recorded as a reduction to Income taxes. The excess tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2015 was
classified as a financing cash flow and the excess tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2016 was classified as an operating cash flow.

There was $70.6 million and $66.4 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to share-based compensation arrangements as of December 31,
2015 and 2016, respectively. The unrecognized compensation expense at December 31, 2016 will be recognized over a weighted average period of
approximately three years (assuming no forfeitures).

Stock Options

The following table summarizes the transactions of the Company’s stock options:

 Stock Options  

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price  

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Life (years)

Unexercised options outstanding—January 1, 2016 1.4  $ 96.18   
Options granted 0.4  122.82   
Options exercised (0.4)  81.08   
Options forfeited (0.0)  131.91   

Unexercised options outstanding—December 31, 2016 1.4  108.53  2.8

Exercisable at December 31, 2016 0.9  101.38  1.3

The Company granted stock options with fair values of $0.6 million, $1.0 million, and $16.4 million in 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. Stock options
generally vest over a period of three to five years and expire seven to ten years after the grant date. All options have been granted with exercise prices equal to
the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

The Company generally uses treasury stock to settle stock option exercises. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016 was $92.6 million, $130.2 million and $27.7 million, respectively. The cash received for options exercised was $57.8
million and $25.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016, respectively. As of December 31, 2016, the intrinsic value of exercisable
options outstanding was $43.1 million, and 3.1 million options were available for grant under the Company’s option plans.

The fair value of options granted was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted average fair value of options granted during
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016 was $60.20, $54.92, and $39.02 per option, respectively, based on the weighted-average grant date
assumptions stated below.

 For the Years Ended December 31,

 2014  2015  2016

Dividend yield 0.0%  0.0%  0.0%
Expected volatility(1) 29.7%  26.7%  30.7%
Risk-free interest rate(2) 1.8%  1.5%  1.6%
Expected life of options (in years)(3) 5.0  5.0  5.7
Forfeiture rate(3) 0.0%  0.0%  0.0%
__________________________
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(1) Expected volatility is based on historical and implied volatility.

(2) Risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the date of grant.

(3) Expected life of options (in years) is based on the Company’s historical and expected exercise behavior.

Restricted Stock

The following table summarizes the transactions of the Company’s restricted stock:

 
Restricted

Stock  

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Value

Unvested units—January 1, 2016 0.6  $ 192.04
Units granted 0.2  122.59
Units vested (0.2)  181.87
Units forfeited (0.0)  171.51

Unvested units—December 31, 2016 0.6  168.84

The Company granted awards with fair values of $8.0 million, $50.7 million, and $28.0 million in 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively. These awards were
valued based on the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant and contain vesting conditions requiring service over a period of four
years. In certain circumstances, awards also require certain performance conditions to be satisfied, and the Company may elect to settle the awards in shares
of the Company’s common stock or cash.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had 1.3 million shares available for grant under its plans.

20. Redeemable Non-Controlling Interests

Affiliate equity interests provide holders with a ratable portion of ownership in one of the Company’s consolidated Affiliates. Affiliate equity holders
generally have a conditional right to put their interests to the Company at certain intervals (between five and fifteen years from the date the equity interest is
received or on an annual basis following an Affiliate equity holder’s departure). The current redemption value of the Company’s Affiliate equity interests is
presented as Redeemable non-controlling interests on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the current redemption value are recorded to Additional
paid-in capital. The following table presents the changes in Redeemable non-controlling interests:

 December 31,

 2015  2016

Balance, as of January 1 $ 645.5  $ 612.5
Repurchases of redeemable Affiliate equity (161.3)  (69.1)
Transfers from Non-controlling interests 49.5  42.6
Changes in redemption value 81.6  71.4
Changes attributable to consolidated products (2.8)  16.1

Balance, as of December 31 $ 612.5  $ 673.5

21. Affiliate Equity

Affiliate equity interests are allocated income in a manner that is consistent with the structured partnership interests in place at the respective Affiliate.
The Company’s Affiliates generally pay quarterly distributions to Affiliate equity holders. Distributions paid to Affiliate equity holders were $569.4 million,
$431.4 million and $354.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively.

Affiliate equity interests provide the Company a conditional right to call (on an annual basis following an Affiliate equity holder’s departure) and
Affiliate equity holders have a conditional right to put their interests at certain intervals (between five
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and fifteen years from the date the equity interest is received or on an annual basis following an Affiliate equity holder’s departure). Affiliate equity holders
are also permitted to sell their equity interests to other individuals or entities in certain cases, subject to the Company's approval or other restrictions. The
purchase price of these conditional purchases are generally calculated based upon a multiple of cash flow distributions, which is intended to represent fair
value. The Company, at its option, may pay for Affiliate equity purchases in cash, shares of its common stock or other forms of consideration and can consent
to the transfer of these interests to other individuals or entities.

The Company periodically issues Affiliate equity interests to and repurchases Affiliate equity interests from its Affiliate equity holders.  The amount of
cash paid for repurchases was $32.6 million, $130.8 million and $115.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively.  The
total amount of cash received for issuances was $11.0 million, $6.1 million and $11.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016,
respectively. 

Sales and repurchases of Affiliate equity generally occur at fair value; however, the Company also grants Affiliate equity to its Affiliate partners,
employees and officers as a form of compensation. If the equity is issued for consideration below the fair value of the equity or repurchased for consideration
above the fair value of the equity, then such difference is recorded as compensation expense over the requisite service period.

The following is a summary of Affiliate equity expense:

 2014  2015  2016

Controlling interest $ 47.4  $ 16.9  $ 10.0
Non-controlling interest 37.0  51.6  31.2

Total $ 84.4  $ 68.5  $ 41.2

The following is a summary of unrecognized Affiliate equity expense:

 Unrecognized Affiliate Equity Expense

Period Controlling Interest  Remaining Life  
Non-Controlling

Interest  Remaining Life

2014 $ 29.5  3 years  $ 41.6  6 years
2015 22.4  3 years  51.9  5 years
2016 31.3  4 years  70.7  5 years

The Company records amounts receivable from and payable to Affiliate equity holders in connection with the transfer of Affiliate equity interests that
have not settled at the end of the period. The total receivable was $22.6 million and $22.9 million at December 31, 2015 and 2016, respectively, and was
included in Other assets. The total payable was $62.3 million and $12.1 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2016, respectively, and was included in Other
liabilities.

Effects of Changes in the Company’s Ownership in Affiliates

The Company periodically acquires interests from, and transfers interests to, Affiliate equity holders. Because these transactions do not result in a change
of control, any gain or loss related to these transactions is recorded to Additional paid-in capital, which increases or decreases the controlling interest’s equity.
No gain or loss related to these transactions is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Income or Comprehensive Income.

While the Company presents the current redemption value of Affiliate equity within Redeemable Non-Controlling Interests with changes in the current
redemption value increasing or decreasing the controlling interest’s equity over time, the following table discloses the cumulative effect that ownership
changes had on the controlling interest’s equity related only to Affiliate equity transactions that settled during the periods:
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  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Net income (controlling interest)  $ 433.9  $ 509.5  $ 472.8
Increase in controlling interest paid-in capital from purchases and sales of Affiliate equity
issuances  4.1  0.9  1.6
Decrease in controlling interest paid-in capital related to Affiliate equity repurchases  (33.2)  (87.6)  (38.0)

Net income attributable to controlling interest and transfers (to) or from Non-controlling interests  $ 404.8  $ 422.8  $ 436.4

22. Benefit Plans

The Company has three defined contribution plans consisting of a qualified employee profit-sharing plan covering substantially all of its full-time
employees and several of its Affiliates, and non-qualified plans for certain senior employees. AMG’s other Affiliates generally have separate defined
contribution retirement plans. Under each of the qualified plans, AMG and each participating Affiliate, as the case may be, are able to make discretionary
contributions for the benefit of qualified plan participants up to Internal Revenue Service limits.

The Company has a Deferred Compensation Plan that provides officers and directors of the Company the opportunity to voluntarily defer base salary,
bonus payments and director fees, as applicable, on a pre-tax basis, and invest such deferred amounts in one or more specified measurement funds. While the
Company has no obligation to do so, the Deferred Compensation Plan also provides the Company the opportunity to make discretionary contributions; in the
event any such contributions are made, contributed amounts will be subject to vesting and forfeiture provisions.

Consolidated expenses related to the Company’s benefit plans in 2014, 2015 and 2016 were $17.2 million, $18.7 million and $18.9 million, respectively.

23. Income Taxes

The consolidated income tax provision includes taxes attributable to the controlling interest and, to a lesser extent, taxes attributable to non-controlling
interests is as follows:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Controlling interests:       
Current tax  $ 149.8  $ 152.4  $ 168.1
Intangible-related deferred taxes  47.8  77.7  84.3
Other deferred taxes  34.0  27.7  (23.2)

Total controlling interests  231.6  257.8  229.2
Non-controlling interests:       

Current tax  $ 15.3  $ 9.8  $ 8.2
Deferred taxes  (0.8)  (4.2)  (1.8)

Total non-controlling interests  14.5  5.6  6.4

Provision for income taxes  $ 246.1  $ 263.4  $ 235.6

Income before income taxes (controlling interest)  $ 665.5  $ 767.3  $ 702.0

Effective tax rate attributable to controlling interests(1)  34.8%  33.6%  32.6%
__________________________

(1) Taxes attributable to the controlling interest divided by Income before income taxes (controlling interest).

The consolidated provision for income taxes consisted of the following:
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  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Current:       
Federal  $ 93.8  $ 106.3  $ 103.4
State  27.1  18.3  22.9
Foreign  44.2  37.6  50.0

Total current  165.1  162.2  176.3
Deferred:       

Federal  89.0  103.8  62.3
State  2.8  14.8  10.0
Foreign  (10.8)  (17.4)  (13.0)

Total deferred  81.0  101.2  59.3

Provision for income taxes  $ 246.1  $ 263.4  $ 235.6

For financial reporting purposes, Income before income taxes consisted of the following:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Domestic  $ 784.1  $ 827.6  $ 688.1
International  229.5  263.0  286.5

  $ 1,013.6  $ 1,090.6  $ 974.6

The following table reconciles the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate:

 For the Years Ended December 31,

 2014  2015  2016

Statutory U.S. federal tax rate 35.0 %  35.0 %  35.0 %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 2.3  2.6  2.9
Effect of foreign operations(1) (5.3)  (3.5)  (4.6)
Equity Compensation 2.5  0.8  (0.4)
Effect of changes in tax law, rates(2) —  (0.8)  (0.3)
Other 0.3  (0.5)  —
Effective tax rate (controlling interest) 34.8 %  33.6 %  32.6 %
Effect of income from non-controlling interests (9.6)  (9.2)  (8.4)

Effective tax rate 25.2 %  24.4 %  24.2 %
__________________________

(1) Effect of foreign operations includes the effect of undistributed foreign earnings the Company deems indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations, and
the effect of differences in the financial reporting basis over tax basis in the Company’s investments in foreign subsidiaries considered permanent in
duration.

(2) Effect of changes in tax law, rates reflects the impact of the reduction in the UK tax rates in years 2015 and 2016.

Deferred income taxes reflect the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and tax basis of the
Company’s assets and liabilities. The significant components of the Company’s deferred income taxes are as follows:
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  December 31,

  2015  2016

Deferred Tax Assets     
Deferred compensation  $ 30.5  $ 34.1
State net operating loss carryforwards  17.1  17.4
Foreign loss carryforwards  12.3  14.6
Tax benefit of uncertain tax positions  14.6  12.1
Foreign tax credits  —  10.0
Accrued expenses  4.4  3.9

Total deferred tax assets  78.9  92.1
Valuation allowance  (20.5)  (22.1)

Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance  $ 58.4  $ 70.0
Deferred Tax Liabilities     

Intangible asset amortization  $ (320.2)  $ (396.8)
Non-deductible intangible amortization  (109.8)  (177.0)
Convertible securities interest  (99.8)  (109.0)
Deferred income  (92.8)  (47.2)
Other  (1.5)  (0.8)

Total deferred tax liabilities  (624.1)  (730.8)

Net deferred tax liability  $ (565.7)  $ (660.8)

At December 31, 2016, the Company had available state net operating loss carryforwards of $489.7 million, which will expire over a 19-year period. At
December 31, 2016, the Company had foreign loss carryforwards of $55.1 million, of which $47.7 million will expire over a 20-year period and the balance
will carry forward indefinitely. At December 31, 2016, the Company had foreign tax credits of $10.0 million, which will expire in 2026.

The Company believes that it is more-likely-than-not that the benefit from a portion of the state and foreign loss carryforwards will not be realized and
has, therefore, recorded a valuation allowance of $22.1 million on the deferred tax assets related to these state and foreign loss carryforwards. For the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2016, the Company increased its valuation allowance $2.1 million and $1.6 million, respectively, related to an increase in the
loss carryforwards that are not expected to be realized.

The Company does not provide for U.S. income taxes on the excess of the financial reporting basis over tax basis in the Company’s investments in
foreign subsidiaries considered permanent in duration. Such amount would generally become taxable upon the repatriation of assets from, or a sale or
liquidation of, the subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2016, the amount of such difference was $222.9 million. The Company also considers certain
undistributed earnings of a foreign subsidiary to be indefinitely reinvested and, accordingly, has not provided U.S. income taxes on these earnings. As of
December 31, 2016, the cumulative amount of indefinitely reinvested foreign earnings was $65.0 million. Determination of the potential amount of
unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax liability related to these amounts is not practicable because of the numerous assumptions associated with this
hypothetical calculation. However, foreign tax credits would be available to reduce some portion of the deferred U.S. income tax liability.

A reconciliation of the changes in unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
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  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Balance, as of January 1  $ 20.4  $ 28.8  $ 26.9
Additions based on current year tax positions  2.6  2.2  3.8
Additions based on prior years’ tax positions  10.8  1.6  0.6
Reductions related to lapses of statutes of limitations  (4.1)  (4.3)  (4.7)
Additions (reductions) related to foreign exchange rates  (0.9)  (1.4)  0.2

Balance, as of December 31  $ 28.8  $ 26.9  $ 26.8

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016 are $26.4 million, $25.3 million, and $26.0 million,
respectively, of tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affect the Company’s effective tax rate.

The Company records accrued interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in Income taxes. The Company had $1.6 million, $1.8
million and $1.4 million in interest related to unrecognized tax benefits accrued at December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively, which are included in the
table above. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, no significant interest or penalties were recorded in Income taxes.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal, state and local, and foreign income tax in multiple jurisdictions. The Company is also periodically subject to tax
examinations in these jurisdictions. The completion of examinations may result in the payment of additional taxes and/or the recognition of tax benefits. The
Company is generally no longer subject to income tax examinations by U.S. federal, state and local, or foreign taxing authorities for periods prior to 2011.

The Company does not expect any significant changes to its liability for tax benefits during the next twelve months.

24. Earnings Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share available to common
stockholders:

  For the Years Ended December 31,

  2014  2015  2016

Numerator       
Net income (controlling interest)  $ 433.9  $ 509.5  $ 472.8
Interest expense on convertible securities, net of taxes  15.2  15.3  15.5

Net income (controlling interest), as adjusted  $ 449.1  $ 524.8  $ 488.3

Denominator       
Average shares outstanding (basic)  55.0  54.3  54.2
Effect of dilutive instruments:       

Stock options and restricted stock  1.2  0.7  0.6
Forward sale agreement  0.0  —  —
Junior convertible securities  2.2  2.2  2.2

Average shares outstanding (diluted)  58.4  57.2  57.0

Average shares outstanding (diluted) in the table above exclude the anti-dilutive effect of the following shares:

 For the Years Ended December 31,

 2014  2015  2016

Stock options and restricted stock units 0.0  0.0  0.6
Junior convertible securities 0.4  —  —

70



Table of Contents

AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As discussed further in Note 21, the Company may settle portions of its Affiliate equity purchases in shares of its common stock. Because it is the
Company’s intent to settle these potential repurchases in cash, the calculation of diluted earnings per share excludes any potential dilutive effect from possible
share settlements.

25. Comprehensive Income

The following tables show the tax effects allocated to each component of Other comprehensive income:

  For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

  Pre-Tax  Tax Benefit (Expense)  Net of Tax

Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  $ (62.0)  $ —  $ (62.0)
Change in net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securities  0.6  (0.3)  0.3
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities  5.6  (2.2)  3.4

Other comprehensive income (loss)  $ (55.8)  $ (2.5)  $ (58.3)

  For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

  Pre-Tax  Tax Benefit (Expense)  Net of Tax

Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  $ (93.2)  $ —  $ (93.2)
Change in net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securities  2.3  (0.4)  1.9
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities  34.8  (12.7)  22.1

Other comprehensive income (loss)  $ (56.1)  $ (13.1)  $ (69.2)

  For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

  Pre-Tax  Tax Benefit (Expense)  Net of Tax

Foreign currency translation gain (loss)  $ (115.3)  $ —  $ (115.3)
Change in net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on derivative securities  0.3  (0.2)  0.1
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities  (58.3)  23.1  (35.2)

Other comprehensive income (loss)  $ (173.3)  $ 22.9  $ (150.4)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes, were as follows:

  
Foreign Currency

Translation
Adjustment  

Realized and
Unrealized Losses on
Derivative Securities  

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on Investment

Securities (1)  Total

Balance, as of December 31, 2014  $ (5.4)  $ (1.6)  $ 22.9  $ 15.9
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications  (93.2)  0.8  13.5  (78.9)
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income  —  1.1  8.6  9.7
Net other comprehensive income (loss)  (93.2)  1.9  22.1  (69.2)
Balance, as of December 31, 2015  $ (98.6)  $ 0.3  $ 45.0  $ (53.3)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications  (115.3)  (1.0)  (22.5)  (138.8)
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income  —  1.1  (12.7)  (11.6)
Net other comprehensive income (loss)  (115.3)  0.1  (35.2)  (150.4)

Balance, as of December 31, 2016  $ (213.9)  $ 0.4  $ 9.8  $ (203.7)
__________________________

(1) See Note 2 for amounts reclassified from Other comprehensive income.
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26. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2016.

  2015

  
First

Quarter  
Second
Quarter  

Third
Quarter  

Fourth
Quarter

Revenue  $ 635.0  $ 646.6  $ 613.1  $ 589.8
Operating income  231.4  195.2  215.2  193.2
Income before income taxes  290.3  262.0  249.1  289.2
Net income (controlling interest)  126.7  127.6  107.7  147.5
Earnings per share (diluted)  $ 2.26  $ 2.29  $ 1.96  $ 2.67

  2016

  
First

Quarter  
Second
Quarter  

Third
Quarter  

Fourth
Quarter

Revenue  $ 545.4  $ 554.1  $ 544.7  $ 550.3
Operating income  178.8  181.8  171.0  173.8
Income before income taxes  230.5  235.9  226.2  281.9
Net income (controlling interest)  104.0  108.3  110.2  150.2
Earnings per share (diluted)  $ 1.90  $ 1.98  $ 2.02  $ 2.67

27. Segment and Geographic Information

Management has assessed and determined that the Company operates in three business segments representing the Company’s three principal distribution
channels: Institutional, Mutual Fund and High Net Worth, each of which has different client relationships. The following table summarizes the Company’s
financial results for each of the distribution channels:

  As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2014

  Institutional  Mutual Fund  High Net Worth  Total

Revenue  $ 1,022.8  $ 1,242.6  $ 245.5  $ 2,510.9
Net income (controlling interest)  217.9  172.9  43.1  433.9
Total assets  3,731.4  3,077.5  874.6  7,683.5
Goodwill  1,159.1  1,125.3  368.4  2,652.8
Equity method investments in Affiliates  1,533.8  150.3  99.4  1,783.5

  As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2015

  Institutional  Mutual Fund  High Net Worth  Total

Revenue  $ 979.4  $ 1,238.2  $ 266.9  $ 2,484.5
Net income (controlling interest)  226.4  226.8  56.3  509.5
Total assets  3,717.1  3,070.5  981.8  7,769.4
Goodwill  1,141.3  1,119.5  407.6  2,668.4
Equity method investments in Affiliates  1,609.3  185.7  142.1  1,937.1
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  As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2016

  Institutional  Mutual Fund  High Net Worth  Total

Revenue  $ 878.5  $ 1,036.0  $ 280.1  $ 2,194.6
Net income (controlling interest)  246.7  177.8  48.3  472.8
Total assets  4,386.4  3,360.4  1,002.3  8,749.1
Goodwill  1,136.2  1,082.5  409.4  2,628.1
Equity method investments in Affiliates  2,796.9  412.2  159.2  3,368.3

The following table presents Revenue and Fixed Assets, net of the Company by geographic location. Revenue by geographic location is primarily based
on the location of an Affiliate.

 For the Years Ended December 31,

 2014  2015  2016

Revenue      
United States $ 1,731.5  $ 1,657.2  $ 1,477.5
United Kingdom 567.1  645.3  566.4
Other 212.3  182.0  150.7

Total $ 2,510.9  $ 2,484.5  $ 2,194.6

 December 31,

 2014  2015  2016

Fixed Assets, net      
United States $ 80.2  $ 98.6  $ 97.3
United Kingdom 11.9  12.3  9.9
Other 3.3  3.2  2.9

Total $ 95.4  $ 114.1  $ 110.1

28. Subsequent Events

On January 5, 2017, the Company completed a minority investment in Forbes Family Trust.

On January 30, 2017, the Company announced the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend program, and declared a $0.20 per share dividend, paid on
February 23, 2017 to all holders of record of the Company’s common stock as of February 9, 2017.

As of February 21, 2017, the Company had repurchased 0.4 million shares of common stock, at an average share price of $159.91 in 2017.
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Schedule II
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(in millions)  
Balance

Beginning of
Period  

Additions
Charged to Costs

and Expenses  
Additions

Charged to
Other Accounts  Deductions  

Balance
End of Period

Income Tax Valuation Allowance           
Year Ending December 31,           

2016  $ 20.5  $ 1.3  $ 0.3  $ —  $ 22.1
2015  18.4  2.1  —  —  20.5
2014  36.6  —  —  18.2  18.4

           
Other Allowances(1)           
Year Ending December 31,           

2016  $ 10.6  $ 5.0  $ —  $ 5.3  $ 10.3
2015  12.1  0.7  —  2.2  10.6
2014  8.8  4.7  —  1.4  12.1

__________________________

(1) Other Allowances represented reserves on notes received in connection with transfers of our interests in certain Affiliates as well as other receivable
amounts, which we considered uncollectible.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act, as of December 31, 2016, we carried out an evaluation under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that (i) information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we
file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s rules and forms, and (ii) such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officers as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and
procedures, we and our management recognize that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and our management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating and implementing
possible controls and procedures. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their stated objectives and
our principal executive officer and principal financial officers concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance
level. We review on an ongoing basis and document our disclosure controls and procedures, and our internal control over financial reporting, and we may
from time to time make changes in an effort to enhance their effectiveness and ensure that our systems evolve with our business. See Item 8 for
“Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting,” which is incorporated by reference herein.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has issued an attestation report on our internal control over financial
reporting, which is included in Item 8.

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the
fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2016 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information required by this Item will be set forth in our proxy statement for our 2017 Annual Meeting of shareholders (to be filed within 120 days after
December 31, 2016) (the “Proxy Statement”), and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) (1) Financial Statements: See Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule: See Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(3) Exhibits: See the Exhibit Index attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

  
AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: February 24, 2017  By:  /s/ SEAN M. HEALEY

  

  Sean M. Healey
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature  Title  Date

/s/ SEAN M. HEALEY  Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Directors

(Principal Executive Officer)

 February 24, 2017

Sean M. Healey   

/s/ JAY C. HORGEN  Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Principal

Accounting Officer)

 February 24, 2017

Jay C. Horgen   

/s/ SAMUEL T. BYRNE  Director  February 24, 2017
Samuel T. Byrne     

/s/ DWIGHT D. CHURCHILL  Director  February 24, 2017
Dwight D. Churchill     

/s/ GLENN EARLE  Director  February 24, 2017
Glenn Earle     

/s/ NIALL FERGUSON  Director  February 24, 2017
Niall Ferguson     

/s/ TRACY P. PALANDJIAN  Director  February 24, 2017
Tracy P. Palandjian     

/s/ PATRICK T. RYAN  Director  February 24, 2017
Patrick T. Ryan     

/s/ JIDE J. ZEITLIN  Director  February 24, 2017
Jide J. Zeitlin     
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Exhibit Index

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation(1)

3.2 Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation(2)

3.3 Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation(3)

3.4 Amended and Restated By-laws(4)

4.1 Specimen certificate for shares of common stock of the Registrant(1)

4.2 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust of AMG Capital Trust II, dated as of October 17, 2007, by and among Affiliated Managers
Group, Inc., U.S. Bank National Association, successor in interest to Bank of America National Trust Delaware, successor by merger to LaSalle
National Trust Delaware, as Delaware Trustee, U.S. Bank National Association, successor in interest to Bank of America, N.A., successor by
merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Property Trustee and Institutional Administrator, and the holders from time to time of
undivided beneficial interests in the assets of AMG Capital Trust II(5)

4.3 Indenture, dated as of October 17, 2007, by and between Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, successor in
interest to Bank of America, N.A., successor by merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Debenture Trustee(5)

4.4 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 10, 2014, by and between Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National
Association, successor in interest to Bank of America, N.A., successor by merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Debenture Trustee(6)

4.5 Guarantee Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2007, by and between Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association,
successor in interest to Bank of America, N.A., successor by merger to LaSalle Bank National Association, as Guarantee Trustee(5)

4.6 Indenture, dated as of August 8, 2012, by and between Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Trustee(7)

4.7 First Supplemental Indenture related to the 6.375% Senior Notes due 2042, dated as of August 8, 2012, by and between Affiliated Managers
Group, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee, including the form of Global Note attached as Annex A thereto(7)

4.8 Indenture, dated as of February 11, 2014, by and between Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee(8)

4.9 Supplemental Indenture related to the 4.250% Senior Notes due 2024, dated as of February 11, 2014, by and between Affiliated Managers
Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, including the form of Global Note attached as Annex A thereto(8)

4.10 Second Supplemental Indenture related to the 3.500% Senior Notes due 2025, dated as of February 13, 2015, by and between Affiliated
Managers Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, including the form of Global Note attached as Annex A thereto(9)

10.1† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Defined Contribution Plan(10)

10.2† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Executive Incentive Plan(11)

10.3† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Option and Incentive Plan(12)

10.4† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 2002 Stock Option and Incentive Plan(12)

10.5† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 2006 Stock Option and Incentive Plan(3)

10.6† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Long-Term Stock and Investment Plan(6)

10.7† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Executive Retention Plan(13)

10.8† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan(14)

10.9† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Long-Term Equity Interests Plan 2010, LP(15)

10.10† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 2011 Stock Option and Incentive Plan(16)

10.11† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Long-Term Equity Interests Plan 2011, LP(17)

10.12† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Long-Term Equity Interests Plan, LP(18)

10.13† Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 2013 Incentive Stock Award Plan(19)

10.14† Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement pursuant to Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 2013 Incentive Stock Award Plan(20)

10.15† Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement pursuant to Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 2013 Incentive Stock Award Plan*
10.16† Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Stock Option and Incentive Plan(21)

10.17† Form of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Award Agreement(6)

10.18† Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into by each Director and Executive Officer(22)
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10.19† Service Agreement, dated as of June 7, 2011, by and between Affiliated Managers Group Limited and Andrew Dyson(23)

10.20 Credit Agreement, dated as of September 22, 2015, among Affiliated Managers Group, Inc., Bank of America, N.A., and the several banks and
other financial institutions from time to time party thereto as lenders, and the exhibits and schedules thereto(24)

10.21 Commitments Increase and Joinder Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2016, among Affiliated Managers Group, Inc., Bank of America, N.A., and
certain lenders party thereto(25)

10.22 Term Credit Agreement, dated as of September 22, 2015, among Affiliated Managers Group, Inc., Bank of America, N.A., and the several
banks and other financial institutions from time to time party thereto as lenders, and the exhibits and schedules thereto(24)

10.23 Commitment Increase Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2016, among Affiliated Managers Group, Inc., Bank of America, N.A., and certain
lenders party thereto(25)

10.24 Form of Equity Distribution Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2016(25) 

10.25 Form of Confirmation Letter Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2016(25) 

10.26 Confirmation Letter Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2016(26)

10.27 Form of Equity Distribution Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2016(27)

10.28 Form of Master Confirmation Letter Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2016(27)

21.1 Schedule of Subsidiaries*
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP*
31.1 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002*
31.2 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002*
32.1 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002**
32.2 Certification of Registrant’s Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes‑Oxley Act of 2002**
101 The following financial statements from the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 are filed

herewith, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, (ii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, (iii) the Consolidated
Statement of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

                                                   
† Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan

* Filed herewith

** Furnished herewith

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-34679), filed August 29, 1997, as amended

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-129748), filed November 16, 2005

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (No. 001-13459), filed April 28, 2006

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-13459), filed November 7, 2016    

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed October 18, 2007

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 (No. 001-13459), filed
February 27, 2014

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-13459), filed August 8, 2012
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(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed February 11, 2014

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed February 13, 2015

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 (No. 001-13459), filed
March 30, 2000

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (No. 001-13459), filed April 29, 2015

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-13459), filed May 10, 2004

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-13459), filed November 9, 2005

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 (No. 001-13459), filed
March 2, 2009, as amended

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed December 17, 2010

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (No. 001-13459), filed April 19, 2011

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 (No. 001-13459), filed
February 23, 2012

(18) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 (No. 001-13459), filed
February 22, 2013

(19) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A (No. 001-13459), filed April 30, 2013

(20) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-13459), filed November 12, 2013

(21) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-13459), filed August 5, 2016

(22) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 (No. 001-13459), filed
March 1, 2011

(23) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (No. 001-13459), filed May 8, 2012

(24) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed September 22, 2015

(25) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed June 6, 2016

(26) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed June 8, 2016

(27) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (No. 001-13459), filed August 17, 2016
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Exhibit 10.15

FORM OF
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

PURSUANT TO AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.
2013 INCENTIVE STOCK AWARD PLAN

Pursuant to the Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. 2013 Incentive Stock Award Plan, as amended and/or restated from time to time (the “Plan”), and
subject to the terms of this agreement (the “Agreement”), Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby grants to the grantee named on Exhibit A
hereto (the “Grantee”) an Award (the “Award”) of restricted stock units (each a “Unit,” and together, the “Units”), consisting of the right to receive a
distribution of the number of shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share, of the Company (the “Shares”) specified on Exhibit A, to be issued and
distributed to the Grantee according to the terms set forth herein and in the Plan, and the vesting schedule and performance requirements (if any) set forth
herein.

    
1. Vesting and Performance Measure.

(a) Vesting. Subject to the discretion of the Administrator to accelerate the vesting schedule, the Units shall vest in the
amounts and on the dates indicated on Exhibit A; provided that, Grantee’s Employment is through the applicable vesting date set forth on Exhibit A. In
addition, if this Award is subject to a Performance Measure (but not otherwise), Section 1(b) shall apply. For the avoidance of doubt, the vesting of the Award
may be accelerated automatically in certain circumstances described herein.

(b) Performance Measure. If this Award is subject to a Performance Measure (as defined herein), the Shares subject to this
Award shall be issued and distributed only if the Units have vested in accordance with Section 1(a) and the Compensation Committee has certified the
attainment of the Performance Measure with respect to all or any portion thereof; it being understood that if vesting of the Units is accelerated pursuant to
Sections 1(c)(y) or 3(a)(ii) hereof, such vested Units shall remain subject to the attainment of the Performance Measure and no Shares shall be issued and
distributed in respect of such Units unless and until the Compensation Committee has certified that the Performance Measure has been attained. If such
Performance Measure remains in effect and the Compensation Committee certifies that it has not been attained with respect to all or any portion of the Units
(including any Units that have vested pursuant to Sections 1(c)(y) or 3(a)(ii) hereof), this Award shall terminate immediately and be of no further force or
effect with respect to all of the Units or such portion thereof, as applicable.

(c) Change of Control. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in the Plan, in the event of termination of
Grantee’s Employment (i) by the Company without Cause or (ii) by the Grantee for Good Reason, in either case occurring within the two-year period
following a Change of Control, the Units subject to this Award shall automatically fully vest at the time of such termination; provided that, if this Award is
subject to a Performance Measure, the Shares subject to this Award shall only be issued and distributed pursuant to Section 1(b) if (x) the Compensation
Committee has certified that the Performance Measure has been attained on or before the date of termination, and in such case shall be issued and distributed
at the time of such termination in the amount indicated on Exhibit A, or (y) the attainment of the Performance Measure is not yet determinable as of such
date, and in such case shall fully vest at the time of such termination but the vested Units shall remain subject to the attainment of the Performance Measure
and no Shares shall be issued and distributed in respect of such Units unless and until the Compensation Committee has certified that the Performance
Measure has been attained (and shall be issued and distributed at the time of such certification (if any) in the amount indicated on Exhibit A). (For the
avoidance of doubt, if the Units subject to this Award (including any Units that vested pursuant to sub-clause (y) above) are subject to a Performance Measure
that the Compensation Committee has certified has not been attained with respect to all or any portion thereof, this Award shall terminate with respect to all of
the Units or such portion thereof, as applicable, in accordance with Section 1(b) hereof.)

2. Definitions. Except as otherwise expressly provided, all terms used herein shall have the same meaning as in the Plan,
as applicable and as may be amended from time to time. For purposes of this Agreement, as applicable, the following terms shall have the following
meanings:

(a) “Administrator” shall be defined as the Compensation Committee and, as applicable, any permitted delegate thereof.
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(b) “Cause” means any of the following:

i. the Grantee’s engagement in any criminal act which is or involves a serious felony offense, a violation of
federal or state securities laws (or equivalent laws of any country or political subdivision thereof), embezzlement, fraud, wrongful taking or misappropriation
of property, or theft or any other crime involving dishonesty;

ii. the Grantee’s willful or grossly negligent failure to perform duties owed to the Company or an Affiliate;

iii. the Grantee’s willful violation of any securities or commodities laws, any rules or regulations issued pursuant
to such laws, or the rules and regulations of any securities or commodities exchange or association of which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
Affiliates is a member; or

iv. the Grantee’s willful violation of any Company policy or any applicable policy of any of its subsidiaries or
Affiliates concerning confidential or proprietary information, or material violation of any other Company or applicable subsidiary or Affiliate policy or
written agreement as in effect from time to time.

The determination as to whether “Cause” has occurred shall be made by the Administrator. The Administrator shall also have the authority to waive the
consequences under the Plan of the existence or occurrence of any of the events, acts or omissions constituting “Cause”. If, subsequent to the Grantee’s
termination of Employment for other than Cause, it is determined that the Grantee’s Employment could have been terminated for Cause, the Grantee’s
Employment shall be deemed to have been terminated for Cause retroactively to the date the events giving rise to such Cause occurred. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if Grantee is party to an employment, severance-benefit, change of control or similar agreement with the Company that contains a definition of
“Cause” (or a correlative term), such definition will apply (in the case of such Grantee for purposes of this Agreement) in lieu of the definition set forth above
during the term of such agreement.

(c) “Client” shall mean all Past Clients, Present Clients and Potential Clients, subject to the following general rules:

i.    with respect to each Client, the term “Client” shall also include any Persons who are Affiliates of such Client and, to
the extent known by the Grantee to have such connection with such Client (and the Grantee shall be deemed to have such knowledge if the Grantee would
reasonably have been expected to have such knowledge in the ordinary course of the Grantee’s duties while the Grantee was employed by the Company and
its subsidiaries and Affiliates), directors, officers or employees of such Client or any such subsidiaries or Affiliates thereof, or Persons who are members of
the immediate family of such Client or any of the other foregoing Persons or Affiliates of any of them;

ii.    with respect to any Present Client or Past Client (as applicable) that is a Fund, the term “Client” shall also include (x)
the sponsor of such Client, and any other Fund sponsored by such Person or its Affiliates, and (y) any investor in such Client (provided that, except to the
extent the Grantee had knowledge of the identity of an investor therein while the Grantee was employed by the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates
(and the Grantee shall be deemed to have had such knowledge if the Grantee would reasonably have been expected to have had such knowledge in the
ordinary course of the Grantee’s duties while the Grantee was employed by the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates), in the case of any Fund, an
investor therein shall not be deemed a Present Client or Past Client (as applicable) hereunder);

iii.    with respect to any Client that is a trust or similar entity, the term “Client” shall include the settlor and, to the extent
such beneficiary is known to the Grantee to be such a beneficiary (and the Grantee shall be deemed to have had such knowledge if the Grantee would
reasonably have been expected to have had such knowledge in the ordinary course of the Grantee’s duties while the Grantee was employed by the Company
and its subsidiaries and Affiliates), any Person who is a beneficiary of such Client and the Affiliates and immediate family members of any such Persons;

iv.    with respect to so-called “wrap programs,” “SMA programs” or similar programs, the term “Client” shall include (x)
the sponsor of such program, and (y) the underlying participants in such program (provided that, except to the extent the Grantee had knowledge of the
identity of a participant therein while the Grantee was employed by the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates (and the Grantee shall be deemed to have
had such knowledge if the Grantee would reasonably have been expected to have had such knowledge in the ordinary course of the Grantee’s duties while the
Grantee was employed by the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates), a participant therein shall not be deemed a Present Client or Past Client (as
applicable) hereunder); and

v.    with respect to each Client, the term “Client” shall also include any Persons who
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(x) in U.S. retail markets, serve as intermediaries, including, but not limited to, broker-dealers and financial advisers, and, (y) in all other markets, serve as an
intermediary with discretion as to whether or not to make Affiliate products available to their underlying clients.

(d) “Fund” shall mean any collective investment vehicle (whether open-ended or closed-ended), including, without
limitation, an investment company (whether or not registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended), a general or limited partnership, a
trust or a commingled fund, in any such case organized (or otherwise formed) in any jurisdiction.

(e) “Good Reason” shall mean any of the following events or conditions occurring without the Grantee’s express written
consent, provided that the Grantee shall have given notice of such event or condition within 90 days of the initial existence of such event or condition and the
Company shall not have remedied such event or condition within 30 days after receipt of such notice:

i. a materially adverse alteration in the nature or status of the Grantee’s duties or responsibilities;

ii. a material reduction in the Grantee’s annual base salary or any target bonus, other than an across-the-board
reduction that applies to the Grantee and similarly-situated employees; or

iii. a change of 50 miles or more in the Grantee’s principal place of Employment, except for required travel on
business to an extent substantially consistent with the Grantee’s business travel obligations.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Grantee is party to an employment, severance-benefit, change of control or similar agreement with the
Company or any subsidiary thereof that contains a definition of “Good Reason” (or a correlative term), such definition will apply (in the case of the Grantee
for purposes of this Agreement) in lieu of the definition set forth above during the term of such agreement.

(f) “Investment Management Services” shall mean any services which involve: (i) the management of an investment
account or Fund (or portions thereof or a group of investment accounts or Funds); (ii) the giving of advice with respect to the investment and/or reinvestment
of assets or funds (or any group of assets or funds); or (iii) otherwise acting as an “investment adviser” within the meaning of the Investment Advisers Act of
1940, as amended, including, without limitation, in each of the foregoing cases, performing activities related or incidental thereto.

(g) “Past Client” shall mean, subject to the general rules under the definition of Client, at any particular time of
determination, any Person (i) who at any point prior to such time of determination had been, directly or indirectly (and including, without limitation, through
one or more intermediaries such as a wrap sponsor or as an investor in a Fund for which the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof acts (or acted) as
a sponsor, adviser or sub-adviser or in a similar capacity), an advisee or investment advisory customer or client of, or otherwise a recipient of Investment
Management Services from, (x) the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, and/or (y) any owner, part owner, shareholder, partner, member, director,
officer, trustee, employee, agent or consultant of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof acting on behalf of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or Affiliates, but at such time is not an advisee or investment advisory customer or client of (or otherwise a direct or indirect recipient of Investment
Management Services from) the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof (or any of the foregoing Persons acting on their behalf), and (ii) with which
Grantee or his department had material, direct interaction with and/or with respect to which Grantee had access to proprietary or confidential information;
provided, however, that, from and after the termination of Grantee’s Employment, the term “Past Client” shall thereafter be limited (solely with respect to the
Grantee) to those Past Clients who were (directly or indirectly) advisees or investment advisory customers or clients of, or recipients of Investment
Management Services from, the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, or any owner, part owner, shareholder, partner, member, director, officer,
trustee, employee, agent or consultant (or persons acting in any similar capacity) of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, at any time during the
two (2) years immediately preceding the date of such termination.

(h) “Performance Measure” (a Performance Criteria under the Plan) shall mean the target for the Performance Period
(each as set forth on Exhibit A, as applicable), as established by the Compensation Committee.  

(i) “Person” shall mean any individual, partnership (limited or general), corporation, limited liability company, limited
liability partnership, association, trust, joint venture, unincorporated organization or other entity.

(j) “Potential Client” shall mean, subject to the general rules under the definition of Client, at any particular time of
determination, any Person (i) to whom (x) the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, and/or (y)
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any owner, part owner, shareholder, partner, member, director, officer, trustee, employee, agent or consultant (or persons acting in any similar capacity) of the
Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, acting on behalf of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof in any such case has within one (1)
year prior to such time of determination offered (whether by means of a personal meeting, telephone call, letter, written proposal or otherwise) to serve as
investment adviser or otherwise provide Investment Management Services, but who is not at such time an advisee or investment advisory customer or client
of (or otherwise a direct or indirect recipient of Investment Management Services from) the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof (or any of the
foregoing Persons acting on their behalf), and (ii) with which Grantee or his department had material, direct interaction with and/or with respect to which
Grantee had access to proprietary or confidential information; provided, however, that, from and after the termination of Grantee’s Employment, the term
“Potential Client” shall thereafter be limited (solely with respect to the Grantee) to those Potential Clients to whom such an offer to provide Investment
Management Services was made at any time during the one (1) year immediately preceding the date of such termination. The preceding sentence is meant to
exclude advertising, if any, through mass media in which the offer, if any, is available to the general public, such as magazines, newspapers and sponsorships
of public events.

(k) “Present Client” shall mean, subject to the general rules under the definition of Client, at any particular time of
determination, any Person (i) who is at such time of determination, directly or indirectly (and including, without limitation, through one or more
intermediaries such as a wrap sponsor, or as an investor in a Fund for which the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof acts as a sponsor, adviser or
sub-adviser or in a similar capacity), an advisee or investment advisory customer or client of (or otherwise a direct or indirect recipient of Investment
Management Services from) (x) the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof and/or (y) any owner, part owner, shareholder, partner, member, director,
officer, trustee, employee, agent or consultant (or persons acting in any similar capacity) of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof acting on
behalf of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, and (ii) with which Grantee or his department had material, direct interaction with and/or with
respect to which Grantee had access to proprietary or confidential information.

3. Termination of Service. If the Grantee’s Employment terminates, this Award may be subject to earlier termination or
accelerated vesting as set forth below.

(a) Termination by Reason of Death or Disability. If the Grantee’s Employment terminates by reason of death or disability,
the Units subject to this Award shall automatically fully vest at the time of such termination; provided that, if this Award is subject to a Performance Measure,
the Shares subject to this Award shall only be issued and distributed pursuant to Section 1(b) if (i) the Compensation Committee has certified that the
Performance Measure has been attained on or before the date of termination, and in such case shall be issued and distributed at the time of such termination in
the amount indicated on Exhibit A, or (ii) the attainment of the Performance Measure is not yet determinable as of such date, and in such case shall fully vest
at the time of such termination but the vested Units shall remain subject to the attainment of the Performance Measure and no Shares shall be issued and
distributed in respect of such Units unless and until the Compensation Committee has certified that the Performance Measure has been attained (and shall be
issued and distributed at the time of such certification (if any) in the amount indicated on Exhibit A). (For the avoidance of doubt, if the Units subject to this
Award (including any Units that vested pursuant to sub-clause (ii) above) are subject to a Performance Measure that the Compensation Committee has
certified has not been attained with respect to all or any portion thereof, this Award shall terminate with respect to all of the Units or any portion thereof, as
applicable, in accordance with Section 1(b) hereof.)

(b) Other Termination. If the Grantee’s Employment terminates for any reason other than death or disability or in
connection with a Change of Control described in Section 1(c), this Award shall, to the extent not already vested as described herein, terminate immediately
and be of no further force or effect; it being understood that this Award shall remain outstanding following the date of any termination with respect to any
Units subject to a Performance Measure that have vested (including pursuant to Sections 1(c)(y) or 3(a)(ii) hereof) until the Shares to be issued in respect
thereof are issued and distributed or the Award is terminated in accordance with Section 1(b).

The Administrator’s determination of the reason that the Grantee’s Employment has terminated shall be conclusive and binding on the Grantee and
his or her representatives, legal guardians or legatees.

4. Vesting and Distribution. The Units shall be distributed only in Shares, such that the Grantee shall be entitled to receive
one Share for each vested Unit following, if applicable, attainment of the Performance Measure. The Shares subject to this Award shall be issued and
distributed to the Grantee pursuant to Section 1 hereof, and the vesting schedule and, if applicable, performance requirements set forth on Exhibit A, with
such issuance and distribution of the Shares (whether the Shares are to be held by the Company on the Grantee’s behalf pursuant to Section 14(b) hereof or
issued directly to the Grantee) to occur, in all cases, no later than March 15 of the year following the year in which the Units vest, in accordance with the
short-term deferral exception under Code Section 409A and the regulations and guidance thereunder.
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Any sales of Shares are subject to the Company’s insider trading policy, equity ownership guidelines and other Company policies as may be in effect
from time to time or otherwise established by the Administrator.

5. Dividend Equivalent Rights. If the Company makes any cash dividends or other cash distributions to the holders of
Shares of the Company’s common stock, the Grantee shall have the right to receive payments in lieu thereof in respect of the Units subject to this Award
(“Dividend Equivalent Rights”). If the Company makes such a cash dividend or other cash distribution prior to the issuance and distribution of the Shares
subject to this Award or prior to termination of the Award, the Company shall credit a bookkeeping account of the Dividend Equivalent Rights on behalf of
the Grantee as of the record date of such cash dividend or other cash distribution. The amount credited shall be equal to the per-Share cash dividend or other
cash distribution paid by the Company multiplied by the total number of then outstanding Units. Such amounts shall be subject to the same vesting, payment
(without interest), issuance, distribution and other terms and conditions of the Units to which they relate as provided in this Agreement, including, for the
avoidance of doubt, the attainment of any Performance Measure, as certified by the Compensation Committee. References in this Agreement to Units shall, as
appropriate, include any Dividend Equivalent Rights described in this Section 5.

6. Stockholder Rights. This Award shall not be interpreted to bestow upon the Grantee any equity interest or ownership in
the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate prior to the dates on which the Company delivers Shares to the Grantee. The Grantee shall have no rights as a
shareholder with respect to the Units, and shall have the rights of a shareholder only as to those Shares, if any, that are actually delivered under this Award.

       
7. Noncompetition, Intellectual Property and Confidentiality.

(a) During the term of the Grantee’s Employment (or other applicable service relationship) with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or Affiliates and for two (2) years thereafter, the Grantee: (i) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as owner, partner, shareholder, member,
consultant, agent, employee, co-venturer or otherwise, engage, participate or invest in any Competing Business (as hereinafter defined) (provided, however,
that nothing in this clause (i) shall prohibit the Grantee from acting as an agent for a Competing Business in the course of his or her employment (or other
applicable service relationship) for a business which is not a Competing Business); (ii) will not, directly or indirectly, take any action to negotiate or discuss
with any person or entity or solicit or entertain from any person or entity, any investment, purchase, proposal, offer or indication of interest regarding (A) any
investment in any entity in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates holds any securities or other investment interests or (B) any investment
in any other entity with whom the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates is or was discussing or negotiating any possible investment therein at any
time during the one (1) year preceding the termination (if any) of the Grantee’s Employment (or other applicable service relationship) with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates; and (iii) will refrain from directly or indirectly employing, attempting to employ, recruiting or otherwise soliciting,
inducing or influencing any person to leave Employment with the Company and its subsidiaries or Affiliates (other than terminations of Employment of
subordinate employees undertaken in the course of the Grantee’s Employment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates).

For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Competing Business” shall mean a business or a division of a business, conducted anywhere in the world,
which invests in or acquires boutique or specialist investment managers or advisers, or has adopted a strategy or developed a business plan to invest in or
acquire multiple boutique or specialist investment managers or advisers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee may own up to five percent (5%) of the
outstanding stock of a publicly held corporation which constitutes or is affiliated with a Competing Business.

(b) In addition to (and not in limitation of) the provisions of Section 7(a) of this Agreement, the Grantee agrees, for the
benefit of the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates, that the Grantee shall not, during the term of his or her Employment (or other applicable service
relationship) with the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates and for one (1) year thereafter, directly or indirectly (whether individually or as owner,
part owner, shareholder, partner, member, director, officer, trustee, employee, agent, consultant or in any other capacity, on behalf of himself or any other
Person (other than the Company or a subsidiary or Affiliate thereof while employed by the Company)):

i. Provide Investment Management Services to any Person that is a Client (which includes Past Clients, Present
Clients, and Potential Clients);

ii. Solicit or induce (whether directly or indirectly) any Person for the purpose (which need not be the sole or
primary purpose) of (A) causing any funds or accounts with respect to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates provides Investment
Management Services to be withdrawn from such management or other services, or (B) causing any Client (including any Potential Client) not to engage the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or
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Affiliates to provide Investment Management Services for any additional funds or accounts (or otherwise attempt to cause any of the foregoing to occur);    

iii. Otherwise divert or take away (or seek to divert or take away) any funds or investment accounts with respect
to which the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof provides Investment Management Services; or

iv. Contact or communicate with, whether directly or indirectly, any Past Clients, Present Clients or Potential
Clients in connection with providing Investment Management Services to such Persons;

provided, however, that this Section 7(b) shall not be applicable to Clients (including Potential Clients) who are also
immediate family members of the Grantee.

(c) The Grantee understands that the restrictions set forth in Sections 7(a) and 7(b) of this Agreement are intended to
protect the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ and Affiliates’ interest in its confidential information and established employee and client relationships and
goodwill, and agrees that such restrictions are reasonable and appropriate for this purpose.

(d) The Grantee agrees and acknowledges that any and all presently existing business of the Company and its subsidiaries
and Affiliates and all business developed by the Company, any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates, the Grantee and/or any other employee (or other service
provider) of the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates, including without limitation all client lists, the Company’s deal structures (as represented by the
transactions it has completed, attempted or actually proposed), compensation records, agreements, and any other incident of any business developed by the
Company or carried on by the Company and all trade names, service marks and logos under which the Company, its subsidiaries and its and their Affiliates do
business, including without limitation “Affiliated Managers Group” and any combinations or variations thereof and all related logos, are and shall be the
exclusive property of the Company or such subsidiary or Affiliate, as applicable, for its or their sole use, and (where applicable) amounts received in respect
of the foregoing shall be payable directly to the Company or such subsidiary or Affiliate. The Grantee acknowledges that, in the course of performing services
for the Company and otherwise, the Grantee will from time to time have access to information concerning the Company’s, its subsidiaries’ or its Affiliates’
current or proposed businesses, technologies, business relationships, clients, personnel, processes, operations, strategies, plans, methods, investment
recommendations, investment processes, investment methodologies, products, confidential records, manuals, data, client and contact lists, trade secrets or
financial, corporate, marketing or personnel affairs, which the Company or such subsidiary or Affiliate has not released to the general public and all
memoranda, notes, papers, items and tangible media related thereto (collectively, “Proprietary Information”). The Grantee agrees that Proprietary Information
of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof is and will be the exclusive property of the Company or such subsidiary or Affiliate, as the case may be,
and further agrees to always keep secret and never (during the term of this Agreement or thereafter) publish, divulge, furnish, use or make accessible to
anyone (other than in the regular business of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof or otherwise at the Company’s request) such Proprietary
Information. Anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, this Section 7(d) shall not (i) apply to any knowledge, information or property which
(x) is generally known or available to the public or in the public domain, (y) has been previously disclosed or made available to the public, unless the Grantee
knows or has reason to know that such disclosure or availability was the direct or indirect result of the violation or breach of a confidentiality or non-
disclosure obligation, or (z) is required to be disclosed or delivered by any court, agency or other governmental authority or is otherwise required to be
disclosed by law, or (ii) preclude the Grantee from cooperating with any governmental process, or any governmental or law enforcement agency in any
investigation, or from making any other communications (without notice to or consent from the Company) with a governmental agency.

(e) The Grantee will make full and prompt disclosure to the Company of all inventions, discoveries, designs,
developments, methods, modifications, improvements, processes, algorithms, databases, computer programs, formulae, techniques, trade secrets and other
works of authorship (collectively, “Developments”), whether or not patentable or copyrightable, that are created, made, conceived or reduced to practice by
the Grantee (alone or jointly with others) or under Grantee’s direction during Grantee’s Employment. The Grantee acknowledges and confirms that the
Grantee hereby assigns and transfers, and will assign and transfer, to the Company and its successors and assigns all the Grantee’s right, title and interest in all
Developments that (i) relate to the business of the Company, any subsidiary or Affiliate or any customer of or supplier to the Company or any of the products
or services being researched, developed, manufactured, serviced, licensed or sold by the Company or which may be used with such products or services; or
(ii) result from tasks assigned to the Grantee by the Company, a subsidiary or an Affiliate; or (iii) result from the use of premises or personal property
(whether tangible or intangible) owned, leased or contracted for by the Company, a subsidiary or an Affiliate (“Company-Related Developments”), and all
related patents, patent applications, trademarks and trademark applications, copyrights and copyright applications, and
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other intellectual property rights in all countries and territories worldwide and under any international conventions (“Intellectual Property Rights”).

(f) Upon termination of the Grantee’s Employment for any reason, all Proprietary Information in the Grantee’s possession
or control shall be returned to the Company and remain in its possession. The Grantee will cooperate fully with the Company and its subsidiaries and
Affiliates, both during Employment and following termination of Employment for any reason, in order for the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates to
enforce and protect any of their rights and interests with respect to Proprietary Information, Company-Related Developments, and Intellectual Property Rights
in Company-Related Developments, including, without limitation whatsoever, signing all papers, copyright applications, patent applications, declarations,
oaths, assignments of priority rights, and powers of attorney which the Company may deem necessary or desirable in order to protect such rights and interests.

8. Remedies Upon Breach. In the event that the Grantee breaches any of the provisions of Section 7 of this Agreement,
including without limitation following the termination of the Grantee’s Employment, the entire value of the vested Award (as of the date Grantee’s
Employment is terminated, whether or not paid, settled or distributed by the Company), shall be paid to or retained by the Company, as applicable, as
liquidated damages (the “Liquidated Damages”). The parties agree that in the event of such breach by the Grantee it will be difficult to ascertain with
certainty the amount of damages suffered by the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates. The amount of the Liquidated Damages represents a reasonable
estimate of the damages expected to be suffered by the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates as a result of the Grantee’s default and, in any such event,
in addition to (and not in limitation of) such other remedies as the Company may have against the Grantee, until the Liquidated Damages are recovered in
their entirety, (x) the Company shall be entitled to withhold any payments to which the Grantee otherwise would be entitled (whether pursuant to this
Agreement or any other agreement, plan or policy, including without limitation distributions hereunder), and (y) the Grantee, at the request of the Company,
shall return all or some incentive compensation (which shall include any compensation distributed or awarded to the Grantee other than base compensation);
provided that, any amounts so withheld or returned shall be promptly released to the original payee to the extent it is determined (whether by settlement,
judgment or arbitral decision) that such amounts are required to be so released, together with interest thereon as may be agreed or determined in connection
with such settlement, judgment or decision. The Grantee agrees that the remedies provided in this Section 8 are reasonably related to anticipated losses that
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates would suffer upon a breach of such provisions by the Grantee. The Grantee recognizes and agrees that
the Company’s remedies at law for any breach, or threatened breach, of the provisions of this Agreement would be inadequate, and that for any breach or
threatened breach of such provisions by the Grantee, the Company shall, in addition to such other remedies as may be available to it at law or in equity or as
provided in this Agreement, be entitled to injunctive relief and enforcement of its rights by an action for specific performance to the extent permitted by law
(and without having to post bond), and to an award of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with securing any of its rights hereunder.

9. Notice of Termination.

(a)    Grantee’s Employment may be terminated at any time by the Company or, if different, any subsidiary or Affiliate of the
Company that is the Grantee’s employer (the “Grantee’s employer”), or by the Grantee; provided that, the Grantee (but not the Company or, if different, the
Grantee’s employer) shall be required to provide at least six (6) months advance written notice of such termination. For the avoidance of doubt, for purposes
of Section 7 of this Agreement, termination of Employment shall be deemed to occur upon delivery of notice of termination by the Grantee.

(b)    Where notice of termination has been delivered by the Grantee, the Company (and, if different, the Grantee’s employer) shall
be under no obligation to provide any activities to Grantee to carry out on behalf of the Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates, and may require him or her
(i) not to attend any premises of the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, (ii) to resign with immediate effect from any offices he or she holds with
the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof (or any Client thereof), (iii) to refrain from any business contact with any Clients, partners or employees of
the Company or any subsidiary or Affiliate thereof, and (iv) to take any leave time he or she has accrued under the policies of the Company or any subsidiary
or Affiliate thereof.

(c)    Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Grantee is a party to an employment agreement with the Company or any subsidiary or
Affiliate thereof, any terms of such employment agreement shall supersede and apply in precedence to the provisions of clauses (a) and (b) of this Section 9
and clauses (a) and (b) of this Section 9 shall not be taken to amend the related terms of such employment agreement.

(d)    In connection with the termination of Grantee’s Employment, the Grantee shall reasonably cooperate with the Company and,
if different, the Grantee’s employer, to prepare a communication plan regarding Grantee’s
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departure, and Grantee shall not make any other public statement regarding his or her departure without the prior written consent of the Company.

10. Nondisparagement. In exchange for the consideration herein, the Grantee agrees that he/she will not make any
disparaging, derogatory, damaging, and/or critical statements concerning the Company or any subsidiaries or any of their respective affiliates, partners,
officers, directors, employees, services, products and/or activities.

11. Third-Party Agreements and Rights.

(a)    The Grantee hereby confirms that he or she is not bound by the terms of any agreement with any previous employer or other
party which restricts in any way the Grantee’s use or disclosure of information or the Grantee’s engagement in any business. In the Grantee’s work for the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates, the Grantee will not disclose or use any information in violation of any rights of any such previous employer
or other party.

(b)    The Grantee’s employer, if different than the Company, is an intended third-party beneficiary under this Agreement and may
enforce the terms of Sections 7, 8, 9, 12, 13 and 14 of this Agreement. This right is subject to (i) the rights of the parties hereto to rescind or vary this
Agreement without the consent of any such subsidiary or Affiliate and (ii) the other terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan.

12. Transferability. This Agreement is personal to the Grantee, is non-assignable and is not transferable in any manner, by
operation of law or otherwise, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution or as permitted by the Administrator (or its delegee). The Grantee may
transfer, without consideration for the transfer, the Award to members of his or her immediate family, to trusts for the benefit of such family members, or to
partnerships in which such family members are the only partners, provided that the transferee (and, as required by the Administrator, the beneficiaries or
members of such transferee) agrees in writing with the Company to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement.

13. Certain Tax Matters. To the extent permitted by law, the Company, the Grantee’s employer or their agents shall have
the right to withhold or deduct from any distributions (including any Shares acquired or otherwise deliverable and the payment of other amounts with respect
to the Units) or payments to the Grantee the minimum amount of taxes and any social security contributions required to be withheld or deducted by federal,
state or local governments. The Grantee expressly acknowledges and agrees that his or her rights hereunder are subject to his or her promptly paying to the
Company or the Grantee’s employer in cash (or by such other means as may be acceptable to the Company or the Grantee’s employer in its discretion,
including, if the Administrator so determines, by the delivery of previously acquired Shares or Shares acquired hereunder or by the withholding of amounts
from any payment hereunder) the minimum amount of taxes and any social security contributions required to be withheld in connection with such award,
vesting, issuance, distribution or payment. Such payment by the Grantee shall be made no later than the date as of which any Shares or other amounts
provided hereunder first become includable in the gross income of the Grantee for U.S. federal income tax purposes or as otherwise required by the Company
or the Grantee’s employer under applicable law.

14. Miscellaneous.

(a) The Units are subject to adjustment in accordance with the provisions of Section 7 of the Plan.

(b) The Company shall maintain an account on its books in the name of the Grantee which shall reflect the number of
Units awarded to the Grantee and the number of Shares the Grantee is eligible to receive thereunder. The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the Company
(i) may hold all vested Units and all Shares issued and distributed in respect thereof pursuant to this Award on behalf of the Grantee, until such time as the
Grantee submits a request for delivery, and (ii) will exercise voting rights and take all other corporate actions for any Shares issued pursuant to this Award for
such time as such Shares may be held by the Company on behalf of the Grantee, unless the Grantee provides written notice to the Human Resources
Department to the contrary.

(c) Notice hereunder shall be given (i) to the Company at its principal place of business, and (ii) to the Grantee at the
address on file in the Company’s records, or in either case at such other address as one party may subsequently furnish to the other party in writing.

(d) The Grantee hereby acknowledges and agrees to the following: (i) this Award is offered to the Grantee at the complete
discretion of the Company; (ii) the Plan and this Award do not form part of any contract of
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employment between Grantee and the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates and do not confer upon the Grantee any rights with respect to
continuance as an employee (or other service provider) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates; (iii) this Award will not affect any right the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates may have under any employment agreement with the Grantee or under applicable law to terminate the
Employment of the Grantee at any time with or without Cause; (iv) this Award is not part of the Grantee’s base salary or wages and will not be taken into
account in determining any other employment-related rights that the Grantee may have, such as any rights the Grantee may have to pension or severance pay;
and (v) this Award does not confer on the Grantee any implied right or entitlement to the exercise of any discretion in his or her favor with respect to any
discretionary terms in this Award.

(e) The Grantee hereby waives all and any rights to compensation or damages in consequence of the termination of
Grantee’s Employment with the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates, for any reason whatsoever (whether lawfully or unlawfully) insofar as those
rights arise or may arise from his ceasing to have rights under or be entitled to this Award as a result of such termination or from the loss or diminution in
value of such rights or entitlements. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Section 14(e) and the Grantee’s terms of employment, this Section
14(e) shall take precedence (except as required by applicable legislation).

(f) Pursuant to Section 10 of the Plan, the Administrator may at any time amend or cancel any outstanding portion of this
Award for any purpose that may at the time be permitted by law, but no such action may be taken that materially and adversely affects the Grantee’s rights
under this Agreement without the Grantee’s consent.

(g) If the Grantee is resident outside of the United States, to the extent permitted by applicable law, the Grantee hereby
consents to the holding, processing and transfer of data relating to him or her (including sensitive personal data as defined in the UK Data Protection Act
1998) by: (i) the Company and any of its subsidiaries and Affiliates; (ii) any person providing services to the Company, its subsidiaries or Affiliates
(including, but not limited to, any third party broker, registrar or administrator); and (iii) any trustee appointed by the Company, its subsidiaries or Affiliates,
in each case for all purposes relating to the administration or operation of the Plan, including the grant, holding or vesting of an Award and the delivery,
holding or sale of Stock and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, this consent includes consent to the transfer of such data to countries outside the
European Economic Area even if the country in question does not maintain adequate data protection standards.

(h) The provisions of this Agreement and all claims or disputes arising out of or based upon this Agreement or relating to
the subject matter hereof or thereof will be governed by and construed in accordance with the domestic substantive laws of the State of Delaware without
giving effect to any choice or conflict of laws provision or rule that would cause the application of the domestic substantive laws of any other jurisdiction.

(i) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, this Award shall be, and the Grantee hereby acknowledges that it is,
subject to and governed by all the terms and conditions of the Plan.

[Remainder of this page is intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed and delivered by the parties hereto as of the Grant Date.

AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.

By: __________________________
David M. Billings
Executive Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

  

Please execute this Agreement and return it to the Human Resources Department.

_______________________________
Grantee

[Form of RSU Award Agreement]
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Exhibit 21.1
 

SCHEDULE OF SUBSIDIARIES
(in alphabetical order)

 
Below is a list comprised of (i) wholly-owned subsidiaries of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (the “Company”), (ii) entities in which the Company has a
majority interest (direct and indirect) and (iii) entities in which the Company has a minority investment (direct and indirect), as of December 31, 2016. 
Minority investments are indicated via asterisk (*).
 
400 Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
4444582 Canada Inc., a Canada corporation
Abacos Atlantic Holdings Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
Abax Investments Proprietary Limited, a limited liability private company incorporated in South Africa*
Affiliated Managers Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
Affiliated Managers Group Limited, a limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom
Affiliated Managers Group Pty Ltd, a limited company incorporated in Australia
Affiliated Managers Group (Switzerland) AG, a company incorporated in Switzerland
AKH Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG 2014 Capital LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Arrow Holdings Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG Atlantic Holdings Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG Boston Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG CA Holdings Corp., a New Jersey corporation
AMG CA Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG CA Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership
AMG Canada Corp., a Nova Scotia corporation
AMG Canada Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Cipher Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Conception Holdings 1 Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG Conception Holdings 2 Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG Conception Holdings 3 Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG CVC Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Distributors, Inc., a Delaware corporation
AMG Edison Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG FCMC Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Funds LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Gamma Holdings Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG Gamma Holdings 2 Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG Genesis, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Global, Inc., a Delaware corporation
AMG Gotham Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG GWK Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG New York Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation
AMG Northeast Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation
AMG Northeast Investment Corp., a Delaware corporation
AMG PA Holdings Partnership, a Delaware general partnership
AMG PFM Holdings LP, a Delaware limited partnership
AMG Plymouth UK Holdings (1) Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales
AMG Properties LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Renaissance Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG SA Holdings Proprietary Limited, a limited liability private company incorporated in South Africa
AMG SSAM Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG TBC, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG UK Holdings Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG Wealth Partners, LP, a Delaware limited partnership
AMG WF Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG Windermere Holdings Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
AMG WP GP Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation
AMG WP LP Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company



AMG/FAMI Investment Corp., a Nova Scotia corporation
AMG/Midwest Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation
AMG/Midwest Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
AMG/North America Holding Corp., a Delaware corporation
AQR Capital Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
AQR Capital Management II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
AQR Capital Management (Europe) LLP, a UK limited liability partnership*
AQR Capital Management Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
AQR Capital Management (UK Services) Limited, a UK limited company*
Arrow Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Arrow Bidco Limited, a limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom
Artemis Asset Management Limited, a limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom
Artemis Fund Managers Limited, a limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom
Artemis Investment Management LLP, a United Kingdom limited liability partnership
Artemis Strategic Asset Management Limited, a limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom
Baker Street Advisors LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Baring Private Equity Asia Group Investments Ltd, a Mauritius company*
Baring Private Equity Asia Group Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company*
Baring Private Equity Asia K.K., a company incorporated in Japan*
Baring Private Equity Asia Limited, a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong*
Baring Private Equity Asia (Mauritius) Limited, a Mauritius company*
Baring Private Equity Asia Pte Limited, a private limited company incorporated in Singapore*
BPE Asia Real Estate Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company*
BPEA Advisors Private Limited, a private limited company incorporated in India*
Beutel, Goodman & Company Ltd., a limited company incorporated in Canada*
Bimini Atlantic Holdings Ltd., a Bahamas international business company
BlueMountain Capital Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
BlueMountain Capital Partners (London) LLP, a UK limited liability partnership*
BlueMountain GP Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
BlueMountain UK Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
BMCM Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Bowman Partners GP Co., a Cayman Islands exempted company
Capeview Capital LLP, an England and Wales limited liability partnership*
Capula Investment Japan Limited, a company incorporated in Japan*
Capula Investment Management Asia Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong*
Capula Investment Management LLP, an England and Wales limited liability partnership*
Capula Investment Services Limited, an England and Wales private limited company*
Capula Investment US LP, a Delaware limited partnership*
Capula Management Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company*
Capula Management US LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
Catalyst Acquisition II, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Channel Ventures GP Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company
Chicago Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Chicago Equity Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Clarfeld Financial Advisors, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
CML Holdings Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company
CPEG-Pantheon GP Limited, a Scotland company
CVC Holdings Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company
Deans Knight Capital Management Ltd., a Canada corporation*
EIG Asset Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
EIG Credit Management Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
EIG Funds Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
EIG Global Energy (Asia) Ltd., a Hong Kong private company*
EIG Global Energy (Australia) Pty. Ltd., an Australia private company*
EIG Global Energy (Brasil) Representacoes Ltda., a Brazil limited liability company*
EIG Global Energy (Europe) Ltd., a UK limited company*
EIG Global Energy Korea, Ltd., a Korea limited company*
EIG Management Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
EIG Principals Incentive Carry Vehicle, LP, a Delaware limited partnership*



El-Train Acquisition LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Empire Acquisition (WP), LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
FA (WY) Acquisition Company, Inc., a Delaware corporation
FCMC Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
FIAMI Production Management Services 2001 Inc., a Canada corporation
First Asset Capital Management (III) Inc., an Ontario corporation
First Quadrant, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership
Foyston, Gordon & Payne Inc., a Canada corporation
Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
GE Asia GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Genesis Asset Managers, LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership
Genesis Investment Management, LLP, a United Kingdom limited liability partnership*
Gotham Acquisition GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Gotham Acquisition LP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
GW&K Investment Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Harding Loevner LP, a Delaware limited partnership
Harding Loevner (UK) Ltd., a UK limited company
HWL Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation
IIM Acquisition LP, a Delaware limited partnership
Ivory Capital Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability partnership*
Ivory Investment Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
J.M. Hartwell Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership
Klee Asia I GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Klee Europe I GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Klee Europe II GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Klee USA I GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Klee USA II GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Life Investor of Korea GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Long-Term Equity Interests Plan 2010, LP, a Delaware limited partnership*
Long-Term Equity Interests Plan 2011, LP, a Delaware limited partnership*
Long-Term Equity Interests Plan, LP, a Delaware limited partnership*
LTEIP 2011 GP Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation
LTEIP GP Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
LTEIP LP Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
M.J. Whitman LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Monteverdi GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Scotland
Montrusco Bolton Investments Inc., a Canada corporation*
myCIO Wealth Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
New GAML Holdco, Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempted company
Odin GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon 2015-K GP, Ltd. A Cayman Islands exempted company
Pantheon Access - Crescent CBDC Offshore GP, a Cayman Islands company
Pantheon Access GP S.a.r.l., a Grand Duchy of Luxembourg company
Pantheon Access US GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Birkin GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon BVK 2014 GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon BVK GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Capital (Asia) Limited, a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
Pantheon Capital Partners GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon CK SPV GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon CV (Cayman) GP, Ltd., a Cayman Islands limited company
Pantheon Donald GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon - Flying Fox GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Friar Holdings, Ltd., a Cayman Islands exempted company
Pantheon Gateway Prairie SPV GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Gateway MSouth SPV GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Global Co-Investment Opportunities GP Ltd, a Cayman Islands exempted company
Pantheon Global Co-Investment WGP GP, Ltd., a Cayman Islands company
Pantheon GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales



Pantheon GT GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon (Guernsey) GP Limited, a Guernsey limited company
Pantheon HO GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Holdings Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales
Pantheon Industriens GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Industriens II GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon - Ista Co-Investment, GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Korea Inc., a Korea company
Pantheon KP GT Strategic Private Investments GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon KP KFH Strategic Private Investments GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon KSA GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon KSA (Guernsey) GP Limited, a Guernsey limited company
Pantheon Lille GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Scotland
Pantheon Lux GP S.a.r.l., a Grand Duchy of Luxembourg company
Pantheon Maury GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon (Midway) GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Multi-Strategy Program 2014 US GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon NPS GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon OPERS GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Partners Participation GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon PGCO GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Psagot GP, Ltd., a Cayman Islands limited company
Pantheon PSI GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Real Assets GT GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Real Assets HO GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon REX GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon SCERS SIRF MM, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Securities LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Standard GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon UK General Partner 2 Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales
Pantheon UK General Partner Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales
Pantheon (UK) GP LLP, a limited liability partnership formed in Scotland
Pantheon (US) LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon/VA NRP GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Pantheon Ventures (Guernsey) Limited, a Guernsey limited company
Pantheon Ventures (HK) LLP, an England and Wales limited liability partnership
Pantheon Ventures Inc., a California corporation
Pantheon Ventures Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales
Pantheon Ventures (Scotland) GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Scotland
Pantheon Ventures (UK) LLP, an England and Wales limited liability partnership
Pantheon Ventures (US) Holdings LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership
Pantheon Ventures (US) LP, a Delaware limited partnership
Papillon GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Partner Advisory Services, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership*
Partner Asset Management LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
Partner Investment Management, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership*
PASIA V GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Guernsey
PASIA VI GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PEAF VI GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PEMF (ex-Asia) GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PEURO IV GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PEURO V GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Guernsey
PEURO VI GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Guernsey
PEURO VII GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Guernsey
PFM Acquisition LP, a Delaware limited partnership
PGCO II GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGCO III GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGIF GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Guernsey
PGIF GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company



PGIF II GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGIF II Lux GP S.a.r.l., a Grand Duchy of Luxembourg company
PGIH - Holte GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGIH - Shades GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGSF II GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGSF III GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in Guernsey
PGSF III GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGSF IV GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGSF V GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGSH GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PGSH II GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PREMIUM Private Equity VI General Partner S.a.r.l., a Grand Duchy of Luxembourg company
Prides Crossing Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Private Debt LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PUSA VI GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PUSA VII GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PUSA VIII GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PUSA IX Feeder GP Limited, a limited company incorporated in England and Wales
PUSA IX GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PUSA SFP IX GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
PVP II GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Red Mile Syndication Inc., an Ontario corporation
River Road Asset Management, LLC, a DE limited liability company
RRAM Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
SCP GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
SouthernSun Asset Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Southernsun Asset Management (UK) Ltd., a limited company incorporated in England and Wales
Squam Acquisition GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Squam Acquisition LP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
SSAM Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Systematic Financial Management, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership
Systematica Holdings Limited, a non-cellular company limited by shares incorporated in Guernsey*
Systematica Investments GP Limited, a registered private company incorporated in Jersey*
Systematica Investments Guernsey LP, a Guernsey limited partnership*
Systematica Investments Jersey Limited, a registered private company incorporated in Jersey*
Systematica Investments Limited, a registered private company incorporated in Jersey*
Systematica Investments LP, a Guernsey limited partnership*
Systematica Investments Services Limited, a private limited company incorporated in England and Wales*
Systematica Investments Singapore Pte. Limited, a company incorporated in Singapore*
Systematica Investments US LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
The Renaissance Group LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Third Avenue Holdings Delaware LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Third Avenue Management LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
TimesSquare Capital Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
TimesSquare Manager Member, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Titan NJ GP Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation
Titan NJ LP Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
TMF Corp., a Delaware corporation
Topspin Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Trident NYC Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Trilogy Global Advisors International LLP, a limited liability partnership incorporated in the United Kingdom
Trilogy Global Advisors UK Holdings Limited, a limited company incorporated in the United Kingdom
Trilogy Global Advisors, LP, a Delaware limited partnership
Tweedy, Browne Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Union Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
VA Partners I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
VA Partners III, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
VA SmallCap Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
Value Partners Group Limited, a Cayman Islands exempted company*



ValueAct Capital Management, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership*
ValueAct Capital Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company *
ValueAct Holdings GP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
ValueAct Holdings, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership*
ValueAct SmallCap Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
ValueAct SmallCap Management, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership*
VAM Bidco Limited, a private UK limited company
Veritable, LP, a Delaware limited partnership
Veritas Asset Management (Asia) Limited, a Hong Kong company
Veritas Asset Management LLP, a UK limited liability partnership
Veritas Corporate Management Limited, a UK limited company*
Watson Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Welch & Forbes LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Windermere Cayman LP, a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership
Winton Capital Asia Limited, a Hong Kong company*
Winton Capital Japan Co., Ltd, a company incorporated in Japan*
Winton Capital Management Limited, a UK private limited company*
Winton Capital US LLC, a Delaware limited liability company*
Winton Fund Management Limited, a UK private limited company*
Winton Group Limited, a UK private limited company*
Winton Outbound Investment Fund Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. a Peoples Republic of China company*
WP Group, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
Yacktman Asset Management LP, a Delaware limited partnership
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S‑3 (No. 333-210819) and S‑8 (No. 333-190412, No. 333-
175912, No. 333-135416, No. 333-129748, No. 333-100628, No. 333-84485, and No. 333-72967) of Affiliate Managers Group, Inc. of our report dated
February 24, 2017 relating to the financial statements, financial statement schedule and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which
appears in this Form 10‑K.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 24, 2017
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302(a)

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Sean M. Healey, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2017

  /s/ SEAN M. HEALEY

  
Sean M. Healey
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302(a)

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jay C. Horgen, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 24, 2017

  /s/ JAY C. HORGEN

  
Jay C. Horgen
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended December 31, 2016 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned, Sean M. Healey, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 24, 2017

  /s/ SEAN M. HEALEY

  
Sean M. Healey
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (the "Company") for the period ended December 31, 2016 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), the undersigned, Jay C. Horgen, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 24, 2017

  /s/ JAY C. HORGEN

  
Jay C. Horgen
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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